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Corporate Information

NAEER

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chen Su-Yin
Ms. Li Jie

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence
Ms. Cheung Sze Man
Mr. Kot Man Tat

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence (Chairman)
Ms. Li Jie
Mr. Kot Man Tat

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (Chairman)
Ms. Cheung Sze Man
Mr. Kot Man Tat

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Ms. Cheung Sze Man (Chairman)
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Tam Shuk Wah Carrie
(resigned on 16 January 2024 and
re-appointed on 16 October 2024)
Ms. So Lai Shan
(appointed on 16 January 2024 and
resigned on 16 October 2024)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi
Ms. Tam Shuk Wah Carrie
(resigned on 16 January 2024 and
re-appointed on 16 October 2024)
Ms. So Lai Shan
(appointed on 16 January 2024 and
resigned on 16 October 2024)
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Corporate Information

NAEEH

REGISTERED OFFICE IN CAYMAN ISLANDS

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KY1-1111
Cayman Islands

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN HONG KONG

Units 2205-07, 22nd Floor, Two Sky Parc
51 Hung To Road

Kwun Tong

Kowloon

Hong Kong

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL PLACE OF
BUSINESS IN THE PRC

Suncun Industrial Development Zone
Huangcun Town

Daxing District

Beijing

PRC

Zizhu Digital Hub
No.555 Dongchuan Road
Wujing Town

Minhang District
Shanghai

PRC

MERSEMREER

Cricket Square
Hutchins Drive
P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman
KYT-1111
Cayman Islands
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Corporate Information

NAEEH

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR

AND TRANSFER AGENT

Conyers Trust Company (Cayman) Limited
2901 One Exchange Square

Connaught Place

Central

Hong Kong

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited
Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor

Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East

Wanchai

Hong Kong

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Public Interest Entity Auditor registered in accordance with
the Financial Reporting Council Ordinance

HONG KONG LEGAL ADVISER
Sidley Austin

PRINCIPAL BANKS

China Merchants Bank
SPD Bank

Bank of China

HSBC

China CITIC Bank
Fubon Bank (China)

INVESTOR RELATIONS

E-mail: ir@xiabu.com

COMPANY’'S WEBSITE

www.Xiabu.com
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Definitions

Bx

In this annual report, unless the context otherwise requires, the
following expressions shall have the following meanings:

associate

Audit Committee
Board
China or PRC

Company

controlling shareholder

Condiment Products

Corporate Governance
Code

CPC
Director(s)

FVTPL

GDP

Group, we, our or us

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the
Listing Rules

the audit committee of the Company

the board of Directors

the People’s Republic of China

Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (China)
Holdings Co., Ltd., a company incorporated
in the Cayman Islands with limited liability,
the issued Shares of which are listed on the

Main Board of the Stock Exchange

has the meaning ascribed thereto under the
Listing Rules

soup bases, dipping sauces, seasoning
sauces and products and various
compound condiments, and products with
gift-wrapping and limited editions which
target at mid-to high-end customers

the Corporate Governance Code contained
in Appendix C1 to the Listing Rules

Communist Party of China
director(s) of the Company

fair value through profit or loss

gross domestic product

the Company and its subsidiaries
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Definitions

BE

HK$

Hong Kong

Instant Foods

JV Company

JV Group

Listing Date

Listing Rules

Macau

Main Board

Model Code

Nomination Committee

Pre-IPO Share Incentive

Plan

Hong Kong dollars, the lawful currency of
Hong Kong

the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region

minced beef, minced pork and other
flavoured sauces which products

Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co. Ltd.
(REmm (FE) RmERBERRAA),
a 60% non-wholly owned subsidiary of
the Company and is owned as to 40% by
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi

the JV Company and its subsidiaries

the date of the listing of the Shares on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange, being 17
December 2014

the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited

the Macao Special Administrative Region

the main board of the Stock Exchange

the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers set out in
Appendix C3 to the Listing Rules

nomination committee of the Company

the share incentive plan of the Company
approved on 28 August 2009
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Definitions

BE

Prospectus

Reporting Period

Remuneration Committee
RMB

RSU Scheme

RSU Trustee

SFO

Share(s)

Share Award Scheme
Shareholder(s)

Stock Exchange

Tea Beverages and Tea

Snacks

Total Amount

uss

the prospectus of the Company dated 5
December 2014

the year ended 31 December 2024

remuneration committee of the Company
the lawful currency of the PRC

the restricted share unit scheme of the
Company approved on 28 November 2014

Computershare Hong Kong Trustees Limited,
the trustee appointed for the administration
of the RSU Scheme pursuant to the rules of
the RSU Scheme.

the Securities and Futures Ordinance
(Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)

share(s) of US$0.000025 each in the share
capital of the Company

the share award scheme of the Company
adopted on 28 August 2024

the shareholder(s) of the Company
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

the tea beverage and tea snack products
that are currently selling and/or expected to
be sold at the Group's restaurants

the gross revenue calculated by the selling
price as stated on the menu of the Group’s
restaurants multiplied by the quantity of Tea
Beverages and Tea Snacks sold under the
sales and promotion activities of the Group’s
restaurants

United States dollars, the lawful currency of
the United States of America
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Financial Summary

MBERE

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS

R

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-ZA=1t—-HLEE

2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—E-QmE —T-= —E-= S S
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTRE ARETT ARBTI ARETRT ARETRT
Revenue A 4,754,843  5917,962 4,724,834 6,147,262 5,455,246
(Loss) profit before tax Fiar (E8) 78 (389,136) (124,375) (350,935) (213,653) 67,177
(Loss) profit for the year RABEAF A
attributable to owners of JEMRER (E1R)
the Company A (400,681) (199,466) (353,052) (293,212) 1,837
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EENEE
As at 31 December
Rt+t=ZA=+-H
2024 2023 2022 2021 2020
—ECNE —T-_-F —ZET-— —EBE-—F ZEB-TFE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTTE ARETT ARETI ARETRT ARETT
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE 1,826,792 2,576,681 2,778,293 2,954,916 3,562,387
Current assets B EE 1,519,751 1,539,590 1,531,845 1,996,385 2,217,569
Total assets BEE 3,346,543 4,116,271 4,310,138 4,951,301 5,779,956
Equity and liabilities EnkaE
Total equity REmAsE 844,890 1,269,928 1,521,421 2,011,302 2,340,168
Non-current liabilities FERBEE 677,961 961,538 1,014,167 1,172,113 1,460,983
Current liabilities TEAR 1,823,692 1,884,805 1,774,550 1,767,886 1,978,805
Total liabilities BEE 2,501,653 2,846,343 2,788,717 2,939,999 3,439,788
Total equity and liabilities — #Ezm &k BELEE 3,346,543 4,116,271 4,310,138 4,951,301 5,779,956
Net current (liabilities) assets 7 #) (B &) EEFE (303,941) (345,215) (242,705) 228,499 238,764
Total assets less current BEERRE
liabilities aE& 1,522,851 2,231,466 2,535,588 3,183,415 3,801,151
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Chairman’s Statement
ETERES

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi
BhEEE
Chairman of the Board

EER

Dear Shareholders, BEHHERE
The year 2024 marks the 26th anniversary of our Company’s steady Z—ZT WM& > Q@@ RKTEREEENSE
development. Throughout our journey, every milestone has been forged Z+XEFE - -BEEE  AEEHN

by our corporate ethos of “unity, pragmatism, integrity, dedication, B—HEHRBEIELE  KE - HE W
innovation.” Guided by these values, the Company has emerged as a % - B|# | D ¥ XL BE¥®E FTE2EE

leading enterprise in China’s catering industry. Despite ongoing market —@HF(LBAWIIET @ R Ak AE
uncertainties, we continue to spearhead industry advancement through  ERITEMBE X - EEEN MIHFEE
robust operational capabilities and comprehensive strengths. MEEHZTEEN  BRAKAEE

BANGREENMEBNELREN 7
B BITEER -
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Chairman’s Statement
FEREE

The past year presented both challenges and opportunities. Amidst
consumption downgrading pressures and complex market conditions,
the Company has remained united. While maintaining strategic
consistency, we dynamically optimized our approaches in line with
business characteristics and market dynamics to achieve annual revenue
targets. In 2024, our membership program experienced exponential
growth, adding approximately 5.03 million new members and
surpassing 40 million cumulative members, significantly boosting group
revenue. This year also commemorated our decade-long public listing,
during which Xiabu Xiabu brand launched the “Genuine Feedback for
a Decade of Listing: Retro Combo Revival” campaign, strengthening
customer engagement and loyalty. Following offshore openings in
Hong Kong and Singapore, the Coucou brand successfully entered the
Taiwan region and delivered exceptional performance. The launch of
our Beijing logistics hub not only doubled our storage capacity, but also
substantially enhanced distribution efficiency and operational coverage.
Despite market complexities, we maintained industry leadership in both
quantity and quality of new restaurant openings. In 2024, we continued
to innovate and we could never have achieved what we did without our
dedicated and committed employees.

On behalf of the Group and the Board, | extend heartfelt gratitude
to our global shareholders, customers, and partners. As we navigate
2025 — a year brimming with aspirations and new ventures — we will
uphold our mission to “enable more people to enjoy healthy, nutritious,
delicious, and trendy dining experiences”. Drawing strength from
our collaborative culture, we will confront emerging challenges and
opportunities with renewed vigor and determination, driving sustainable
high-quality development to deliver greater value for our shareholders.

Yours sincerely,
HO Kuang-Chi
Chairman

BEM—F - RIHIBIE B —F -
K B 4 4R T 45 TR 5 A Ut ) 88 B8
T ARRBAIRLES ARBH
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ZEMHRE  ERAERE 208
RE2FLWEZE . T -mFE  2alft
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15038 - 25T & B R 2 H 84,0008
ABEESUCTIABRDE N T _WF

EEBLEWH A4S - 0GRS
HHIET+FERE EL£0RERN
HIKES -2 TRERMNE
B AR TNERNMBE: 2208
XN EETEEME  RKARMES
BB ZENE=M@AMS  WIE
THBEBENKE  EEZYRTLHAE
HMEAFERH W2 ATFHFEE100%H
R BRIEA T AU RORE KR
BIMEE N TEENNE EEME
MARET  ARFHAEEMNEEHEK
EHERITEELKFE - ZEZOF -
DRFEBRKEFRE S M E LR R
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Business Review and Outlook
EKOEREE

OVERVIEW

In 2024, the Group opened 65 Xiabuxiabu restaurants and 13 Coucou
restaurants. The Group also closed down 138 Xiabuxiabu restaurants
and 73 Coucou restaurants. These restaurants were closed down as
they were primarily loss-making, many operated in locations that were
mismatching to the “value for money” model which Xiabuxiabu stood
for and models that were not able to portrait the brand correctly. The
Group believes that with continuous adjustment, the Company will be
able to further improve the overall profitability of the restaurants and
continue to go forward.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group owned and operated 757
Xiabuxiabu restaurants in 115 cities of 21 provinces and autonomous
regions and in three centrally administered municipalities in Mainland
China, namely Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai, and 3 Xiabuxiabu
restaurants outside Mainland China.

The Group also owned and operated 181 Coucou restaurants in 38
cities of 18 provinces, in three centrally administered municipalities in
China, namely Beijing, Tianjin and Shanghai, and 16 Coucou restaurants
outside Mainland China.

The Group's revenue decreased by 19.7% from RMB5,918.0 million in
2023 to RMB4,754.8 million in 2024. The overall revenue of the food
and beverage industry in 2024 showed a year-on-year decline due
to continuous fierce competition in the industry and rationalization
of consumer demand. Meanwhile, the Group successfully expanded
and strengthened its restaurant network with the opening of 65 new
Xiabuxiabu restaurants and 13 new Coucou restaurants in 2024.

RMB AR

to=
P 4,.754.8

EE
=

KT VNF - A& E 35 R65M 1 I/
B ERE MEEEERE - KEB IR
FA138K IR IR ERE R73MEZERE -
ZEEEBHANRREABERZHELE
B Z8NTHARBERHEEDN S
HEEE]BANpEEE  BEREAT
BENRERMREER - AEBERE
FBBERE KRR G ME— IR
SEEEBERNEH  EERRIEE -

HE-_Z-_WF+-_A=+—8 ' &&
ERPEAEZENIEEOD REARRED
TMS5ESTUAR=EEEN (bR - XE
N b)) BB K gL & 7570 8 I g g E
EE - AP B OK BB AN A I A 2 3 1 e
NG R 5 B o

NEE IR A E181E% () B38BT -
—HEEMGER REXREB)EBR
w181 RIEEEE - £ B KEEIN
A RKE16REEEE -

KEFBHKAR_SE-_=ZEHARKE
59180 B LM 19.7% &2 —_E M
MAR4,754.88 & 7T - R X ) ERY
MITERSEBFREBE RKBREED
FE O RFE TN FEEHREREEREY
W2ERELLEEES - R KNEBR
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Business Review and Outlook
¥ROEREE

INDUSTRY REVIEW

In 2024, the catering industry showed a polarization pattern. On one
hand, a large number of small and medium-sized restaurants have
closed down or exited the market due to intense competition; on the
other hand, nearly 3.6 million catering enterprises have been newly
registered, which led to a continuous expansion in the industry scale.
In 2024, consumers were more cautious, with a decline in per capita
consumption, while the demand for cost-effectiveness and high quality
remained high. Under such an external environment, catering enterprises
were actively seeking new development paths. Some enterprises were
sounding out the low-priced market by cutting price or launching
sub-brands, while many were exploring overseas markets in an attempt
to achieve globalization in the catering industry.

In 2024, the Group continued to advance its overseas expansion
strategy, based on its operations in China Hong Kong, China Taiwan,
and Singapore to create a global hotpot brand. Through continuous
innovation and improvement of service quality, the Group has
maintained strong competitiveness in the fierce market competition and
continuously led the industry trend.

RMB AR

54.8.

Xiabuxiabu IH Ig I IE
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Business Review and Outlook
¥ROEREE

OVERALL BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL
PERFORMANCE

The Group’s restaurant network

In 2024, the Group opened a total of 78 new restaurants, including
65 Xiabuxiabu restaurants and 13 Coucou restaurants. In addition,
the Group closed a total of 219 restaurants, including 138 Xiabuxiabu
restaurants and 73 Coucou restaurants in 2024 as some of the
restaurants were in locations that were not able to present the
Xiabuxiabu “value for money” brand image and also due to various
commercial reasons. In aggregate, the Group’s total number of
restaurants in operation was 957 as at 31 December 2024.

The table below sets forth the number of the Group’s Xiabuxiabu
restaurants (“#") by region as at the dates indicated:

BERXBRUBREA
REEBNERFS

RZZEZF - AEEHHAKRS £78H
B2 - B 565 IR 0E 0 0 2 BE K13 &
REBoUIN ARTBLBEMEMNE
EEARERHERHEHEL] mEFE
% UEHRESEEERA  — 2211
FAREES LRBEF219MEE - £235138
M EEE  3REEEES N
f7fm¢+ A=+—H A&EEHE
EERBEBHAISTHE -

TREINARBHASEREES D
NI R E ([4])

As at 31 December

R+=—RA=+—H
2024 2023
—E-NEF —E=F

# % # %
Tier 1 cities'” 14" 319 42.0 317 38.1
Tier 2 cities” 2 312 41.0 309 37.1
Tier 3 cities and below® 3T RIA T 126 16.6 202 24.2
Other markets® H s 3 0.4 5 0.6
Total 5t 760 100.0 833 100.0
(1) Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen. (1  dbt&= -~ B& - EMFERI -
(2)  Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered (2) B mos pEKEREHE

municipalities and most provincial capitals in Mainland China, plus
Baoding, Changzhou, Dalian, Langfang, Nantong, Ningbo, Qingdao, Wuxi,
Xuzhou and Yantai.

(3)  All cities in Mainland China except for tier 1 and tier 2 cities mentioned in
(1) and (2) above.

(4)  Taiwan, China, Hong Kong, China and Singapore.

mMEEEGWT - SMRE - BN

RE "By BHR BER 585 B
5 RINEIEE -
(3) Bk £ 3X()AN)PT AR e 247 9 T SN Y

B A B A RS o

(4 FREEE - hEFEMIINE -
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Business Review and Outlook
¥ROEREE

The table below sets forth the number of the Group’s Coucou
restaurants (“#") by region as at the dates indicated:

TREINARBPASEREE D
MERZERHE ([#]):

As at 31 December

R+=—H=+—8H

2024 2023

—E-E —T-=
# % # %
Tier 1 cities"” 1489w 70 35.6 91 354
Tier 2 cities®” 2483 108 54.8 143 55.6
Tier 3 cities® EF S 3 1.5 9 35
Other markets®” H b5 16 8.1 14 5.5
Total wmEt 197 100.0 257 100.0

(1) Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen.

(2)  Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered
municipalities and most provincial capitals in Mainland China, plus
Changzhou, Dalian, Foshan, Dongguan, Jiaxing, Nanning, Nantong,
Ningbo, Quanzhou, Xiamen, Suzhou, Wenzhou, Wuxi, Xuzhou, Zhuhai,
Qingdao, Huizhou, Jinhua and Zhongshan.

(3)  Taizhou, Zhangzhou and Huzhou.

(4)  Hong Kong, China, Taiwan, China and Singapore.

5 B BMALRYI

B BRSO - R B AR R B
AR EA BT - M - A
Bl R BB BT EAE
W SN EPT EM R - e
BN GBS BN SEARLL -

ZM BN AR o

HEIEE - P A EMH A
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Business Review and Outlook
¥ROEREE

Key operational information for the Group’s

restaurants

Set forth below are certain key performance indicators of the Group's

Xiabuxiabu restaurants by region for the years indicated:

FRAEEERENETELEER

TREIRFARFREAEEZi RS 5D
BRI EREAE T ERBRRER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2024 2023
—E-NF —ZEI=F
Net revenue (in RMB thousands) FURAANEREF )
Tier 1 cities'” 1 m" 1,227,399 1,470,699
Tier 2 cities"” 28 m? 754,260 1,006,216
Tier 3 cities and below" 3T R A T 417,595 584,335
Other markets®” Hfth T 45 37,230 20,173
Total et 2,436,484 3,081,423
Average spending per customer (RMB)” BEZE A EE (AR®T)®
Tier 1 cities"” 148 m" 55.5 63.4
Tier 2 cities” 26 m? 52.9 60.4
Tier 3 cities and below® 3T M AT 53.3 61.2
Other markets” Hfth g 145.4 131.4
54.8 62.2
Seat turnover rate (x)® BER(E)"°
Tier 1 cities"” 148 m" 3.1 3.2
Tier 2 cities? 2 m? 2.2 2.4
Tier 3 cities and below® 3 R AT 1.9 2.0
Other markets?” Hfth T 45 2.5 2.6
2.5 2.6
(1) Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen. (M dbm - B8 BMARY -
(2)  Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered (2) BLrLuguimosr PREKEREHE

municipalities and most provincial capitals in Mainland China, plus
Baoding, Changzhou, Dalian, Langfang, Nantong, Ningbo, Qingdao, Wuxi,
Xuzhou and Yantai.

All cities in Mainland China except for tier 1 and tier 2 cities mentioned in
(1) and (2) above.

Taiwan, China, Hong Kong, China and Singapore.

Calculated by dividing revenue generated from sales of Xiabuxiabu
restaurants for the year by total customer traffic of Xiabuxiabu restaurants
for the year.

Calculated by dividing total customer traffic by total Xiabuxiabu restaurant
operation days and average seat count of Xiabuxiabu restaurants during
the year, for the counterpart; calculated by dividing total customer traffic
by total Xiabuxiabu restaurant operation days and average table count of
Xiabuxiabu restaurants during the year, for the table part.

MMEREGWT - SMRE ~ BN
wMEES -

() B EX)RQM 1 R4 T 5
SEPN-LE TR

(4 FREEE- FEFEMIIME -

(5) LA A U g R IRy A R B S PR AS 1451)\[5?
AF AR EREBRERRETE

(6) MEARED Y - LA S IR I IR 0 A R B R
,u};mz[ﬁfu”é%ﬁéiﬁ%iﬁﬁii@%
LGS BURER D - LASE P I IR 1 O
AE%EEE#@/;mzﬁ%t/{ﬂﬁ”ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬂﬁfél%%
BEERRBRTHRMUEE -

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z — PUFF 3R 15

L]

Al



Business Review and Outlook
¥ROEREE

In 2024, revenue contribution from Xiabuxiabu and Coucou restaurants
continued to be the main source of revenue of the Group, and
contributed 96.3% as a percentage of the Group's total revenue.
In the face of the current fierce competition in the catering market,
Xiabuxiabu has achieved full-time supply, multi-scenario expansion and
regional customization to boost customer visits. In 2024, Xiabuxiabu still
achieved a commendable seat turnover rate of 2.5x, fully demonstrating
its solid operational strength. At the same time, Xiabuxiabu continuously
enriched delivery-made cooked food products, created a dining
environment and dining experience suitable for a specific period of time,
and strengthened the deep cultivation of business in southern China
while consolidating the stable growth of strong northern regions.

The table below sets forth same-store sales and sales growth of Group’s
Xiabuxiabu restaurants for the years indicated:

“Z M - R0 NOREE B RA
DMRAEERATIERR EAEELR
WABE 7L /R96.3% © H 4 & Al AR

BENERTS  WHEHEREER
Hig ZHESHE BEAES KR
THE P B E SRR - =T — [0 4 IR 0 0
B ERANAEIG T2 5B MBS @ 7
PERRNTESRENEZEN - HItH
B THRABIEXARERSE  TEE
ERFERBHOLERENMMERR =
Bt h B EEMREERRFR - 8
B R EE IR

TR BB P IR G E  ER (8 0 I 0 I
BOREHEREREEERE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t=-A=1+—BHBLEE

2024 2023
—E-MF —E=-=
Number of same-store* BEgE*
Tier 1 cities T 312
Tier 2 cities 28T 309
Tier 3 cities and below WM RIAT 183
Other markets Himmis 3
Total F 807
Same-store sales (in RMB million) EEHER(AREHER)
Tier 1 cities TER T 1,006.1 1,295.4
Tier 2 cities 28R T 659.8 864.4
Tier 3 cities and below BBEW T RIAT 369.2 499.7
Other markets Himis 21.7 22.5
Total st 2,056.8 2,682.0
Same-store sales growth (%) B /5 85 & 18 & (%)
Tier 1 cities V4R T (22.3)
Tier 2 cities 28R T (23.7)
Tier 3 cities and below 3T R T (26.1)
Other markets HAth T 5 (3.6)
(23.3)

* Including restaurants that commenced operations prior to the beginning of ™ BIELLRFERBATRGEE RN =

the years under comparison and opened for the same number of days in
both 2023 and 2024.

T —FER-ZZ_NERESFE R
NFAPIEEBEMERNERE -
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Set forth below are certain key performance indicators of the Group's
Coucou restaurants by region for the years indicated:

TREINRFARFEAEE RS 5D
MEZEENE T IEXRRIER

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HL&EE

2024 2023
ZENEF —T_=%F

Net revenue (in RMB thousands) FURA(ARET T

Tier 1 cities" TR " 1,141,792 1,019,596

Tier 2 cities” 2433 334,744 1,227,989

Tier 3 cities” 3™ 35,947 58,982

Other markets® Hmis? 362,714 311,236

Total et 1,875,197 2,617,803

Average spending per customer (RMB)® FEZE A EB (AR T)”

Tier 1 cities" (SN 122.3 140.9

Tier 2 cities” 243 119.8 130.0

Tier 3 cities” 3™ 112.8 129.3

Other markets®” Hipmg? 276.8 273.0

123.5 142.3

Table turnover rate (x)* M= (%)

Tier 1 cities"” (SN 1.6 2.2

Tier 2 cities” 28T 1.4 1.9

Tier 3 cities® 3R T 1.2 1.8

Other markets®” H A rig? 2.1 2.2

1.6 2.0

(1) Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou and Shenzhen. (M dbm B8 BMARY -

(2)  Except for the tier 1 cities mentioned above, all centrally administered Q) BLiagmmid PEAERAEE
municipalities and most provincial capitals in Mainland China, plus MHEZAGSWT - IMIEIN - K& -
Changzhou, Dalian, Foshan, Dongguan, Jiaxing, Nanning, Nantong, oIl R 2H FHE BB X
Ningbo, Quanzhou, Xiamen, Suzhou, Wenzhou, Wuxi, Xuzhou, Zhuhai, B SR BT B ORI R
Qingdao, Huizhou, Jinhua and Zhongshan. NGBS B @ERFL -

(3)  Taizhou, Zhangzhou and Huzhou. () T EIMFHIMN o

(4)  Hong Kong, China, Taiwan, China and Singapore. (4) HEFSL - PEEEMEINE -

(5)  Calculated by dividing revenue generated from sales of Coucou restaurants  (5)  LA%F )% )% 2 B8 36 & AT 15 WA B LA 4R
for the year by total customer traffic of Coucou restaurants for the year. NEZEEETBARETE -

(6)  For the dine-in part, this is calculated by dividing total sales number by ~ (6) ER#H UNERNZZEEHERE
total Coucou restaurant operation days and average table count of Coucou BRAZZEREX@RBRFHLN
restaurants during the year. For the delivery part, the delivery sales that YEtE  HNKE S - BEREEFIHE
equals to the average dine-in customer spending is regarded as one dine-in BESMNAHEER BHER
customer. EREFHNES -
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Business Review and Outlook

FBOENRRE

In 2024, due to the impact of economic downturn, the dine-in customer
flow of Coucou restaurants could not fully restore, and the table
turnover rate of Coucou restaurants slightly decreased from 2.0x in
2023 to 1.6x in 2024. Average spending per customer was RMB123.5
in 2024, compared to RMB142.3 in 2023, representing a decrease of
13.2% as compared with that in 2023. In response to the changes in
the market environment, Coucou began trying to increase customer
traffic to dine-in through online platforms in 2024.

The table below sets forth same-store sales and sales growth of Group’s

Coucou restaurants for the years indicated:

RZZEZNF  AREETTEE &
EEBEERBERAETEME  HEEE
EHNBRERA S _=FH20EKE
THRE-_Z_NFMI6HE - T _N4F
BERAGEEARARKI1235T MZF
TEERAREI3T BB -=F
TF13.2% R ERBH LTS REE
It EZE-_NFHRABERBBE T

BEIREEZRHEE -

TERBIINARFEAEBEEEMEN
FEHE RN RRE

For the year ended 31 December

BEE+t-A=1t—-BHLHEE

2024 2023
“ENE —E=-=
Number of same-store* EEHE"
Tier 1 cities 148/ 92
Tier 2 cities 28T 139
Tier 3 cities 3™ 9
Other markets Hih s 14
Total wst 254
Same-store sales (in RMB million) BEHEE(ARYEHEER)
Tier 1 cities 1R T 572.4 904.0
Tier 2 cities 26T 699.8 1,121.0
Tier 3 cities 3R 25.0 47.2
Other markets Hihmig 337.8 331.3
Total FEE 1,635.0 2,403.5
Same-store sales growth (%) [ & 65 & BE 1T R (%)
Tier 1 cities 14T (36.7)
Tier 2 cities 28T (37.6)
Tier 3 cities 3R (47.0)
Other markets H g 2.0
(32.0)

* Including restaurants that commenced operations prior to the beginning of * BB FERHBIBEBEELN

the years under comparison and opened for the same number of days in

both 2023 and 2024.

T CFERZFZNFMEAFTEHME
NFAPIEEBEMARNERE -
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OUTLOOK FOR 2025
Business Outlook

In 2024, the domestic consumer market as a whole showed a recovery
trend, but there were changes in the structure of consumption, with
certain consumers preferring products and services with high cost
performance.

Looking ahead to 2025, expanding domestic demand and boosting
consumption will remain the key driving forces for China’s economic
growth. The government will continue to stimulate consumption
potential through policy guidance, particularly through digital and
innovative services to enhance consumer experience. In terms of
monetary policy, the interest rate is expected to remain low, which
will be conducive to reducing corporate financing costs and promoting
investment and consumption.

The Group will continue to focus on ensuring the quality and safety of
ingredients, improving the dining experience, and enhancing customer
brand recognition. Facing intense market competition, we will further
capitalize on our strengths in supply chain, reputation and scale to
boost competitiveness through innovative services and products.

Going into 2025, the Group will continue to implement the following
strategies:

In 2025, the Xiabuxiabu brand will focus on its presence in the market
such as Beijing, Hebei, Shanghai, Guangzhou, and Shenzhen, so as to
create a bright image of value mini hotpot through high-quality products
and classic set meal. The Group plans to open not less than 95 restaurants
under the Xiabuxiabu brand in 2025 with the seat turnover rate of at least
3x. The goal is to enhance the appeal and influence of the Xiabuxiabu
brand and further consolidate the market share of existing restaurants.
We strive to open more high-profit new restaurants at top-level projects
such as large-scale entertainment theme parks, airports, and train stations,
which are high-traffic locations.

In 2025, Coucou will adopt a prudent strategy for restaurant opening,
selecting only premium shopping malls in Mainland China to open
restaurants, and will collaborate with reputable commercial properties of
strong brand to enhance brand momentum, focusing on quality instead of
quantity.

—EHERE

XBRE

oG BRERTIBERRAR
REAEE  EHBAWERBL - DY
BE T AR B L 0 @ MR -

RE-_Z_HF HBAAFTNREBE
DHRTEEERENERZRES ) - &
FiT A B BB IR 51 8 - BHEE

5 Bl 2 3R B B AL BT AR 7% 2R AR THE
ERR - NEBHRREKER KHNXRE
BAHERE SHANNBELXRE
PR - R EREMBEE -

AEEREEZENRERVELIRE
2 RNEREEBRLEREFHMER
Rl R - EE AR WS HF - B HE
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BB R FE mRBTHE S -

E-Z 1% AEERBEERTT
R

ZE AT RIEEEREEEHIER
ik~ BB BN RIERES - BB
BHEMMEHREZRITESEEL /X
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In 2024, the Group continued to deepen its global strategic layout
and strengthened its competitiveness in overseas markets through
a dual-track strategy of “localization + brand upgrading”. In terms
of major markets in the Asia-Pacific region, the Group dedicated to
building the international image of the “Coucou” brand, successfully
achieving a strategic transformation breakthrough from single region to
all regions. In terms of the Hong Kong market, while consolidating the
stable operations of its 11 restaurants in Hong Kong, the Group opened
one new directly operated restaurant and aggressively entered the
Taiwan market as a “Taiwanese Hotpot Culture Ambassador”. The first
restaurant in Taiwan was opened at Taipei Dome, featuring the dual
selling points of “traditional soup base flavors + modern and stylish
space”, and integrating traditional and innovative elements. Upon
opening, it quickly became one of the popular local dining brands,
showing its strong cross-cultural adaptability.

The Xiabuxiabu brand focused on locking target customer group,
starting from promoting product competitiveness upgrade and
brand value upgrade to continuously implement the following “Four
Optimisations” strategies: (1) product variety enrichment: developing
products for all time periods to form a diversified product matrix; (2)
excellent set meal advantages: the set meal is adjusted to a new model,
and the advantages of beef and lamb industry are created based on
Yishun; (3) personalised member experience: care and warmth are
conveyed to our customers through the integration of membership
digital marketing and brand culture, and Xiabuxiabu launches popular
co-branded peripheral products with internationally renowned brand
images; and (4) refined operations: we deeply focus on student
customer groups, timely launching student monthly cards and exclusive
student set meal packages, and refining operations for student customer
groups of all age segments.

In 2025, Coucou will continue to focus on the development of its menu,
including the variety of dishes, the monthly new product plan and the
customer ordering experience.

Membership operations will remain a key focus in 2025, with the brand
significantly optimizing its previous community operation efforts to
enhance member engagement and repurchase rates.

For the development of new customer groups, we shall remain focus
on the university students as the main target, and actively develop
corporate customers to dine-in the restaurant.
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The Group will continue to strengthen its global supply chain system to
consolidate cost advantages. In terms of product strategy, the “pyramid
price principle” will be adopted in markets covering all customer
groups. The Group will offer an immersive dining experience through
the Coucou brand in the high-end segment, and reinforce the youthful
image in mid-range market through the Xiabuxiabu brand, while also
develop light catering to expand into lower-tier market.

Xiabuxiabu restaurant will make continuous innovations to upgrade and
enrich its product offering while continuing to serve the classic delicacy
of the Xiabuxiabu brand. In 2025, Xiabuxiabu will launch a variety of
creative and delicious new products, such as the refreshing tangerine
salt soup base with “a sweet and sour taste”, New Zealand Romney
lamb chops from 6-month-old lambs raised on natural pastures in New
Zealand, as well as Chinese hamburgers with selected high-quality pork
belly and crispy skin, and the delicious and crispy boneless chicken with
a spicy flavor, etc. The tomato soup base, mushroom soup base, and
Sukiyaki soup base will be upgraded and iterated to create a fresher and
more diverse product matrix, satisfying consumers’ more varied choices
of dishes.

Coucou will continue to supplement and expand its product matrix
of soup bases in 2025, planning for each restaurant to offer about
10 new soup bases for consumers to choose from, so as to meet the
taste preferences of different groups of customers. In terms of other
dishes, Coucou will also continue to innovate according to consumers’
preference to create hot and special dishes.

The Group has focused on rapid response to consumer demands as a
core starting point, to enhance overall supply chain efficiency, control
costs, and improve core competitiveness through optimizing resource
allocation, process management, and technology application, so as to
ensure the freshness of ingredients from source to dining table to the
maximum extent. At the same time, the Group has reduced inventory
costs and the risk of stockouts through precise demand forecasting and
rational inventory structure configuration. In addition, the Group has
maintained a win-win attitude by sharing information with upstream
suppliers and achieving data transparency through the SRM system.
The Group has established a comprehensive supplier management
system, dynamically adjusting supplier cooperation strategies based
on performance evaluations (such as quality, delivery time, and cost).
On the technical front, the Group is data-driven and results-oriented,
continuously optimizing the precision of procurement demand forecasts
by integrating its own operational characteristics, market trend changes,
seasonal factors, and regional consumer preferences. The Group has
leveraged the advantages of big data to achieve real-time monitoring of
supply chain indicators and in-depth analysis of various business data.
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In 2024, the Company continued to actively recruit externally
for regional managers and operation managers, implemented a
performance evaluation policy that promoted meritocracy and allowed
for both upward and downward mobility, optimized the structure
of management personnel, and enhanced brand competitiveness.
Coucou brand division further vigorously launched the “Elite Store
Manager” internal training and external recruitment project during
this year. Dozens of experienced and capable high-quality restaurant
manager candidates were recruited nationwide to strengthen frontline
operational management by boldly employing young and energetic
talents, which played a positive role in enhancing restaurant service
quality and operational performance. Xiabuxiabu brand division will
continuously strengthen its campus recruitment plan, and collaborate
with more institutions to select young, high-quality, innovative, and
energetic personnel while promoting the company brand, products, and
employer brand during campus recruitment, continuously enhance the
awareness and favorability of this segment of young consumers towards
the Group's brand.

In terms of incentive mechanism, continuous optimization and
improvement of the incentive mechanism within the operational system
are carried out to encourage employees to focus on performance,
sales and profits improvement, so as to achieve a win-win situation
between the Company and employees. Moreover, the bonus mechanism
for certain functional departments closely related to operations has
been further improved, thereby linking the bonus mechanism with
performance results to promote a results-oriented performance culture.
The appraisal cycle has been changed from annual to monthly to
enhance employees’ attention to performance, quick response and full
cooperation and support.

The Group will adhere to the concept of brand strategic upgrading
and build competitive advantages through three major dimensions:
firstly, the Group will focus on deepening brand value, creating a
differentiated product matrix through refined operations to precisely
meet the needs of core customer groups, and relying on innovative
design and scenario-based presentation to construct an immersive
sensory experience. Secondly, the Group will establish a diversified
communication matrix, integrating digital media ecosystems (self-media
operations + precise placement), outdoor landmark exposure,
and a deep interaction system with members to achieve a unified
enhancement of brand awareness and effectiveness. At the same
time, the Group will strengthen the communication of product value,
showcase the core competitiveness of its products in a three-dimensional
manner through story based marketing and experiential consumption
scenarios, thus building a complete path from brand awareness to
consumption transformation.
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The Group will continue to strengthen the advantages of cross-brand
synergies, using the “membership all-you-can-eat card” as the core
vehicle to build a comprehensive membership service matrix including
Xiabuxiabu, Coucou Hotpot, Tea Mi Tea and Xiabu Food. Through
precise membership operation strategies, the Group will deepen
the full life-cycle interaction with high-net-worth members across
dimensions such as the integration of consumption scenarios, product
portfolio innovation and the extension of value-added services, fully
demonstrating the strategic value of “one-stop catering consumption
solution”, and continuously enhancing brand stickiness among loyal
customer groups. In 2024, the Group added nearly 5.03 million new
members through the Group’s membership system with a cumulative
total of approximately 42 million members. The number of member
consumption almost reached 7.20 million, and the frequency of member
consumption increased to 3.33 times, which was increased by 1.4x
year-on-year. At the same time, over 2 million all-you-can-eat cards
were sold in 2024, with an amount exceeding RMB420 million. The
member consumption frequency of the all-you-can eat card increased
by 3x as compared with that of ordinary members, and the per capita
repurchase spending amounted to RMB488, representing an increase
of 1.5x as compared with that of ordinary members, thus laying a good
foundation for improving customer loyalty in the long run.
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Management Discussion and Analysis
EEEN®R DM

Year ended 31 December Year-
BE+T-RA=+—-HLEE on-year
2024 2023 change
—E-mEF —E-=F [l by
RMB'000 % RMB'000 % %
AR¥T R ARBFT
Revenue WA 4,754,843 100.0 5,917,962 100.0 (19.7)
Other income H At U A 57,402 1.2 139,798 2.4 (58.9)
Raw materials and T A R M R R FEM
consumables used (1,672,795) (35.2) (2,214,423) (37.4) (24.5)
Staff costs 8 T A (1,612,569) (33.9) (1,862,892) (31.5) (13.4)
Property rentals and related %M & KIEEH X
expenses (298,094) (6.3) (311,085) (5.3) (4.2)
Utilities expenses UNGES S35 (197,188) (4.1) (225,872) (3.8) (12.7)
Depreciation and MEREH
amortisation (777,245) (16.3) (928,600) (15.7) (16.3)
Other expenses Hihfix (368,744) (7.8) (431,620) (7.3) (14.6)
Other gains and losses Hib s &g E (203,662) (4.3) (135,213) (2.3) 50.6
Finance costs B 75 X AR (71,084) (1.5) (72,430) (1.2) (1.9)
Loss before tax BATE R (389,136) (8.2) (124,375) 2.1) 212.9
Income tax expense TSR (9,341) (0.2) (70,070) (1.2) (86.7)
Loss for the year FREE (398,477) (8.4) (194,445) (3.3) 104.9
Total comprehensive FREZEMAIHEE
expense for the year (398,477) (8.4) (194,445) (3.3) 104.9
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Revenue

The Group's revenue decreased by 19.7% from RMB5,918.0 million in
2023 to RMB4,754.8 million in 2024. The Group closed 138 Xiabuxiabu
restaurants and 73 Coucou restaurants in 2024 as a result of the
intense competition in the industry and rational consumer demand,
resulting in the overall revenue of the catering industry in 2024
showing a year-on-year decline. Nevertheless, facing the challenges
mentioned above during the year, revenue from the Xiabuxiabu
decreased by 13.1% from RMB3,023.9 million in 2023 to RMB2,629.2
million in 2024; and revenue from Coucou decreased by 26.5% from
RMB2,651.9 million in 2023 to RMB1,948.3 million in 2024. On the
other hand, revenue from the condiment products increased by 5.7%
from RMB122.0 million in 2023 to RMB129.0 million in 2024 mainly
attributable to the increase in sales through the online e-commerce
channel in 2024, which resulted in the addition of frozen products.

Other income

The Group’s other income decreased by 58.9% from RMB139.8 million
in 2023 to RMB57.4 million in 2024, mainly due to the decrease in
subsidies received in 2024 as a result of the expiry of the deduction
policy of value-added tax at the end of 2023.

Raw materials and consumables used

The Group's raw materials and consumables cost decreased by 24.5%
from RMB2,214.4 million in 2023 to RMB1,672.8 million in 2024,
which was attributable to the decrease in restaurant traffic and sales.
Benefiting from the advantages of centralised procurement and the
improvement of ingredients utilisation, the Group’s cost of raw materials
and consumables in 2024 as a percentage of the Group's revenue
decreased from 37.4% in 2023 to 35.2% in 2024, thereby effectively
reducing the average procurement unit price.
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Staff costs

The Group’s staff costs decreased by 13.4% from RMB1,862.9 million
in 2023 to RMB1,612.6 million in 2024, and the number of the Group's
employees decreased from 28,665 as at 31 December 2023 to 22,504
as at 31 December 2024. The decrease in staff costs was mainly due to
the closure of some loss-making restaurants.

Property rentals and related expenses

The Group’s property rental and related expenses decreased by 4.2%
from RMB311.1 million in 2023 to RMB298.1 million in 2024, which
was mainly due to the closure of loss-making restaurants in 2024
leading to a decrease in total rental cost. Such saving in rental cost
was partially offset by (i) decrease in property fee concessions and rent
reductions in shopping malls in 2024 as compared to 2023; and (ii)
property rentals in 2024 were significantly higher than in the previous
year, resulting in an overall increase in property rentals. As a result of
the aforementioned factors, and in light of the lower revenue recorded
in 2024 as compared to 2023, the Group’s property rental and related
expenses as a percentage of the Group's revenue increased from 5.3%
in 2023 t0 6.3% in 2024.

Utilities expenses

The Group's utilities expenses decreased by 12.7% from RMB225.9
million in 2023 to RMB197.2 million in 2024 mainly due to a net
decrease in the number of restaurants by 141 in 2024. Utility expenses
as a percentage of the Group’s revenue increased slightly from 3.8% in
2023 t0 4.1% in 2024.
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Depreciation and amortisation

The Group’'s depreciation and amortisation decreased by 16.3%
from RMB928.6 million in 2023 to RMB777.2 million in 2024, mainly
attributable to (i) the closure of 138 Xiabuxiabu restaurants and 73
Coucou restaurants in 2024; (ii) the decrease in amortisation as a result
of the expansion of the Group’s small-sized restaurant model; and (iii)
decrease in provision of depreciation and amortisation as a result of
the increase in impairment losses on certain non-current assets in 2024
compared to the same period in 2023. Depreciation and amortisation
as a percentage of revenue increased from 15.7% in 2023 to 16.3% in
2024.

Other expenses

The Group’s other expenses decreased by 14.6% from RMB431.6
million in 2023 to RMB368.7 million in 2024, which was attributable
to the Group’s cost control measures implemented in 2024 including
(i) optimising supply chain planning and reducing logistics costs
through digital distribution modelling; (ii) utilising warranty services and
insurance to effectively reduce maintenance expense; and (iii) adjusting
office staff structure to effectively reduce office and administrative
expenses. Despite the decrease in other expenses as mentioned above,
such expenses as a percentage of the Group’s revenue was slightly
increased from 7.3% in 2023 to 7.8% in 2024.

Other gains and losses

The Group recorded other net losses of RMB203.7 million in 2024,
mainly because of the loss on closure of restaurants and impairment
losses totaling approximately RMB262.0 million due to factors such as
the closure or ongoing losses of some restaurants for the year ended 31
December 2024, as compared to the impairment losses of RMB164.3
million made in the previous year (see Note 9 to the consolidated
financial statements).

Finance costs

The Group recorded finance costs of RMB71.1 million in 2024, mainly
derived from interest on lease liabilities of RMB59.2 million.
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Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expenses in 2024 amounted to RMB9.3
million as compared to an income tax expense of RMB70.1 million
in 2023. This was due to a decrease in deferred tax assets of certain
subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 December 2024 as compared to
the corresponding period in 2023.

Liquidity and capital resources

In 2024, the Group financed its operations primarily through cash from
the Group’s operations.

Cash and cash equivalents

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of RMB362.7 million, which primarily consisted of cash on hand and
demand deposits and which were mainly denominated in Renminbi (as
t0 62.9%), U.S. dollars (as to 18.6%), Hong Kong dollars (as to 14.5%),
Taiwan New dollars (as to 2.3%) and Singapore dollars (as to 1.7%).
The balance of cash and cash equivalents as at 31 December 2024
increased by approximately RMB233.3 million as compared with that of
RMB129.4 million as at 31 December 2023, which was mainly due to
the maturity of certain financial products at the end of 2024.

In view of the Group’s currency mix, the Group currently does not
use any derivative contracts to hedge against the Group’s exposure
to currency risk. The Group’s management manages the currency risk
by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign currency rates and
considering hedging significant foreign currency exposure should such
need arise.
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Financial assets at FVTPL

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had financial assets at FVTPL which
amounted to RMB587.0 million in aggregate, which mainly represented
financial products (the “Financial Products”) issued by Bank of
Industrial Bank Co., Ltd. and Fubon Bank (China) Co., Ltd. and China
International Capital Corporation Wealth Management, China Galaxy
Securities Co., Ltd., and COFCO Trust. Such products are investments
with no predetermined or guaranteed return and are not principal
protected, with an expected return rate ranging from 1.22% to 5.21%
per annum. In particular, two of the financial products of RMB132.8
million were classified as non-current assets due to their maturity date
in 2028. The realized gain from the Financial Products of approximately
RMB27.3 million was recorded in 2024 as changes in fair value of
financial assets designated as financial assets at FVTPL.

The Group generally subscribed for the financial products on a revolving
basis, which means that the Group would subscribe for additional
financial products when the terms of certain financial products
previously subscribed for by the Company expired. Subscriptions of
financial products were made for treasury management purposes to
maximize the return on the unutilized funds of the Group after taking
into account, among others, the level of risk, return on investment,
liguidity and the term to maturity. Generally, the Group had in the past
selected short-term financial products issued by reputable commercial
banks and investment fund companies that had relatively low associated
risk. Prior to making an investment, the Group had also ensured that
there remained sufficient working capital for the Group’s business
needs, operating activities and capital expenditures even after making
the investments in such financial products. Although the financial
products were marketed as wealth management products which
were not principal protected nor with pre-determined or guaranteed
return, the underlying investments were in line with the internal risk
management, cash management and investment policies of the Group
and the Company had fully recovered the principal and received the
expected returns upon the redemption or maturity of similar financial
products in the past.

In view of an upside of earning a more attractive return than current
saving or fixed deposit rate under the low interest rate trend, as well
as a relatively short term of maturity of the Financial Products, the
Directors are of the view that the Financial Products pose relatively
low risk to the Group and the terms and conditions of each of the
subscriptions are fair and reasonable and are in the interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.
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There was no single financial product in the Group’s investment
portfolio that has a carrying amount that accounted for more than 5%
of the Group’s total assets as at 31 December 2024.

None of the subscription of the financial products during the year
ended 31 December 2024, individually or collectively when aggregation
is required, constitute a discloseable transaction under Chapter 14 of
the Listing Rules.

Indebtedness

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had short-term bank borrowings
of RMB380.4 million that were made in Renminbi at a fixed interest rate
from 0.46% to 3.65% per annum and are expected to mature within 1
year.

Gearing ratio

As at 31 December 2024, the Group’s gearing ratio was 45.0%.
Gearing ratio was calculated by dividing bank and other borrowings by
total equity as at the same date and multiply by 100%.

Capital expenditures

The Group made payment for the capital expenditures of RMB237.8
million in 2024 for new restaurant openings, refurbishment of existing
restaurants and purchase of new equipment. In 2023, the Group's
capital expenditures were RMB431.6 million. In 2024, the Group opened
a total of 78 new restaurants. The Group's capital expenditure in 2024
was funded primarily by cash generated from its operations.

Pledge of assets

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had pledged certain land, plant
and machinery with a carrying amount of RMB12.3 million to obtain
bank borrowings of RMB50.0 million. As at 31 December 2024, the
Company had pledged bank deposits of RMB26.1 million as securities
for bank borrowings.

Contingent liabilities and guarantees

As at 31 December 2024, the Group did not have any significant
unrecorded contingent liabilities, guarantees or any litigation against
the Group.
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Significant investments held, material acquisitions and
future plans for major investment

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group did not conduct
any material investments, acquisitions or disposals. As at 31 December
2024, the Group has no significant investments held and specific future
plan for major investment or acquisition for major capital assets or
other businesses. As part of the business expansion plan, the Group will
continue to identify new opportunities for business development.

Employee and remuneration policies

As at 31 December 2024, the Group had a total of 22,504 employees
(2023: 28,665). In particular, 152 employees worked at the Group’s
food processing facilities, 2,708 were responsible for restaurant
management, 18,686 were restaurant staff and 958 were administrative
staff.

The Group offers competitive wages and other benefits to the Group's
restaurant employees to manage employee attrition. The Group also
offers profit sharing in the form of discretionary performance bonus as
further incentive to the Group's restaurant staff if specific restaurant
target is achieved. The Group’s staff costs include all salaries and
benefits payable to all the Group’s employees and staff, including the
Group’s executive Directors, headquarters staff and food processing
facilities staff.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the total staff costs of the
Group (including salaries, bonuses, social insurances, provident funds
and share incentive schemes) amounted to RMB1,612.6 million,
representing approximately 33.9% of the total revenue of the Group.

Final Dividend

The Directors have resolved not to recommend the payment of a final
dividend to the Shareholders for the year ended 31 December 2024.
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Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management

EERSREEERE

DIRECTORS

Executive Director

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (& ¥ ), aged 61, is the Chairman of the Board,
an executive Director and the chief executive officer. He was appointed
as chairman and executive Director on 14 May 2008 and appointed
as chief executive officer on 20 May 2021. He is primarily responsible
for formulating overall development strategies and business plans, and
managing overall operation of our Group. Mr. Ho is also a director
of each of the subsidiaries of our Group. Mr. Ho has over 20 years of
experiences in the food and beverage industry. Mr. Ho founded our
business in 1998 and continues to oversee the management of our
operations and business. He established our first restaurant in Beijing
in 1999 and has guided our operations and business in adhering to
quality and innovation in our operations since our establishment.
Mr. Ho was awarded the “Most Influential Entrepreneur of Food and
Beverage Industry in China in 2015 2015 EHhHERFATE N1
#R)" and the "Most Influential Entrepreneur of Hotpot Industry in
China in 2015 (2015 FEHBEANMITEZAFE NP EK)" by China
Cuisine Association (Bl Z£F1<). Mr. Ho also serves as a director
of the Eighth Session of the Board of Directors of Beijing Overseas
Friendship Association and has been the Vice Chairman of the Beijing
Association of Taiwanese-Invested Enterprises. Mr. Ho is the husband
of Ms. Chen Su-Yin, our non-executive Director. Mr. Ho is also a
substantial shareholder (within the meaning of the Securities and
Futures Ordinance) of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Chen Su-Yin (BR¥&E ), aged 61, is a non-executive Director. She
was appointed to our Board on 12 December 2012 and is primarily
responsible for providing strategic advices and guidance on the business
development of our Group. Ms. Chen is also a director of each of the
subsidiaries of our Group. Ms. Chen has continued to provide guidance
on the range and variety of foods offered and the enhancement of the
tastes and flavors of our foods and the development of our dipping
sauces and our hot and spicy soup base since our establishment. Our
hot and spicy soup base was awarded “Beijing Specialty Cuisine” by
Beijing Cuisine Association. Ms. Chen graduated from Taipei Ching-
Chwan Commercial High School in June 1981. Ms. Chen is the spouse
of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi.
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Ms. Li Jie (Z3&), aged 44, was appointed as an alternate Director to
Mr. Zhang Chi with effect from 30 June 2018 and re-designated as a
non-executive Director on 25 November 2022. Ms. Li is currently an
Operating Principal at General Atlantic as part of the firm’s Resources
Group and focuses on providing financial and analytical expertise to
the portfolio companies in China. She currently serves as a board
member of Today Inc. and Little Golden Star Education Group Holdings
Limited. She previously served as a non-executive director of Tenfu
(Cayman) Holdings Company Limited (stock code: 6868) from August
2018 to March 2020. Prior to joining General Atlantic in 2018, Ms. Li
was the chief financial officer at Global Logistic Properties (GLP) in the
Financial Services segment. Prior to that, she was the chief financial
officer of Yunmanman (YMM), a logistic platform start-up company.
Ms. Li also has over 10 years financial due diligence experience with
PricewaterhouseCoopers Transaction Services in China and Australia
merger and acquisition markets. Ms. Li earned her bachelor degree
in international journalism from the Shanghai International Studies
University as well as a second degree in civil law from Fudan University
in July 2002.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence (§84§ %), aged 65, is an independent
non-executive Director. He was appointed to our Board on 28 November
2014. Mr. Hon has over 35 years of experience in accounting,
treasury and financial management. He is currently an independent
non-executive director of 361 Degrees International Limited (stock code:
1361), Daphne International Holdings Limited (stock code: 210) and
SinoMab Bioscience Limited (stock code: 3681), which are listed on the
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong. He was an independent non-executive
director of Jimu Group Limited (stock code: 8187) from December
2017 to May 2021. He also served as the chief financial officer and the
company secretary of DTXS Silk Road Investment Holdings Company
Limited (stock code: 620) from December 2016 to September 2018.
Prior to that, Mr. Hon was appointed to various senior financial
positions in a number of companies, including as the chief financial
officer and the company secretary of Auto Italia Holdings Limited
(stock code: 720) from June 2013 to March 2016, as the chief financial
officer of China Dongxiang (Group) Co., Ltd. (stock code: 3818) from
December 2010 to September 2012, as the chief financial officer of K.
Wah Construction Materials Limited from September 2008 to December
2010 and as the group finance director (latest position) of TOM Group
Limited (stock code: 2383) from June 2001 to February 2008. Before
moving to commercial sector, Mr. Hon worked with an international
accounting firm for more than seven years. He is a fellow member of
the Association of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Hon
obtained his Master’s degree in Business Administration (Financial
Services) from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in August 2004.
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Ms. Cheung Sze Man ((R5F 8() , aged 54, is an independent
non-executive Director. She was appointed to our Board on 28
November 2014. Ms. Cheung has accumulated audit experience in
an international accounting firm and has substantial experiences in
corporate finance, accounting and human resource management by
holding senior positions in private and public listed companies. She has
also served as directors of listed companies in Hong Kong. She was an
executive director of China Ocean Shipbuilding Industry Group Limited
(stock code: 651 and formerly known as Wonson International Holdings
Ltd), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
(delisted on 4 August 2023), from November 2006 to November 2007.
She was an executive director of ITC Properties Group Limited (stock
code: 199 and formerly known as Cheung Tai Hong), a company listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange, from May 2004 to May
2005. She also served as the independent non-executive director of
21 Holdings Limited (stock code: 1003 and currently known as Huanxi
Media Group Limited), a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange, from November 2011 to April 2014. Ms. Cheung is a member
of both the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and
CPA Australia. Ms. Cheung graduated from the University of Auckland
in New Zealand with a Bachelor of Commerce degree and a Bachelor
of Arts degree in May 1995. She also obtained a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Bradford in the United
Kingdom in July 2012.
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Mr. Kot Man Tat (E3#), aged 53, is an independent non-executive
Director. He was appointed to our Board on 1 April 2022. Mr. Kot has
over 20 years' experience in accounting and financial management.
He has been the chief financial officer of Joy Spreader Interactive
Technology Limited (stock code: 6988, currently known as Joy Spreader
Group Inc.) from 24 May 2021. He was the supervisor of Xiabuxiabu
(China) Food Co., Limited (MR R (R ) RmABEMRAF), a
60%-owned subsidiary of the Company, from 27 May 2017 to 9 March
2022, the supervisor of Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Tianjin)
Co., Limited (M RFHZERKEE (CKE) AR 2 7)), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company, from 29 December 2017 to 9 March 2022,
the supervisor of Coucou (Tianjin) Catering Management Co., Limited
(BE(KE)ZEHEEER2AAF), a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, from 10 May 2018 to 9 March 2022, the supervisor of
Guang Qi (Tianjin) Commercial Management Limited (3¢ =% (K3#) i %
EIE AR AT, a company wholly owned by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, the
substantial shareholder and an executive director of the Company, from
29 December 2017 to 9 March 2022, and the supervisor of Tea Mi Tea
Catering Management Co., Ltd, a company wholly-owned by Mr. Ho
Kuang-Chi, from 20 July 2018 to 9 March 2022. He was the chief
financial officer of China Zhongwang Holdings Limited (stock code:
1333, delisted on 13 April 2023) from 28 June 2016 to 1 May 2021.
He served as the vice president from June 2008 to June 2011 and the
senior vice president from March 2013 to April 2016 of General Atlantic
(Beijing) Investments Consultancy Limited. He was the head of Capital
Market of Zhongsheng Group Holdings Co. Limited from 1 July 2011
to 28 February 2013. On 24 August 2023, he has been appointed as
an independent non-executive director of Beijing Jingkelong Company
Limited (At R R EEFEXEE KD AR QA) (stock code 814, a
company listed on the main Board of the Stock Exchange). Prior to this,
Mr. Kot worked in Ernst & Young from 4 April 2001 to 30 November
2004 and KPMG from 12 August 1999 to 1 April 2001. Mr. Kot
graduated from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1996 with a
bachelor’s degree in business administration.
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Senior Management

Mr. Feng Hui-Huang (JE1&J2), aged 60, is the vice president of the
finance department of the Group and a director of Nichen Food (Tianjin)
Co., Ltd. (ARE M (K)2) AR A F]), a 50%-owned joint venture
of the Group. He joined the Group in November 2021. Mr. Feng
possesses years of experience in financial management and corporate
management. Before joining the Group, he served in several enterprises,
including as deputy general manager of the general manager office of
Shanghai Yashi Catering Management Co. Ltd. ( LB BEEHEBER
ANE]), a subsidiary of Bon Matin Paris Group, and as financial controller
of Shanghai Cimic Tile Co., Ltd. ( E/BHI K2 LB AR M AR A F)
(stock code: 002162, currently known as Shanghai Everjoy Health Group
Co., Ltd., listed on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange). He currently serves
as supervisors in Shanghai Yashi Catering Management Co. Ltd. ( /&
WEEREH AR AT, Shanghai Maiya Food Co. Ltd. ( LiG#EHER
fn A PR A &]) and Enman Catering Management (Shanghai) Co. Ltd. (&
SEREIE (L)) ABMRAT). Mr. Feng obtained a master’s degree in
business administration from University of Memphis in December 1993.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report of the Company
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2024.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company. The principal activities
of the Group are the operation of casual hotpot restaurants and
providing other catering services. The principal activities and other
particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company are set out in Note 38 to
the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS

The consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December
2024, and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated
cash flows for the year then ended are set out on pages 90 to 96.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group’s business and operations for the year is set
out in the sections headed “Business Review and Outlook” and
“Management Discussion and Analysis” from pages 11 to 31 of this
annual report which constitute part of this directors’ report.
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Environmental Policies and Performance

The Group exercised the philosophy of sustainable development by
implementing comprehensive green transformation to the full industrial
chain of the catering industry, covering all aspects including production,
processing, logistics, and sales. The Company strictly complied with
relevant laws and regulations, such as the Environmental Protection
Law of the PRC, Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Control of
Environmental Pollution Caused by Solid Waste and Anti-food Waste
Law of the PRC, proactively responded to the national policies of the
“Dual Carbon Goal”, “Plastic Limit Order” and “Anti-food Waste”,
conscientiously enhanced the low-carbon green operational and
managerial philosophy. During the year, the Company continued its
efforts in the energy conservation and emission reduction in terms
of production, office affairs, logistics and restaurant operation, etc.
It also adhered to low-carbon operation, improved the utilization
efficiency of resources, reduced the generation of wastes, and
actively practiced waste sorting. Meanwhile, the Company promotes
the concept of anti-food waste through various channels, guiding
consumers to participate in environmental protection actions. In
order to mitigate climate change, the Group made positive actions
from multiple dimensions to promote the harmonious development
between the enterprise and environment, contributing its significant
share in the co-construction of a green ecology. In 2024, no violations,
litigations and punishments, etc. in relation to environmental issues
were occurred to the Company, demonstrating a strong awareness
of corporate environmental responsibility. Discussions on the Group’s
environmental policies and performance during the year are contained
in the Environmental, Social and Governance (“ESG") Report 2024 of
the Company.

Relationships with Stakeholders

The Company maintains its communication with stakeholders,
establishes diverse communication channels, continuously listens
to the expectations and demands of stakeholders, and responds to
their opinions in a timely manner. Details of the relationship with
stakeholders are set out in the ESG Report 2024 of the Company

Compliance with the Relevant Laws and Regulations

The Group had complied with all relevant PRC laws and regulations in
all material respects and have obtained all material licenses, approvals
and permits from relevant regulatory authorities for all of its restaurants
opened in 2024. During the Reporting Period, there was no material
breach of or non-compliance with the relevant PRC laws and regulations
by the Group.

The Company's corporate governance principles and practices are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report from pages 66 to 83 of this
annual report.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties

TERRRETEEMS

Set out below are identified principal risks and uncertainties facing by  AEEEEA 2R &K THEE M A &
the Group as well as a summary of the steps taken to mitigate these 9 Bll$t %52 =15 5% AT BREX 80 48 7 +8 1 10

risks:

Principal Risks and Uncertainties

TERBERTEEME

™

Controls and Mitigation

BRI RERBER

Risks related to weak growth in new customer
traffic and insufficient consumption and
repeated purchase during the weak economic
recovery period

FHAKBBERERRNEERERZ - BE
BRI EHER

Making full use of the Group’s multi-brand and
multi-scenario aggregation advantages. Leveraging on
the Group’s all-you-can-eat card as a link, independent
brands gave full play to the Group’s advantages, increased
customer traffic with each other, broke the restrictions
of high-end and low-end customer groups in different
consumption periods and different consumption scenarios,
increased the frequency of consumption, and drove the
repeated purchase of brands.

FONAERZRE Z5ENBRSEE  EBETmEE
NMBAERBEZRMERMAT  ROBEEEEY - BHER
THReEREE TRAEERR TRAEESRETHAR
H - IRAEBIER  MNEmEER -

With the private domain membership group built by
the Group s all-you-can-eat card, the Group can more
accurately contact consumers, and regularly push dishes
coupons that meet the taste of customers according
to consumption preferences, so as to further improve
customers’ willingness to go to the restaurant. Under the
premise of consumption downgrade, the Group can provide
consumers with more flexible and cost-effective customised
discounts and privileges through its all-you-can-eat card in
terms of promotion activities on specific holidays, which
greatly improves customer satisfaction.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
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Controls and Mitigation
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Uncertainty as to the opening and profitability
of the new operations

BRARLREEHERENNTREEE

We closely monitor the profitability of the newly opened
restaurants, through marketing campaign, membership
campaign to attract customers to the restaurants. At the
same time launching sets so customers can experience the
value for money that the brand provides to enhance the
continue visit of the customers to drive through profits at
our restaurants.

BB BEIFAEBNRNBERL  BETSHERE &
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Risks related to site selection for new restaurants

ERAMERELNRR

Using information system to intellectually integrate with the
big data that composes of data that includes successful and
failure when opening restaurants to increase the brand’s
chances of choosing successful location.

MAERRS  BRBREAAFERNELBBEENER
BYRBUIE - T B HE BRI XK o

Expand the nationwide collaboration by working with the
top 15 developers, to reduce the cost of rental by effectively
exposing the location and to choose the location and set
the terms during the very initial stage of negotiation.
BAE2BENBBESE RANSERERAE ERTHAK
B AT AHR 8 1 BR e JE DA RS (B HH & Ak AR DA R 48 S i 1k (2
BEREEGRR -

Take advantage of the brand’s strength, to increase the
rent free period and acquire renovation subsidy when
negotiating rental terms with landlords in tier 3 and 4 cities.
E3-A W TR A HER - ARNBEEBRD mE - B INK
R HE R EUS EAE MBI K o
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties Controls and Mitigation
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Risks related to quality control and food safety o The Company has always adhered to food safety and
FHAEEEHRRMET 2 M E R quality assurance, by establishing and improving food safety

risk assessment and control mechanisms, strictly select
suppliers and choose only high-quality suppliers in the
industry. We continue to implement quality management,
directly source from upstream, establish a production base,
enforce checking strict control when receiving goods,
ensure on time delivery, strengthen restaurant quality
control, implement central kitchen factory management
and conduct management review to strengthen all aspects
of the supply chain, build an all comprehensive system and
other fundamental groundwork in order to deliver safe,
healthy and quality assured products to our customers.
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
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Controls and Mitigation
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Risks related to increasing food price, labor costs
and commercial real estate rent

BHARMER ALIKARBEMEES LR
2\ Bz

The war and other factors seriously affected the global
productivity level, resulting in price inflation on commodity
prices especially in agricultural by-products such as corn, soy
beans and meat. In order to cope with this increasing cost
pressure, procurement team have to work professionally to
demonstrate their sourcing capability and negotiating skills.
BENAMAREREXERRNEER KT BHYKAFR
HAmBERTELR BREER RELABEREIE®M-
RTEHERBERAR LRBED KBAETEEAEZEEXNS
REEN KBRS -

1. Sourcing from upstream: To source directly from
upstream directly in order to minimize the middle
agency fee during the production season.

REEHE  TEFORG  IRBEEEEE  MoH
MRERAE -

2. Signing annual contract: During production season,
when the pricing is right, sign annual procurement
contract with supplier as soon as possible to develop
long term strategic relationship.

FI2FERBAR  EEERE - BRABENRKE -
BREBREZITFERBAR  ERRABBAE
BA% -

3. Introduce competition: Explore the top suppliers in
the industry, expand the suppliers pool, establish
competition on product price.

SIABE  ABETRADBCE/RER  BAHERD
Mo K EmERBE

4. Develop alternatives: To source from different
locations to find alternatives with the similar quality as
a backup plan.
FREERD: EREERMARE  SRTREMNE
miEBRER -

5.  Strategically reserve scarce ingredients: Following the
deterioration of the international situation, the Group
will take action to reserve ingredients by adding on
purchasing volume and increase the reserve for its
core ingredients in order to hedge against the risks on
out of stock and price inflation.
BEEEBRIERME  BEER TS E TR
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Principal Risks and Uncertainties
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Controls and Mitigation

B RERBER

Risk related to labor cost inflation

BREANRA LR R R

Faced with increasing labor costs, the Company has
reshuffled the different roles in the office and the human
resources allocation at the restaurant level, through a
strictly controlled scheduling of the team to integrate the
workload in order to lower the number of staff needed
to improve efficiency, and to reasonably allocate the
proportion between part timers and service team. Going
forward, we shall also adjust the employment strategy at
any time depending on business needs.
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NEBR®BAENANEKE  BEEBEEADBLERS
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Outlook for 2025

In 2025, the Group will continue its efforts to achieve its goal of
becoming the leading operator of Chinese catering industry and
maintaining its leading position as a hotpot restaurant chain operator
in China. Discussions on the outlook for 2025 are set out in the section
head “Business Review and Outlook — Outlook for 2025" in this annual
report.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from 14 May
2025 to 16 May 2025 (both days inclusive), during which period no
transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to be
entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming annual general meeting
to be held on 16 May 2025, all transfer of shares accompanied by the
relevant share certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong
Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services
Limited, at Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183
Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong, no later than 4:30 p.m. on
13 May 2025.
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the results and of the assets and liabilities of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 8 of this annual report.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the Company’s share capital are set out in Note 32 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2024, the Company’s distributable reserves
calculated under the Companies Law of the Cayman Islands comprise
the share premium and retained earnings totaling approximately
RMB150.7 million (2023: RMB177.1 million).

RESERVES

Changes to the reserves of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2024 are set out in the consolidated statements of changes
in equity.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Changes to the property, plant and equipment of the Group and the
Company during the year are set out in Note 16 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BANK AND OTHER LOANS

Particulars of the bank and other loans of the Group as at 31 December
2024 are set out in Note 30 to the consolidated financial statements.

CHARGE ON ASSETS

As at 31 December 2024, the Company had pledged certain land, plant
and machinery with a carrying amount of RMB12.3 million to obtain
bank borrowings of RMB50.0 million. As at 31 December 2024, the
Company had pledged bank deposits of RMB26.1 million as securities
for bank borrowings.

SIGNIFICANT EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

The Directors are not aware of any significant event requiring disclosure
that has taken place subsequent to 31 December 2024 and up to the
date of this report.
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY'’S LISTED SECURITIES

The Company and its subsidiaries did not purchase, sell or redeem
any of the listed securities (including sale of treasury shares) of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2024. The Company has
no treasury shares as at 31 December 2024.

SHARE INCENTIVES
Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan

The Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan was approved and adopted on 28
August 2009. The purpose of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan is
to promote the success of our Company and the interests of the
Shareholders by providing a means through which our Company may
grant equity-based incentives to attract, motivate, retain and reward
certain officers, employees, directors, consultant or advisor who renders
or has rendered bona fide services to the Company, and other eligible
persons (the "Eligible Person”) and to further link the interests of
the grantees or recipients of the options (“Options”) or share awards
("Share Awards”, together with the Options, collectively referred to as
the “Awards”).

The maximum number of Shares which may be issued and/or delivered
pursuant to all Awards granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan
must not exceed 40,000,000 Shares (representing approximately 3.68%
of the total issued Shares as at the date of this annual report). There is
no maximum entitlement for each Eligible Person under the rules of the
Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan.

No Share Award has been granted or agreed to be granted under the
Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan since its adoption. No further Options or
Share Awards can be granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan
after the Listing Date.

BE HEIWEAXRLQF LD

RBE_FT-_NF+-_A=+—HLHF
ER AARREWNBRAAIVEREE -
HENERARGER LEMES (B
LEEFRMD) R-ZE_WMF+_A
=t+—H  ARQRAWEEFRY -

IR 1 22
BRARBRERRGRB S

RZZZAFNAAZTN\B ALK
MARFERAFRBER R ZEETE -
BERAAEENRND ZRAEEHERAB
RE—EFTR - SARQF AR AR E
REVENRB AR - R B8 M
BETEARE REE EF MARQ
AIEE ek B e R E AR TS RO A A Sk A
AREMEEBAL((EEBALD Y
HE— T ERE AR BRE ((RRE])
st R (RO RB] - E R ERE
BREAIRB)EITENNG  EWME
BA R B EGRI RAERBR A A -

BIEEAAAEERRGEEEET
TR B SR FRITRRRMAH
& 17 & B £ BRI~ 15 48 #840,000,000% f%
B UERAFRABPE2HEETRGH
3.68%) cBARAFABEER KRG ZBF
ERABEBTYEEFESEERALES
FREIRE ©

ER=PNNGES=FIN g3 [ $230)
PAZK - BRIz E R B RFABERH
ERA ) 2R - £ B E#E - BEE—
FIEBE SR BB AR B B R AR %
SR REF B L -

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z—&EER 45



No Grantee shall be entitled to any rights, interest or benefits attached
to the underlying Shares of the Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share
Incentive Plan unless and until the Option in respect of such Shares has
been vested on him/her and exercised in accordance with the terms of
the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan. There is no maximum entitlement for
each Eligible Person under the rules of the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan.

An Option shall not be exercisable on any date unless such terms and
conditions (including, without limitation, any performance criteria,
passage of time or other factors or any combination thereof which the
exercise of the Option shall be conditional) as set out in the relevant
award agreement, if any, are satisfied and to the extent that the Option
has vested.

The exercise price in respect of any Option granted under the Pre-IPO
Share Incentive Plan is set forth in the relevant award agreement, and
the exercise price of an Option shall be no less than the greatest of:

(i)  the par value of the Shares of the Company; and
(i) the value as reasonably determined by the administrator,

provided that no Shares newly-issued by the Company may be issued
for less than the minimum lawful consideration for such Shares or for
consideration other than that permitted by applicable law.

The holders of the Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Plan are not required to pay for the grant of any Option under the Pre-
IPO Share Incentive Plan and the relevant award agreement.

An Option, once exercisable and unless the administrator otherwise
expressly provides, shall remain exercisable until the expiration or earlier
termination of the Option. Each Option shall expire not more than ten
years after its date of grant, i.e. each Option granted under the Pre-
IPO Share Incentive Plan has a ten-year exercise period. Therefore, given
the last batch of Options under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan was
granted on 21 March 2014, the ten-year exercisable period in respect of
all Options granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan, and the Pre-
IPO Share Incentive Plan, have expired as at 31 December 2024.
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Details of the movements in Options under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Plan during the year ended 31 December 2024 are set out below:

BE-_Z-_NE+—_A=+—H1ILEE -
BRAFMEERRDEREETHE
B FEIBHRN T X

Number Number
of Shares of Shares
represented represented by
by the Options Cancelled Lapsed  the Options at
at 1 January Exercise Exercised during during 31 December
Option holder 2024 Date of grant price  during the year the year the year 2024
R-Z-QmE RZZ-QE
-B-H +ZA=t-H
BRESRH BRESR
BREREA RHBE REBH RE FRTE FREH FRXH HRHEE
Employee participants
EE24E
2 employees of the Group
rEBMMES 438,998 21 March 2014 2.78 - - 438,998 -
“E-MEZAZF-8
438,998 - - 438,998 -

Subject to the satisfactory performance of the Option holders, the
Options granted to each of the Option holders shall be vested in
accordance with vesting schedule as follows:

(i) as to 25% of the aggregate number of Shares underlying the
Option on the date ending 12 months after the Listing Date;

(i) as to 25% of the aggregate number of Shares underlying the
Option on the date ending 24 months after the Listing Date;

(iii) as to 25% of the aggregate number of Shares underlying the
Option on the date ending 36 months after the Listing Date; and

(iv) as to the remaining 25% of the aggregate number of Shares
underlying the Option on the date ending 48 months after the
Listing Date.

As at 31 December 2024, all the Options granted had been vested, and
all the outstanding Options which were not exercised in the amount of
438,998 have lapsed following the expiry of the ten-year exercisable
period.

Details of movements in the Options under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive
Plan (including the fair value of the Options at the date of grant) are
also set out in Note 33 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Restricted Share Unit Scheme

The RSU Scheme was adopted on 28 November 2014. Such plan
became effective on the Listing Date. The purpose of the RSU Scheme is
to incentivize Directors (excluding independent non-executive Directors),
senior management, officers and other selected personnel of the Group
("RSU Eligible Persons”) for their contribution to the Group, to
attract, motivate and retain skilled and experienced personnel to strive
for the future development and expansion of the Group by providing
them with the opportunity to own equity interests in the Company. The
Board selects the RSU Eligible Persons to receive restricted share units
("RSUs"”) under the RSU Scheme at its discretion. There is no maximum
entitlement for each RSU Eligible Person under the rules of the RSU
Scheme.

The RSU Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of ten years,
commencing from the Listing Date (unless it is terminated earlier in
accordance with its terms). As at 31 December 2024, the RSU Scheme
has expired.

The maximum number of RSUs that may be granted under the RSU
Scheme in aggregate (excluding RSUs that have lapsed or been
cancelled in accordance with the rules of the RSU Scheme) must not
exceed 4% of the total number of Shares in issue as at the Listing Date,
being 42,174,566 Shares (the “RSU Scheme Limit"), representing
approximately 3.9% of the total issued Shares as at the date of this
annual report. There is no maximum entitlement for each RSU Eligible
Person under the rules of the RSU Scheme. The number of RSUs
available for grant under the RSU Scheme as at 1 January 2024 was
29,063,539, representing approximately 2.68% of the total issued
Shares as at 31 December 2024.

The Board can determine the vesting criteria and conditions, the
vesting schedule, the exercise price of the RSUs (where applicable) and
such other details as the Board considers necessary, and such criteria,
conditions and details shall be stated in the letter granting such RSUs
("RSU Grant Letter”).
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The Company has appointed Computershare Hong Kong Trustees
Limited as the RSU Trustee. The RSU Trustee is a third party independent
of and not connected with the Company and any of its connected
persons. The RSU Trustee will administer the RSU Scheme in accordance
with the rules of the RSU Scheme and the relevant trust deed (the “RSU
Trust Deed”). Pursuant to the rules of the RSU Scheme, the Company
may (i) allot and issue Shares to the RSU Trustee to be held by the RSU
Trustee and which will be used to satisfy the RSUs upon exercise and/
or (ii) direct and procure the RSU Trustee to receive existing Shares
from any Shareholder or purchase existing Shares (either on-market
or off-market) to satisfy the RSUs upon exercise. The Company shall
procure that sufficient funds are provided to the RSU Trustee by
whatever means as the Board may in its absolute discretion determine to
enable the RSU Trustee to satisfy its obligations in connection with the
administration of the RSU Scheme. As at 31 December 2024, the RSU
Trustee held a total of 37,201,432 Shares, representing approximately
3.42% of the total issued Shares as at the date of this annual report.
The Shares are held on trust for the benefit of the participants of the
RSU Scheme (the “RSU Participants”) pursuant to the rules of the RSU
Scheme and the RSU Trust Deed. Such Shares will be used as awards for
relevant RSU Participants upon the grant and vesting of RSUs. Pursuant
to the RSU Trust Deed, notwithstanding that the RSU Trustee is the
legal registered holder of the Shares held upon trust pursuant to the
RSU Scheme, the RSU Trustee shall refrain from exercising any voting
rights attached to such Shares held by it under the trust.
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As at 31 December 2024, the RSUs in respect of an aggregate of RZ-ZT_ME+_A=+—H ¥ks&
3,443,226 Shares, representing approximately 0.3% of the total issued — 3£3,443,22608 & {5 ((h &L ZE AR 4R B H
Shares as at the date of this annual report, remained unvested. The B 27T 42 % 490.3% ) K1 ZBR 4| I 5
Company intends to satisfy all these unvested RSUs with the existing — B {)RERE o KA 7 # AR HI iR D
Shares held by the RSU Trustee and no new shares will be issued. BN ASTENEERMEERES
Details of the movements of the RSUs as at 31 December 2024 are set HEXkEBIBRHBHEMN BT

out below: BTG AR _T_NF+_-A
=S+ —HBXRHEBROECHEHOFE
W
Number of Shares represented by RSUs
ERARDEASRHRGHE
Unvested as at Granted Vested Cancelled Lapsed Unvested as at
Name and category of First vesting 1 January during during during during 31 December
grantees of RSU Date of grant date 2024 the year” the year” the year” the year 2024
RZBz=mE RZBZ-mE
ZRHRDEMARA -B-8 tZB=t-8
HEREH RHAH EfiBEER ABE Epgt’ EREE" FREE’ LIPS *58
Director
EZ
Ho Kuang-Chi 30 September 2020° 1 April 2021 157,001 - (157,001) - - -
BxE ZFoFFAAZHAEY ZF--FMA-F
30 September 2020° 1 April 2022 805,350 - (402,675) - - 402,675
“E-REAAZHRY —2--£WA-H
Sub-total 962,351 - (559,676) - - 402,675
gt
Five Highest Paid Individuals of the Group
rEERERAHAL
2 employees of the Group 1 April 2023 1 April 2024 53713 - - - - 53,713
AERNALES ZZCZEMA-BY ZZZMEMA-R
1 April 2024 1 April 2025 - 1,924,898 - - - 1,924,898
“ECREMA-AY ZECRFME-A
Sub-total 53,713 1,924,898 - - - 1,978,611
it

50 HEEEEREE (PE) ZERER AT XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.



Directors’ Report

EEERE
Number of Shares represented by RSUs
FRARBENSRMRAHA
Unvested as at Granted Vested Cancelled Lapsed Unvested as at
Name and category of First vesting 1 January during during during during 31 December
grantees of RSU Date of grant date 2024 the year"” the year” the year” the year 2024
R-B-QmE RZB-mE
ZRARBELARA -A-H tZA=1-H
HERER RABH ERSEAH AEE FREL" ERER" FRey’ FRxMH 3] |
Employees of the Group
1EFES
35 other employees
of the Group 30 September 2020” 1 April 2021 17,748 - (17,074) (674) - -
AREMBUALESE  —T-TEAAZTRY —Z--4mA-A
30 September 2020 1 April 2022 152,628 = (73,405) (4,130 N 75,093
ZE-REAATHRY ZB--£WA-R
1 April 2023 1 April 2024 93,725 - - (19,336) - 74,389
ZZIERMA-RY ZBZRERA-A
1 April 2024" 1 April 2025 - 1,063,010 - (150,552) - 912,458
ZFoEEMA-RY ZEC-RFME-R
Sub-total 264,101 1,063,010 (90,479) (174,692) - 1,061,940
Pt
Total 1,280,165 2,987,908 (650,155) (174,692) - 3,443,226
@zt
Notes: Misx
(1) the closing price of the Shares immediately before the date on which the (1 EBEZIER4KROHEMEEEBRRNG

RSUs were granted was HK$1.59.

The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before the
date on which the RSUs were vested during the year ended 31 December
2024 was HK$1.59.

Subject to the performance targets as stipulated in the relevant grant
letters including satisfaction of sales and/or net profit targets and/or
grading of the individual appraisal during the year, the RSUs granted shall
be vested in accordance with the vesting schedule as follows: (i) as to 25%
of the RSUs on the first vesting date; (ii) as to 25% of the RSUs on the
first anniversary of the first vesting date; (iii) as to 25% of the RSUs on the
second anniversary of the first vesting date; and (iv) as to the remaining
25% of the RSUs on the third anniversary of the first vesting date.
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(4)  Subject to the performance targets as stipulated in the relevant grant
letters including satisfaction of sales and/or net profit targets and/or
grading of the individual appraisal during the year, the RSUs granted shall
be vested in accordance with the vesting schedule as follows: (i) as to
one-third of the RSUs on the first vesting date; (ii) as to one-third of the
RSUs on the first anniversary of the first vesting date; and (iii) as to the
remaining one-third of the RSUs on the second anniversary of the first
vesting date.

(5) The weighted average closing price of the Shares immediately before
the dates on which the RSUs were cancelled during the year ended 31
December 2024 was HK$1.88.

Details of movements in the RSUs under the RSU Scheme (including the
fair value of the RSUs at the date of grant) are also set out in Note 33
to the consolidated financial statements.

The grantees of the RSUs under the RSU Scheme as referred to in the
table above are not required to pay for the grant of any RSUs under the
RSU Scheme and the relevant RSU Grant Letter.

Each RSU granted under the RSU Scheme has a ten-year exercise period
commencing from the date of grant.

Share Award Scheme

The Share Award Scheme was adopted on 28 August 2024 (the
“Adoption Date”). The purposes of the Share Award Scheme are
to attract, retain and incentivise the directors, management and key
employees of the Group, to align their interests with the long-term
success of the Company, to provide fair and competitive compensation
to the directors, management and key employees and to drive the
achievement of strategic objectives of the Company.
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Under the Share Award Scheme, the Board or an authorised person
may select any eligible person and grant an award (the “Award”) to
the selected participants (“Selected Participants”). In determining the
Selected Participants, the Board may take into consideration matters
including the present and expected contribution of the relevant Selected
Participant to the Group. Any individual, being an employee or director
of any member of the Group or related entity, or who is proposed to
be employed or appointed as an employee or director of any member
of the Group or related entity; or any person who provides services
to the Group, who the Board considers, in its sole discretion, to have
contributed or will contribute to the Group, are eligible person under
the Share Award Scheme (“Eligible Person”). However, no individual
who is resident in a place where the grant, acceptance or vesting of an
Award pursuant to the Share Award Scheme is not permitted under the
laws and regulations of such place or where, in the view of the Board or
an authorised person, compliance with applicable laws and regulations
in such place makes it necessary or expedient to exclude such individual,
shall be entitled to participate in the Share Award Scheme and such
individual shall therefore be excluded from the term Eligible Person.

Computershare Hong Kong Trustees Limited (the “Trustee”) has
been appointed by the Company as the trustee for the Share Award
Scheme. To satisfy an Award, the Company shall transfer to the trust
the necessary funds and instruct the Trustee to acquire Shares through
on-market transactions at the prevailing market price. No new Shares
will be issued by the Company to satisfy any Awards granted.

The Share Award Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years
commencing from the Adoption Date, unless otherwise terminated
under the terms of the Share Award Scheme. As at 31 December 2024,
the remaining life the Share Award Scheme is 9 years and 8 months.

The maximum number of Shares to be awarded under the Share Award
Scheme is 108,617,448 Shares, being 10% of the issued Shares of the
Company as at the Adoption Date. There is no maximum number of
Shares which may be awarded to a Selected Participant under the Share
Award Scheme.
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As at 31 December 2024, no Award has been granted under the Share
Award Scheme. As at the Adoption Date and 31 December 2024, the
number of Awards available for grant under the Share Award Scheme
is 108,617,448, representing approximately 10% of the total issued
Shares as at 31 December 2024 as well as at the date of this report.
During the Reporting Period, no Share was purchased by the Trustee
from the market for purpose of the Share Award Scheme. As at the
date of this report, no Share is held on trust for the benefit of the
participants of the Share Award Scheme pursuant to the rules of the
Share Award Scheme and the Share Award Scheme trust deed.

The Board can determine the vesting criteria and conditions, the vesting
schedule, the purchase price (where applicable) and such other details
as the Board considers necessary, and such criteria, conditions and
details shall be stated in the letter granting such Award (“Award Grant
Letter”).

No amount is payable by the grantees on acceptance of such Awards.

Each Award granted under the relevant Award Grant Letter has a
ten-year exercise period commencing from the date of grant.

Nm&E+=—_A=+—8"
B SREET B4R (W R E) o IERAN
AR ZZT-_NF+_A=+—H &
BROEEF SR TR ECREEEE A
108,617,448 " (hR —ZZE—_WMF+ = A
—t+—HERAFESABHEBITHRHE

B AR

P

B4910% - R|MEHAR  ZEARER
Befn BENET BN I EEE RN - XA
WEBH RERMDERFEZRER
Befn B2 Rt BIEFERIE - BEEAMD A
AETANREDRZEFETH2EER
HmARKE

EXQURERNEBFINREBIRE

gt REEREX BEE (HEm)
LREZGRR/LENHMERE  BZF
fERfF R F IR AR ZREE T ok ([28
BEF& A -

kdb S
=g

IR AT S SRR I SR 2R S AT BR0R -

RIFEBEBE T RAER LN EE
BTERAsEREEHES SH10F -

54 MIEEEEREE (PE) ZERER AT XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.



Directors’ Report
EEEHRE

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the

S

HE_Z-_WF+A=+—HLFE
REBEAFREPZEENT

date of this annual report were as follows:
Name Position
#"H - A
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi Chairman of the Board
BREKE EFxgxR
Executive Director
HITES
Chief Executive Officer
TR AR
Ms. Chen Su-Yin Non-executive Director
PRERL L EBMITEF
Ms. Li Jie Non-executive Director
FRZL FHITES
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence Independent Non-executive Director
BINE K E BYEMITES
Ms. Cheung Sze Man Independent Non-executive Director
RETB L+ BIUEMITESF
Mr. Kot Man Tat Independent Non-executive Director
BExERE BYFNTES

In accordance with the article 84(1) of the articles of association of the
Company, Ms. Chen Su-Yin and Mr. Kot Man Tat shall retire by rotation
at the annual general meeting of the Company and they, being eligible,
offer themselves for re-election.

None of the Directors has an unexpired service contract which is not
determinable by the Company or any of its subsidiaries within one year
without payment of compensation, other than under normal statutory
obligations.

The biographical details of the Directors of the Company are set
out in the section headed “Biographies of the Directors and Senior
Management” in this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING SHAREHOLDERS'’
INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
AND CONTRACTS OF SIGNIFICANCE

Save as the related party transactions as disclosed in Note 37 to the
consolidated financial statements and the connected transactions as
disclosed in the section headed “Continuing Connected Transactions”
in this Directors’ Report, no transactions, arrangements or contracts
of significance to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a
party and in which a Director and/or any of its connected entity had
a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, and no transaction,
arrangement or contract of significance between the Company or any
of its subsidiaries and the Company’s controlling shareholders or any
of their subsidiaries, nor any contract of significance for the provision
of services to the Group by a controlling shareholder or any of its
subsidiaries, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS EERBEEITHRAERRSG

AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING HEROREEZENEZRER

SHARES AND DEBENTURES )

(a) Interests of Directors and Chief Executive of the (a) AT EENRESITHAE
Company 7R =
As at 31 December 2024, the interests and short positions MNR-_ZE-_NNF+_A=+—H" =
of the Directors or the chief executive of the Company in the ERARNABESTHRAERARAR
Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the Company and its FERBEIE (FTEREANEE
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) TRBIZEXVED) B AR 17 - 18 B8 IR 1 3k

as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company BEEFEREERNAATREZRAER
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the Company HIE & F 3528 B FE N E LM
and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as NELNEZ AR @ B EIZE
follows: SPRIVZE A& AR A B KB A P e i
FARBIAT
Number of Approximate

Name of Director/ Capacity/ underlying percentage of
Chief Executive Nature of interest Shares'” shareholding"”
-4 54,/ HHE RENBQ
BETHRABHSE EntE RHE" ERaa
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi® Founder of a discretionary trust 396,234,500 36.48%
8RR ED PRE{EFERINLE

Beneficial owner 23,924,685 2.20%

BEmB A

Beneficiary of a trust 402,675 0.04%

BEEEZmA
Ms. Chen Su-Yin®® Interest of spouse 420,561,860 38.72%
REEL LYY fliBiEn
Notes: Mz -
(1) All interests stated are long positions. (1) FBEEZVAEITE -
(2) The Ying Qi Trust is a discretionary trust established by Mr. Ho (2) Ying Qi Trust® & XL 4 (1F

Kuang-Chi (as the settlor) for the benefit of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and
with Ying Qi PTC Limited acting as the trustee. On 6 June 2024,
Ying Qi PTC Limited transferred all shares in Ying Qi Investments
Limited (which in turn holds 396,234,500 Shares) held by it to HSBC
International Trustee Limited (“HKIT"). Accordingly, Mr. Ho Kuang-
Chi is deemed to be interested in the 396,234,500 Shares held
through HKIT. Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi is also interested in 23,924,685
Shares and RSUs representing 402,675 Shares held on trust on
his behalf by the RSU Trustee which can be exercised for nil
consideration and are subject to vesting.

AR %) KYing Qi PTC Limited
EAEXTABBEXRE AR
Mz 2RER RZTE_MF
7~A75H ' Ying Qi PTC Limited
#5245 B ®Ying Qi Investments
Limited (H #%%5396,234,5000%
B D) B FT B B {5 8 3 THSBC
International Trustee Limited
(THKIT]) - At » BHFE L
AR ARBBHKITHIH#AE®H
396,234,500 RN HEB R ©
B RS 58 HE R 823,924,685 % A%
9 &R HI A% B AL (B BRI
B BEMTHEAUEEFARE
A M402,675 B 1m0 ATIEREE
REFUTEREFER) P
B o
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(3)  Ms. Chen Su-Yin is the spouse of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and pursuant
to the SFO, she is deemed to be interested in the Shares in which
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi are interested.

(4)  As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 1,086,174,481 issued

Shares.

B) MERKTREAREEZE
B ARBEFBSFRBERM - K
WERREAEELERA RN
B A o

(4) M-ZE-_WWF+-_A=+—H"
RANFWEHR,086,174,481 1% 2 %
1TRED o

(b) Interests in other members of the Group (b) RAEEHMHKE T W
R &=
Approximate
percentage of
Number of shareholding
Name of associated Name of Nature of shares in associated
corporation shareholder interest interested corporation
LA EE
EEREEN BREMA
HEEZEERE REREE ERME BHEE BaLt
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food  Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi Beneficial owner 400,000 40%
Holdings Co., Limited1 BN gL ExEAA
NER e AR O (‘:P I) B mIZR Ms. Chen Su-Yin? Interest of spouse
BRAA Bﬁ%@iﬁfz’ Pic 455 8 2
Xiabuxiabu (HK) Food Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi Interest in controlled 100 100%
Holdings Co., Limited” %Y=& 54 corporation
R RIS (B8 R mIER ZEHEE
BRAEY Ms. Chen Su-Yin? Interest of spouse
BRERLZ Y Pic 155 8 2
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food  Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi Interest in controlled 10,000,000 100%
Co., Limited” BN gL corporation
RER e AR g (R ) R e RIEHEE S
BRATY Ms. Chen Su-Yin? Interest of spouse
BRERL Y Pic 155 8 2
Notes: BT -

(1) Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co.,

subsidiary of the Company. Xiabuxiabu (H
Limited and Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Limited are wholly-owned
subsidiaries of Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co., Limited.

Limited is a 60%-owned
K) Food Holdings Co.,

(2)  Ms. Chen Su-Yin is the spouse of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and pursuant
to the SFO, she is deemed to be interested in the shares of the
associated corporations in which Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi are interested.

(1) REEETE (RE) RMERERRQ
ﬁ7%$ A B 60%4HE 21 K [T /B
NE] o MIERE (F8) RMIER
B BR A @) R i R (R ) B
BRAFE HGHEEE (FE) R
DDT Hxﬁﬁﬂ TE’\]%QW%QE"

2) BMERLTREXRELEZE
B BREZESRBERN - K
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, none of the Directors
nor the chief executive of the Company had any interests or short
positions in any of the Shares, underlying Shares or debentures of the
Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of
Part XV of the SFO) as recorded in the register required to be kept by
the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO or as notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS®" AND OTHER
PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 December 2024, the following persons (other than the
Directors or the chief executive of the Company) have interests or short
positions in the Shares or underlying Shares as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO:

BREXHEEEN RFE_MOFE+
A=Z1t—B BMEBEEHARAEST
BABRARBKEEMAEEE (E
ERLES MBME GO EXVER) BB -
HEkD REREFEETARAAF]
RIBEZ LB GO E352FBFERN
BRMABLHNEZIORE  AREF
ST RIZA R G AN 2 ) K B X P B B 1 Bk
KR e

FERRREMALIRRG R
MHERONEZRKXR

RZFEZMF+=_A=+—H HUTA
T (EFHARFERITHRAERIN R
A& D sk AR (D B N AR RIRIEE
HF R EEED FE33616BFE RN E LM
NELHERIORE

Number of Approximate
Shares/underlying percentage of
Name of Shareholder Capacity shares held" interest”
igcd: 8 RE 5 Y
REREH &1 HEKkpHE" BHED L
HSBC International Trustee Limited® Trustee of a trust 396,247,500 36.48%
BREXFEA
Notes: B 5

(1) Allinterests stated are long positions.

(2)  As at 31 December 2024, the Company had 1,086,174,481 issued Shares.

(3)  The Ying Qi Trust is a discretionary trust established by Mr. Ho Kuang-
Chi (as the settlor) for the benefit of Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi and with Ying Qi
PTC Limited acting as the trustee. On 6 June 2024, Ying Qi PTC Limited
transferred all shares in Ying Qi Investments Limited (which in turn holds
396,234,500 Shares) held by it to HKIT. As a result, Ying Qi PTC Limited
has ceased to be a Shareholder. As Ying Qi Investments Holding Limited is
a wholly-owned subsidiary of HKIT, the details of its interest in Shares will
be included in HKIT's filings going forward in reliance on the exemption
under section 313(10) of the SFO.

(1) FAIRMFAEERERITE

) HEZFT-_NMF+=-_A=+—H0 'K
NEIHEA1,086,174,481 X2 31 TIAD ©

(3)  Ying Qi TrustAE XL E (fEAZL
%) KYing Qi PTC LimitedtE B85 3E A
BEXABREENERLZZEET-
RZZFZMEFXAKA " Ying Qi PTC
Limited# E A fYing Qi Investments
Limited (E 5 5396,234,5000% i {5 ) #9
BT A B9 8 5% FHKIT - B It » Ying Qi
PTC LimitedB T~ H 2K *F - B R Ying
Qi Investments Holding Limited &HKIT
HNE2EWMBAR  HRMHERNFE
AR IR 78 75 K B E & 01 88313(10) 16 &Y
PR E M AHKITR R SRR -
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(4)  Pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO, the Shareholder are required to file
a disclosure of interests form when certain criteria are fulfilled. When
a shareholding in the Company changes, it is not necessary for the
Shareholder to notify the Company and the Stock Exchange unless several
criteria have been fulfilled, therefore a Shareholder’s latest shareholding
in the Company may be different from the shareholding filed with the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2024, the Directors or chief
executive of the Company were not aware of any other person, not
being a Director or chief executive of the Company, who has an interest
or short position in the Shares or the underlying shares of the Company
as recorded in the register required to be kept by the Company under
section 336 of the SFO.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the
whole or any substantial part of the business of the Company were
entered into or existed during the year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

As a restaurant chain, we have a large and diverse customer base. Our
revenue derived from our five largest customers accounted for less than
30% of our total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Group’s purchases from
its five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the Group’s
total purchases from all suppliers for the same period.
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DONATION

Donation of RMB20,000 was made by the Group during the year ended
31 December 2024.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company, although there are no restrictions against
such rights under the laws in the Cayman Islands.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION OF HOLDERS OF
LISTED SECURITIES

The Company is not aware of any tax relief or exemption available to
the Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

Restaurant operations are highly service-oriented, therefore the
Directors believe that the ability to attract, motivate and retain a
sufficient number of qualified employees, including restaurant managers
and operational personnel, is critical to the success of the Group’'s
business. The Company will continue to seek, to retain and attract
qualified employees, particularly restaurant staff and operational
personnel, by increasing efforts in recruitment and human resources
management, further its career advancement program and establish
a clearly identifiable long-term career path to motivate its employees,
implement a rigorous evaluation program to identify suitable candidates
for promotion, offer long-term equity incentive plans and tailored
compensation packages and offer training programs tailored to specific
needs of our employees’ career development. The Company also
provides various incentives through share incentive schemes to better
motivate its employees.

EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

Particulars of the employee retirement benefits of the Group are set out
in Note 36 to the consolidated financial statements.

PUBLIC FLOAT

As at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this annual report
and based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and to the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has maintained
the minimum public float of 25% as required under the Listing Rules.
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RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE THE COMPANY'’S SECURITIES
AND EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Incentives” above,
at no time during the year was the Company, or any of its holding
companies or subsidiaries, or any of its fellow subsidiaries, a party
to any arrangement to enable the Directors or chief executive of the
Company or their respective associates (as defined under the Listing
Rules) to have any right to subscribe for securities of the Company or
any of its associated corporations as defined in the SFO or to acquire
benefits by means of acquisition of Shares in, or debentures of, the
Company or any other body corporate, nor did the Company enter into
any equity-linked agreement.

COMPETING INTEREST

Each of our controlling shareholders and the Directors confirm that, as
at the date of this annual report, he/she/it does not have any interest in
a business, apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is
likely to compete, directly or indirectly, with our business, which would
require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Subject to applicable laws, the Directors shall be indemnified and
secured harmless out of the assets and profits of the Company from
and against all actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses
which they or any of them may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices, pursuant
to the articles of association of the Company. Such provisions
were in force throughout the year ended 31 December 2024 and
are currently in force. The Company has arranged for appropriate
insurance cover for Directors’ liabilities in respect of legal actions
that may be brought against the Directors.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

1.

62

Framework Cooperation Agreement

On 22 December 2023, the Company entered into a framework
cooperation agreement (the “"Framework Cooperation
Agreement”) with Tea Mi Tea (HK) Holdings Co., Limited (“Tea
Mi Tea (HK)", a company wholly-owned by Mr. Ho Kuang-
Chi, a substantial Shareholder and an executive Director, and is
therefore a connected person of the Company) for the sale of
ingredients needed for the production of the tea beverages and
tea snack products that are currently selling and/or expected to
be sold at the Group’s restaurants (the “Tea Beverages and
Tea Snacks”), pursuant to which (i) Tea Mi Tea (HK) agreed to
provide relevant operational support, primarily (a) recipes of Tea
Beverages and Tea Snacks and proprietary know-how as to the
on-site preparation of Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks; (b) advices
on development of new products of Tea Beverages and Tea
Snacks; and (c) staff training in respect of operation workflow
at the restaurants, to the Group; (i) Tea Mi Tea (HK) granted
to the Company and its subsidiaries a non-transferable right to
use trademarks owned by Tea Mi Tea (HK) to produce and sell
Tea Beverages and Tea Snacks; and (iii) the Company agreed to
share 5% of the revenue from the sales of Tea Beverages and
Tea Snacks at the Group’s restaurants with Tea Mi Tea (HK). The
Framework Cooperation Agreement is for a term commencing
from 1 January 2024 to 31 December 2026. The annual caps
under the Framework Cooperation Agreement in respect of the
year ended 31 December 2024 and each of the years ending
31 December 2025 and 2026 are RMB68 million, RMB86.5
million and RMB110 million, respectively. The fees payable
under the Framework Cooperation Agreement will be billed
every calendar month, which shall be paid within five business
days of the settlement day. The Company shall pay the amount
due upon receipt of the invoice issued by Tea Mi Tea (HK). For
the year ended 31 December 2024, the actual transactions
under the Framework Cooperation Agreement amounted to
RMB52.1 million, which is within the relevant annual cap. The
transactions contemplated under the Framework Cooperation
Agreement also constitute the related party transactions of the
Company under the International Financial Reporting Standards,
details of which are set out in Note 37 to the consolidated
financial statements.
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Framework Purchase Agreement

On 22 December 2023, Xiabuxiabu Investment Co., Ltd.* (R g i
W& AR 2 7A) (“Xiabuxiabu Investment”, a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company) entered into a new framework
purchase agreement (the “Framework Purchase Agreement”)
with Xiabuxiabu (HK) Food Holdings Co., Ltd. ("RIE IR (FE) &
mIER AR A R]) (the “JV Subsidiary”, which is a wholly-owned
subsidiary of Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co. Ltd. ( I§ I 1 i
() BRmERAER AR ), which in turn is a company indirectly
owned as to 40% by Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, a substantial Shareholder
and an executive Director, and is therefore a connected person of
the Company), pursuant to which the JV Subsidiary (for itself and
on behalf of its subsidiaries, the “JV Group”) agreed to sell, and
Xiabuxiabu Investment (for itself and on behalf of its subsidiaries,
“Xiabuxiabu Investment Group”) agreed to purchase, certain
Condiment Products and Instant Foods from the JV Group for sale
in the Group’s restaurants. The Framework Purchase Agreement
shall have a term commencing from 1 January 2024 and ending
on 31 December 2026. The annual cap for the total purchase of
Condiment Products and Instant Foods by Xiabuxiabu Investment
Group from the JV Group pursuant to the Framework Purchase
Agreement shall be no more than RMB9.35 million, RMB11.5
million and RMB13.6 million for the years ended 31 December
2024 and each of the two years ending 31 December 2025
and 2026, respectively. For the year ended 31 December 2024,
the total purchases under the Framework Purchase Agreement
amounted to RMB8.9 million, which is within the relevant annual
cap.

In the opinion of the independent non-executive Directors, the
continuing connected transactions above were entered into by the
Group:

(i)
(ii)
(iii)

in the ordinary and usual course of its business;
on normal commercial terms; and
in accordance with the relevant agreements governing such

transactions and on terms that are fair and reasonable and in the
interests of the Shareholders as a whole.
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Further, the Board has engaged the auditor of the Company to report
on the Group’s continuing connected transaction in accordance with
Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000 “Assurance
Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial
Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. The auditor has issued an unqualified letter containing
their findings and conclusions in respect of the continuing connected
transactions disclosed above in accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the
Listing Rules and confirms that nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that the continuing connected transactions:

(1) have not been approved by the Board;

(2) were not entered into, in all material respects, in accordance with
the relevant agreement governing the transactions; and

(3) have exceeded the cap.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions, the Company has
complied with the disclosure requirements under the Listing Rules in
force from time to time.

The Company followed the policies and guidelines as set out in the
HKEX Guidance Letter HKEX-GL 73-14 issued by the Stock Exchange
when determining the price and terms of the continuing connected
transactions during the year under review.

All references above to other sections, reports or notes in this annual
report form part of this Directors’ report.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year set out in Note 37 to the financial statements include
transactions that constitute continuing connected transactions for which
the disclosure requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules have
been complied with.
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Directors’ Report
EEERE

AUDITOR

The financial statements have been audited by Deloitte Touche
Tohmatsu who shall retire at the forthcoming annual general meeting
and, being eligible, offered themselves for re-appointment.

By order of the Board
Ho Kuang-Chi
Chairman

Hong Kong, 27 March 2025
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Corporate Governance Report
TRERRE

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance by focusing on principles of integrity, accountability,
transparency, independence, responsibility and fairness. The Company
has developed and implemented sound governance policies and
measures, and the Board is responsible for performing such corporate
governance duties. The Board will continue to review and monitor
the corporate governance of the Company, as well as various internal
policies and procedures, including but not limited to those applicable to
employees and Directors, with reference to the Corporate Governance
Code and other applicable legal and regulatory requirements so as to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company applied the
principles of good corporate governance and complied with the code
provisions as set out in Part 2 of the Corporate Governance Code,
except for a deviation from code provision C.2.1 of Part 2 of the
Corporate Governance Code which states that the roles of chairman
and chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by
the same individual, for reasons set out below.

As Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, the founder of the Company, is familiar with and
has extensive knowledge and experience in the Group’s business, the
Board considers that vesting the roles of both chairman of the Board
and chief executive officer in the same person provides the Group with
strong and consistent leadership and facilitates the implementation
and execution of our Group’s business strategy. The balance of
power and authority is adequately ensured by the operations of the
senior management and the Board, which comprises experienced
and high-caliber individuals. The Board will nevertheless review the
Company’s structure from time to time in light of the prevailing
circumstances.

The Board will continue to review and monitor the practices of the
Company for the purpose of complying with the Corporate Governance
Code and maintaining a high standard of corporate governance
practices of the Company.
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CORPORATE CULTURE

The Board plays a leading role in defining the purpose, values and
strategic direction of the Company and in shaping and fostering a
culture to instil and continually reinforce values of acting lawfully,
ethically and responsibly across the Company. Such culture of the
Company is developed and reflected consistently in the operating
practices of the Group, workplace policies and practices as well as
relationship with stakeholders, including but not limited to code
of conduct for employees, corporate culture incentive scheme,
remuneration policy for Directors and employees, whistleblowing and
anti-corruption policy and shareholders’” communication policy.

As at the date of this report, the Board has reviewed and considered
that the corporate culture of the Company is aligned with the purpose,
value and strategy of the Group.

DIVERSITY
Board Diversity Policy

The Company has formulated and adopted the board diversity policy
for compliance with the Listing Rules and the code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code concerning the diversity of Board members.
The board diversity policy sets out the approach adopted by the Board
regarding diversity of Board members.

The Board continuously seeks to enhance its effectiveness and to
maintain a high standard of corporate governance and recognizes
diversity at Board level as an essential element in maintaining
competitive advantage and sustainable development. In designing the
Board’s composition, board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, industry experience, technical and professional
skills and/or qualifications, knowledge, length of services and time to
be devoted as a Director of the Company. The Company will also take
into account factors relating to its own business model and specific
needs from time to time. The ultimate decision will be based on merit
and contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
With regards to gender diversity on the Board, the Company recognizes
the particular importance of gender diversity. The Board currently
comprises three female Directors and three male Directors. The Board
considers that it has achieved and maintained gender diversity during
the Reporting Period. The Board targets to maintain the current level of
female representation on the Board and in any event with at least one
female Director. The Company will ensure that gender diversity is taken
into account when recruiting staff members of mid to senior level and
ensure that sufficient resources are available for providing appropriate
trainings and career development to develop a pipeline of potential
successors to the Board and continue to maintain gender diversity.
Furthermore, the Directors whose ages range from 44 years old to 65
years old have varying education background from economics, business
administration and law with different industry backgrounds, including
food and beverage, accounting and financial management.
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The Board strives to ensure that it has the appropriate balance of skills,
experience, knowledge and diversity of perspectives that are required
to support the execution of its business strategies and in order for the
Board to be effective.

Diversity Across Workforce

The Company upholds the concept of diversity employment, and
adopts a variety of approaches to attract suitable talents with diverse
background. The Company prohibits any discrimination on ground of
age, gender, geographical region, cultural background, religion or other
factors, and steps up efforts to create an innovative, open, diverse,
equal and harmonious work environment. As at 31 December 2024,
the ratio of women to men in the workforce (excluding Directors of
the Company but including senior management) was 36:64. Details of
employee distribution structure are set out in the ESG Report 2024 of
the Company. The Group is committed to maintain at least the current
proportion of female employees. To continue to achieve diversity at
workforce level, the Group has put in place appropriate recruitment
and selection practices such that a diverse range of candidates with
different age, gender and experiences are considered. The Group has
also established talent management and training programs to provide
career development guidance and promotion opportunities to develop a
broad and diverse pool of skilled and experienced employees.

LINKAGE BETWEEN CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
AND ESG

Corporate governance provides the framework within which the Board
forms their decisions and develops our businesses. The entire Board has
focused on maintaining long-term sustainable growth for shareholders
and delivering long-term values to all relevant stakeholders. The Board
believes that effective corporate governance structure facilitates the
Company to have a better understanding of assessing and managing
risks and opportunities, including environmental and social risks and
opportunities.

The Board is responsible for the development of ESG strategy and
reporting thereon and is also responsible for reviewing and making
decisions on the material ESG-related issues of the Company. The
ESG working group of the Company is responsible for reporting the
ESG matters to the Board, covering employees, food safety, public
welfare and other ESG issues of various departments. During the
Reporting Period, the ESG development of the Group including the
ESG performance and reporting as well as the different sustainability
disclosure standards were discussed and reviewed by the Board at the
Board meeting.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is charged with promoting the success of the Company by
directing and supervising its affairs. The Board has general powers
for the management and conduct of the Company’s business. The
day-to-day operations and management are delegated by the Board to
the management of the Company, who will implement the strategy and
direction as determined by the Board.

For the year ended 31 December 2024 and up to the date of this
annual report, the Board consisted of 6 Directors, namely Mr. Ho
Kuang-Chi (Chairman and chief executive officer) as executive Director,
Ms. Chen Su-Yin and Ms. Li Jie as non-executive Directors, and Mr. Hon
Ping Cho Terence, Ms. Cheung Sze Man and Mr. Kot Man Tat as
independent non-executive Directors. The Board has a balance of skills
and experience appropriate for the requirements of the business of the
Company. The Company has also adopted a board diversity policy to
set out the approach adopted by the Board regarding diversity of Board
members. Details of board diversity policy are set out in the section
headed “Diversity — Board Diversity Policy” above.

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, Chairman, executive Director and chief executive
officer of the Company, is the husband of Ms. Chen Su-Yin, a
non-executive Director. Save as disclosed, no Board member has a
relationship with the other Board members and the chief executive of
the Company.

The biographies of the Directors are set out on pages 32 to 35 of this
annual report.

The executive Director, Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, has entered into a service
contract with the Company on 28 November 2014, which was renewed
in 2017, 2020 and 2023 for a further term of 3 years. The Company has
issued letters of appointment to each of the non-executive Directors,
namely Ms. Chen Su-Yin on 28 November 2014 which was renewed
in 2017, 2020 and 2023 for a further term of 3 years, and Ms. Li Jie
on 25 November 2022 for a term of 3 years. The Company has also
issued letters of appointment to each of the independent non-executive
Directors, namely Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence and Ms. Cheung Sze Man
on 28 November 2014, which was renewed in 2017, 2020 and 2023 for
a further term of three years, and Mr. Kot Man Tat on 1 April 2022, for
a term of 3 years.

The aggregate remuneration (including fees, salaries, contributions to
pension schemes, share-based compensation expenses, discretionary
bonuses, housing and other allowances and other benefits in kind)
payable to the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2024 was
approximately RMB4.8 million.
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Corporate Governance Report
TERERBE

The remuneration of the Directors is determined with reference
to salaries paid by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities of the Directors and performance of the Group. Details
of the remuneration of the Directors for 2024 are set out in Note
14 to the consolidated financial statements. In addition, pursuant to
code provision E.1.5 of the Corporate Governance Code, the annual
remuneration of members of the senior management by band for the
year ended 31 December 2024 is set out below:

EEFM AL EAELB AT
e EZNHREBARBEURASE
EMRREBE - T _MFEZMEH W
HBENEAMBRRM L4 1 oh -
BIE M EE AT A8 AEXEENS
K - #HE_T-_OMF+-_A=-+—AL
FERREEEKRENTETNEES
AT

Number of senior

management

Remuneration band member
EREEE

yeE ME#E
HKD1,000,001 to HKD1,500,000 3

1,000,001 /£ £1,500,0007% 7T
HKD1,500,001 to HKD2,000,000
1,500,001 7£ £2,000,0007% 7T
HKD4,000,001 to HKD4,500,000
4,000,001 7 24,500,000 7T

The Company has established mechanisms to ensure independent views
and input are available to the Board and such mechanisms will be
reviewed annually by the Board. Directors are encouraged to express
their views during the Board/Board Committees meetings. The Board
has separate and independent access to the senior management and
the Company Secretary at all times. All Directors are entitled to retain
independent professional advisors as and when it is required. A Director
who has material interest in any contract, transaction or arrangement
shall abstain from voting and not be counted in the quorum on any
Board resolution approving the same. During the year ended 31
December 2024, the Company has three independent non-executive
Directors, which meets the requirement of the Listing Rules that the
number of independent non-executive directors must represent at least
one-third of the Board and should not be less than three.

The Company has received an annual confirmation of his/her
independence from each of the independent non-executive Directors
with reference to the factors set out under Rule 3.13 of the Listing
Rules. The Company considers that each of the independent
non-executive Director is independent.
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Directors have access to the services of the company secretary to ensure
that the Board procedures are followed. The company secretary of the
Company is Ms. Tam Shuk Wah Carrie, replacing Ms. So Lai Shan with
effect from 16 October 2024. She is a corporate services director of
Incorp Hong Kong Limited, and is responsible for provision of corporate
secretarial and compliance services to clients. Her primary corporate
contact person at the Company is Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, Chairman,
executive Director and chief executive officer of the Company. In
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, Ms. Tam has undertaken
no less than 15 hours of relevant professional training during the year
ended 31 December 2024.

All the Directors namely, Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, Ms. Chen Su-Yin, Ms. Li
Jie, Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence, Ms. Cheung Sze Man and Mr. Kot
Man Tat, have complied with code provision C.1.4 of Part 2 of the
Corporate Governance Code and participated in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills and
to ensure that their contribution to the Board remains informed and
relevant. The records of the continuous professional development
trainings that have been received by the Directors for the year ended 31
December 2024 are summarised as follows:
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Director Type of Training*
= b bl
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi v/
BREEE

Ms. Chen Su-Yin v/
PREAL

Ms. Li Jie v
FRZL

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence v/
EIRAE L

Ms. Cheung Sze Man 4
RSt

Mr. Kot Man Tat v
BEXCERYE

* During the year ended 31 December 2024, all Directors received training * HE-_ZT-_NF+ZA=+—HLHF

and training materials, including from the Company’s external legal adviser,
about matters relevant to the update on the Listing Rules. They also kept
abreast of matters relevant to their role as Directors by such means as
attendance at seminars and conferences and/or reading materials about
financial, commercial, economic, legal, regulatory and business matters.

The Company will continue to arrange suitable training for all Directors
in order to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills as part of
their continuous professional development.
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In 2024, the Company convened and held one general meeting, being
the 2024 annual general meeting held on 24 May 2024.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board held 7 meetings
to discuss and approve, among others, the overall strategies and policies
of the Company, as well as to review and approve the Company's 2023
annual report, 2023 annual results announcement, the payment of final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2023, 2024 interim report
and 2024 interim results announcement.

The table below sets out the details of general meetings and Board
meetings attendance of each Director during the year ended 31
December 2024:
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Number of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

HECERLEEBELRY
Director General meetings Board meetings
BES L E PN Exges
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi 11 717
BREKE
Ms. Chen Su-Yin 171 717
PRERZ L
Ms. Li Jie 171 717
FRL L
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence I7Al 717
BN KL
Ms. Cheung Sze Man 11 717
RETB L+
Mr. Kot Man Tat 1Al 717
BEXCERYE
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS D EE AR

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in Code
Provision A.2.1 of the Corporate Governance Code. The Board reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices, training
and continuous professional development of Directors and senior
management, the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance of the Model
Code and written employee guidelines, and the Company’s compliance
with the Corporate Governance Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has 3 principal Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the Remuneration
Committee. Each of the Board committees operates under its terms of
reference. The terms of reference of the Board committees are available
on the website of the Company and that of the Stock Exchange.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company established an Audit Committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code. As at
31 December 2024, the Audit Committee consisted of three members,
being two independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hon Ping
Cho Terence and Mr. Kot Man Tat and one non-executive Director,
namely Ms. Li Jie. Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence has been appointed as
the chairman of the Audit Committee. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are to review and supervise, and provide an independent
view of the effectiveness of, the financial reporting process and risk
management and internal control systems of the Group, oversee the
audit process and perform other duties and responsibilities as assigned
by our Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Audit Committee held
3 meetings to consider the Company’s 2023 annual report, 2023
annual results announcement, 2024 interim report and 2024 interim
results announcement. The Audit Committee also assessed the risk
management and internal control measures of the Company, as well as
the effectiveness of the internal audit function of the Company.

The table below sets out the details of meetings attendance of each
member of the Audit Committee during the year ended 31 December
2024:
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Number of meetings

Director attended/eligible to attend
E=x HEAERHEEERK
Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence 3/3
FEINME K

Mr. Kot Man Tat 3/3
EXCERYE

Ms. Li Jie 3/3
FRZL
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Nomination Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with Rule 3.27A of the Listing Rules. As
at 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee consisted of 2
independent non-executive Directors, being Ms. Cheung Sze Man and
Mr. Kot Man Tat, and 1 executive Director, being Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi,
who is the chairman of the Nomination Committee. The primary duties
of the Nomination Committee are to review and assess the composition
of the Board and the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and make recommendation to the Board on the appointment
and removal of Directors.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Nomination Committee
held 1 meeting to review the Board structure and the board diversity
policy, the independence of the independent non-executive Directors,
and to recommend the re-election of the retiring Directors.

The table below sets out the details of meeting attendance of each
member of the Nomination Committee during the year ended 31
December 2024:
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Number of meetings

Director attended/eligible to attend
BE=x HE SERHEERRE
Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi 1Al
BRERE
Ms. Cheung Sze Man 11
R
Mr. Kot Man Tat 11
BXERLE
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Nomination Process

The Company has adopted a nomination policy (the “Nomination
Policy”), which sets out the approach to guide the Nomination
Committee in relation to the selection, appointment and re-appointment
of the Directors.

The Nomination Committee will recommend to the Board for the
appointment of a Director in accordance with the following procedures
and process as set out in the Nomination Policy:

(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(vi)

the Nomination Committee will, giving the consideration to the
current composition, diversity and size of the Board, develop a
list of desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to
focus the search effort on suitable candidates;

the Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing Directors, advertisements, recommendations
from an independent agency firm and proposals from
Shareholders;

the Nomination Committee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such
as conducting interviews, background checks, presentations and
third-party reference checks;

upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committee will hold a meeting and/ or by way of
written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation
to the Board for appointment;

the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment; and

the Board will have the final authority in determining the selection
of nominees and all appointment of Directors will be confirmed by
the filing of the consent to act as Director of the relevant Director
(or any other similar filings requiring the relevant Director to
acknowledge or accept the appointment as Director, as the case
may be).

Nomination Criteria

In recommending candidates for appointment to the Board, the
Nomination Committee will consider candidates on merit against
objective criteria and with due regards to the benefits of diversity on
the Board.
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company established a Remuneration Committee with written
terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance
Code. As at 31 December 2024, the Remuneration Committee had 3
members, being 2 independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Hon
Ping Cho Terence and Ms. Cheung Sze Man, and 1 executive Director,
namely Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi. Ms. Cheung Sze Man was the chairman of
the Remuneration Committee. The primary duties of the Remuneration
Committee are to establish and review the policy and structure of
the remuneration for the Directors and senior management, make
recommendations to the Board on employee benefit arrangement, and
reviewing and/or approving matters relating to share schemes under
Chapter 17 of the Listing Rules.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Remuneration
Committee held 1 meeting to review the remuneration of the Directors
and senior management as well as the policy and structure of the
remuneration for the Directors and senior management.

The table below sets out the details of meetings attendance of each
member of the Remuneration Committee during the year ended 31
December 2024:
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Number of meetings

Director attended/eligible to attend
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Ms. Cheung Sze Man 171
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Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi 11
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Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence 11
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as its code of conduct
regarding Directors’ securities transactions. All Directors have confirmed,
following specific enquiry by the Company, that they have complied
with the Model Code during the year ended 31 December 2024.

The Company's employees, who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company, have also been subject to the Model Code
for securities transactions. No incident of non-compliance of the Model
Code by the Company’s relevant employees was noted by the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2024.

INTERNAL CONTROL MEASURES AND
OBSERVANCE OF UNDERTAKINGS RELATING TO
OPENING OF RESTAURANTS

The Company had established its internal control measures in respect
of the management of the licenses and approvals of its restaurants so
as to reduce the risk of penalties from the PRC regulatory authorities
in respect of restaurants that the Company operates. Such internal
control measures include, among others, (i) adopting of the Restaurant
Opening Approval Policy and amending the Licenses and Permits
Management Policy, (ii) compiling and maintaining a list of relevant
licenses and permits that would be required for the commencement of
the operation of a new restaurant, (iii) strengthening the site selection
and approval procedures, (iv) streamlining the development plan and
timetable for opening new restaurants to cater for time required for
applying and obtaining various licenses and permits prior to opening of
new restaurants, and (v) regularly carrying out compliance status review
on individual restaurants and identifying, assessing and monitoring
compliance risks.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has strictly
implemented the above internal control policies and measures relating
to restaurants opening and their operations, and had strictly complied
with and fulfilled the relevant undertakings provided by the Company
with respect to the opening of new restaurants. In particular, the Group
has obtained all the relevant material official licenses and permits prior
to the opening of restaurants.
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EXTERNAL AUDITOR

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu is appointed as the external auditor of the
Company. There is no change in auditor during the last three years.

For the year ended 31 December 2024, the fees paid/payable to Deloitte
Touche Tohmatsu for the audit of the financial statements of the Group
were RMB3.0 million.

Fees paid/payable to Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu for non-audit services
provided to the Group in the year were RMB1.0 million. The non-audit
services conducted mainly include the issuance of the ESG report and
tax service.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Pursuant to code provision D.1.3 of Part 2 of the Corporate Governance
Code, the Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation
of the financial statements which give a true and fair view of the state
of affairs of the Group and of the results and cash flow during the
Reporting Period. A statement from the auditor about its reporting
responsibilities on the financial statements is set out on pages 84 to
89 of this annual report. In preparing the financial statements for the
year ended 31 December 2024, the Directors have selected suitable
accounting policies and applied them consistently, made judgments
and estimated that are prudent, fair and reasonable and prepared the
financial statements on a going concern basis.

INTERNAL CONTROLS AND RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board acknowledges its responsibilities for maintaining sound
and effective internal control and risk management systems in order
to safeguard the Group’s assets and shareholders’ interests and
reviewing the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control and
risk management systems on an annual basis so as to ensure that
internal control and risk management systems in place are adequate.
The internal control and risk management systems are implemented to
manage, rather than eliminate, the risks (including ESG risks) to which
the Group is exposed. The systems therefore serve to provide reasonable
but not absolute assurance against material misstatements or losses.
The Company also has an internal audit function which primarily
carries out the analysis and independent appraisal of the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Company’s risk management and internal control
systems for the year ended 31 December 2024, and reports their
findings to the Board on, at least, an annual basis. The management
has provided to the Board such explanation and information as are
necessary to enable the Board to carry out an informed assessment of
the Company’s financial statements, which are put to the Board for
approval. The Company provides all members of the Board with monthly
updates on Company'’s performance, positions and prospects.
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The Company has established a sound internal control and risk
management system, and formulated internal guidance covering a
full range of operations including restaurant opening, site selection,
procurement, quality control, marketing, finance, treasury activities,
finance and human resources management, with a complete
organizational structure and clear responsibilities and authorizations.
The Group’s internal control system includes a well-established
organizational structure with clearly defined lines of responsibility and
authority. The day-to-day departmental operations are entrusted to
individual department which is accountable for its own conduct and
performance and is required to operate its own department’s business
within the scope of the delegated authority and to implement and
strictly adhere to the strategies and policies set by the Company from
time to time. Each department is also required to keep the Board
informed of material developments of the department’s business and
implementation of the policies and strategies set by the Board on a
regular basis.

As the risks faced by the Company stem primarily through various
aspects of its operations, including restaurant opening, site selection,
procurement, quality control, marketing and human resources
management, these departments are in the best position to observe and
identify recent development that might lead to material risks for the
Company, and the management and the Board take into account the
reports made by these departments in assessing and managing the risks
and considering measures to resolve material internal control defects
(if any), including for example implementing enhanced internal control
measures and engaging independent consulting firm, etc.

Procedures to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

(1) Establishment of the risk context: evaluating and reviewing the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
of the Group to reduce the costs of operational risk and ensure
compliant operation of the Company.

(2)  Formulation of the risk management policies: ensuring that the
Group carries out consistent procedures and criteria for risk
identification, measurement and reporting.

(3) Identification of the risks: identifying any potential risks of various
business segments and key procedures.

(4) Evaluation on the risks: evaluating and rating the impact on
business and its likelihood of the risks identified.

(5) Response to the risks: evaluating the risk management solutions
and the effectiveness of risk management.

(6) Report and monitor: monitoring and reviewing the policies and
evaluating procedures for risk management, and the measures for
managing and effectiveness of controlling significant risks, and
report the findings to the Board.
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Procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

The Board conducts regular review and assessment of inside
information, discusses with the management or authorized persons
of the Company about disclosure of inside information, reports to the
Board once identified any inside information for dissemination. Inside
information disclosure policies are formulated to provide employees
with guidelines on report and disseminating inside information,
confidentiality and compliance with restrictions on trading.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Board has reviewed the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems of the
Group to ensure that a sound system is maintained and operated by the
management in compliance with the agreed procedures and standards.
The review covered all material controls, including financial, operational
and compliance controls and risk management functions. In particular,
the Board considered the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programs, budget of the Company’s accounting,
internal audit, financial reporting functions, as well as those relating to
the ESG performance and reporting of the Company. The review was
made by discussions with the management of the Company, its external
and internal auditors and the assessment conducted by the Audit
Committee. The Board believes that the existing risk management and
internal control systems are adequate and effective, in particular, for
financial reporting and Listing Rules compliance.

WHISTLEBLOWING POLICY

The Company has established the whistleblowing policy which aims to
encourage and assist employees of the Group or relevant third parties
who deal with the Group with guidance and reporting channels on
reporting any suspected improprieties in any matters related to the
Group directly addressed to the chief executive officer or the Audit
Committee of the Company. The internal audit function will investigate
the reported cases in a confidential and timely manner and report the
results of investigations to the chief executive officer and the Audit
Committee.
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ANTI-CORRUPTION POLICY

The Board adopted an anti-corruption policy to outline guidelines and
minimum standards of conducts and the responsibilities of employees
to resist fraud, to help the Group defend against corrupt practices and
to report any reasonably suspected case of fraud and corruption or
any attempts thereof, to the management or through an appropriate
reporting channel. Discussions on the anti-corruption management of
the Company are contained in the ESG Report 2024 of the Company.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Pursuant to the dividend policy adopted by the Company, distributions
of dividends are determined at the discretion of the Board. In
determining whether any distribution shall be made and the amount
of dividends, the Board shall take into account the Company’s results
of operations, cash flows, financial condition, capital requirements,
business plans and prospects and any other conditions which the
Board deems relevant. Any declaration and payment as well as the
amount of dividends will be subject to compliance with the Company’s
constitutional documents and the Companies Law of the Cayman
Islands.

The Company will evaluate its dividend policy and distributions made
in any particular year in light of its financial position, the prevailing
economic climate and expectations about the future macroeconomic
environment and business performance.

As at 31 December 2024, no arrangement was reached pursuant to
which the Shareholders waived or agreed to waive their dividends.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

The Company is incorporated in the Cayman Islands. The Board may
whenever it thinks fit call extraordinary general meetings. Pursuant
to the articles of association of the Company, extraordinary general
meetings shall also be convened by written requisition to the secretary
of the Company of any one or more members of the Company holding
at the date of deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the
paid up capital of the Company carrying the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company. Such meeting shall be held within two
(2) months after the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of
such deposit the Board fails to proceed to convene such meeting, the
requisitionist(s) himself (themselves) may convene the extraordinary
general meeting in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Boards
hall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

To safeguard Shareholder interests and rights, separate resolutions are
and will be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue,
including the election of individual Directors.

The procedures for Shareholders to propose a person for election as
Director is available on the Company’s website (www.xiabu.com).
Shareholders may lodge written proposal to the company secretary
of the Company at the principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong, provided that the minimum length of the period, during
which such written notice is given, shall be at least 7 days and that
the lodgement of such notice shall commence no earlier than the day
after the dispatch of the notice of the general meeting appointed for
such election and end no later than 7 days prior to the date of such
general meeting. In order to ensure that other shareholders would
have sufficient time to receive and consider the information of the
person proposed for election as a Director, Shareholders are urged
to lodge their written notice of his intention to propose a person for
election as Director as early as practicable in advance of the relevant
general meeting and, in any case, not less than 12 business days (as
defined in the Listing Rules, i.e., day(s) on which the Stock Exchange
is open for business of dealing in securities) before the date scheduled
for holding the relevant general meeting, so that the Company can
complete the verification procedure with the Company’s share registrar,
and procure the publication of an announcement and/or the dispatch
of a supplementary circular to Shareholders in compliance with the
applicable requirements under the Listing Rules. In the event that any
such written notice is received by the Company later than the 12th
business day before the date of holding the relevant general meeting,
the Company will need to consider whether to adjourn the relevant
meeting so as to give Shareholders a notice of at least 10 business days
of the proposal in accordance with the Listing Rules.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ COMMUNICATION

Enquiries about the Company may be put to the Board by contacting
the Company or directly by raising the questions at an annual general
meeting or extraordinary general meeting. The contact details of the
Company are set out in the Company’s website (www.xiabu.com).
Shareholders can also direct their enquiries about their shareholdings to
the Company’s Hong Kong share registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited, whose address is Shops 1712-1716, 17th
Floor, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong.
In addition, the Company maintains different sections on its website,
such as “Corporate Governance”, “Investor Relations” and "Press
Releases”, to provide key information and updates of the Company to
its Shareholders.

Further, the Company try to understand investors’ perspective and also
share with them a full picture of business, including the views on market
outlook and the development strategies of the Company, etc. The
Investor Relations team of the Company is committed to maintaining an
open and constructive dialogue with them.

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company has reviewed
the effectiveness of communication with Shareholders and is satisfied
that it is effective and made on-going updates to meet the needs of
changing circumstance.

CHANGE IN CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the Company made
amendments to the articles of association of the Company and adopted
an amended and restated articles of association, in order to (among
others) update and bring the articles of association of the Company in
line with the latest regulatory requirements pursuant to the Proposals
to Expand the Paperless Listing Regime and Other Rule Amendments
published by the Stock Exchange in June 2023 and the relevant
amendments to the Listing Rules of which came into effect on 31
December 2023 mandating the electronic dissemination of corporate
communications by listed issuers to their securities holders. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 27 March
2024 and the circular of the Company dated 25 April 2024. The latest
consolidated version of the articles of association of the Company is
available on the websites of the Company (www.xiabu.com) and the
Stock Exchange.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
B ZBE RS

Deloitte

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD.

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Xiabuxiabu
Catering Management (China) Holdings Co., Ltd. (the “Company”) and
its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”) set out on pages
90 to 204, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2024, and the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated statement
of changes in equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including material accounting policy information and other explanatory
information.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2024, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) and have been properly prepared in
compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“"HKICPA"). Our responsibilities under those
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the
Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

>4

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., MWHHHEBHEE (FEH)ERERLDT

LTD. — continued
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

BR — &
(RESHEZMALLFRLAE)

BARETEE

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, ?@ﬁ%%ﬁ%%%@ ﬁiﬁﬁ Eﬁ%%ﬂﬁﬁ '
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial R ARG BRENEARIE

f : EH o = = > (FE Sz =1 sk me
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the ZNEH - FLSHARERMNEIER

RAMBHRERREASRFETREN -

context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, BRI

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREETER

BT e ELETREHEFNER -

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

BMNETNNEERRETSEE

Impairment of leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets

HEYEREREHEEENRE

We identified the impairment of leasehold improvements
and right-of-use assets as a key audit matter due to the
significance of the balance on the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2024 and the
significant management estimation involved in determining
the recoverable amounts of leasehold improvements and
right-of-use assets.

HRZZE_ME+ A=+ —BEEMBARRNKN 2 RAEER
SREXR BEFTHEVERERERAREENT KD SRS
REREEEMRG #BEMSEHENEEEREREEERE
BRBREFEE-

The Group recorded leasehold improvements and right-of-use
assets of RMB403,906,000 and RMB879,313,000 as at 31
December 2024, respectively, and impairment loss amounting
to RMB124,527,000 and RMB64,009,000 were recognised for
the year ended 31 December 2024, respectively.
HEZT-_NF+-_A=+—H0 ESEHSHEMERER
£ A& E 5 Bl A AR 403,906,0007T & A K #879,313,000
L WREEZENF+ A=+ —HIEFENRIERRBEAE
18 AR ¥124,527,0007T & A R #64,009,0007T °

As disclosed in Note 4 to the consolidated financial statements,
management determined whether leasehold improvements
and right-of-use assets are impaired requires an estimation
of the recoverable amount of individual assets or the cash
generating units to which the assets belong using a value in
use calculation. Management'’s estimation is primarily based on
the cash flow projections and the discount rate.
BIGRE T BRI TAEE EEEECHEREYER
EREEESAHRAE REAEREBEFEU G ERE
EXFBEEMBREELAETNHATRECHE - EREMN LT
FEERREREBA RN EMEDL -

Our procedures in relation to impairment of
leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets
included:
BHAREEMRRENERAREEREBEMETHNE
FrEiE

o Inquiring the management on their
identification of impairment indication
and their method used for the impairment
assessment of leasehold improvements and
right-of-use assets;
SREEERMNRETRREREEYRERE
MEREEENRENGMBL L HE®R
BETER

o Evaluating the appropriateness of the
valuation methodology and assumption of
pre-tax discount rate used in determining the
recoverable amount;

T & 8 T FT W Bl & #R AT R AR AR (B 75 0K R B Al
MIRERBROEESE

o Evaluating the appropriateness of other
key assumption and input, including the
growth rate of revenue by comparing to
historical performance and the management’s
expectations for the market development.
FREBERBAMNEEBHMSERNEAS
ETLE - A EMERBR LB ASE (2
AL E) EE M -
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. - continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors of the Company (the “Directors”) are responsible for the
other information. The other information comprises the information
included in the annual report, but does not include the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover
the other information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements,
our responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so,
consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with
the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in
the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based
on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
accordance with IFRS Accounting Standards as issued by the IASB and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the Directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the Directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either
intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no realistic
alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. — continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, in accordance
with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no other purpose. We do
not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance
with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected
to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.
We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and
obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit
in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion
on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the Directors.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. - continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related
to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that
a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in
our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Plan and perform the group audit to obtain sufficient appropriate
audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities
or business units within the group as a basis for forming an
opinion on the group financial statements. We are responsible for
the direction, supervision and review of the audit work performed
for purposes of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit
and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats
or safeguards applied.
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO.,
LTD. — continued

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

AUDITOR'S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF
THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(CONTINUED)

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance,
we determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period
and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances,
we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report
because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably
be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in the independent
auditor’s report is Lung, Wing Hung, David.

Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu
Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

27 March 2025
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
ReBEakHEMEEBRAR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HLEE

2024 2023
—E_-NFE —E-=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 5T AR T ARETF T
Revenue '@/ 5 4,754,843 5,917,962
Other income E g A 7 57,402 139,798
Raw materials and consumables used B B &M & R (1,672,795) (2,214,423)
Staff costs 8 TRk AR 11 (1,612,569) (1,862,892)
Property rentals and related expenses )2 & M IEREF X 1M (298,094) (311,085)
Utilities expenses NASEXEER (197,188) (225,872)
Depreciation and amortisation e gy 11 (777,245) (928,600)
Other expenses Hh = 8 (368,744) (431,620)
Other gains and losses H W zs R EE 9 (203,662) (135,213)
Finance costs B 75 B 2N 10 (71,084) (72,430)
Loss before tax FAEE 11 (389,136) (124,375)
Income tax expense Frisfimx 12 (9,341) (70,070)
Loss for the year E RN EE (398,477) (194,445)
Total comprehensive expense for FR2HEBEXHASE
the year (398,477) (194,445)
(Loss) profit for the year DTALTEMER (BE)
attributable to: F57 :
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIE7F=IN (400,681) (199,466)
Non-controlling interest FE 12 AR A 2 2,204 5,021
(398,477) (194,445)
Total comprehensive (expense) LTATEALAZE (BX)
income attributable to: U A #8855
Owners of the Company ViN/NEIEZF = IN (400,681) (199,466)
Non-controlling interest FE 12 AR A 2 2,204 5,021
(398,477) (194,445)
Loss per share BRER
— basic (RMB cents per share) — HEXRK(ERARESD) 13 (38.50) (19.16)
— diluted (RMB cents per share) —HE(BRARES) 13 (38.50) (19.16)
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE BN ER
As at 31 December 2024
RZZ-_mFE+=A=+—H

As at 31 December

BR+=-—A=+—8H
2024 2023
—E-F —E=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB’'000
B 5 AR® T ARET T
Non-current assets kRBEE
Property, plant and equipment M BENERE 16 556,283 894,362
Right-of-use assets EREEE 17 879,313 1,254,041
Intangible assets miEE 7,116 6,602
Deferred tax assets REFRIBE E 18 3,050 8,864
Rental deposits e 19 148,203 185,395
Financial assets at fair value through BBEZIEAFEFZ
profit or loss (“FVTPL") ([FRAEREBEAFE
AR ZERERE 22 132,766 127,253
Interest in a joint venture NELSDHE R 34 100,061 100,164
1,826,792 2,576,681
Current assets REBEE
Inventories TE 20 289,220 345,542
Trade and other receivables and H 5 e WK 30 K o e U
prepayments TRIE LA K FE A /I8 21 314,518 394,255
Income tax recoverable AT U Bl AT 15 %X 4,065 =
Financial assets at FVTPL EREREAFTETFEZ
TREE 22 454,194 526,741
Restricted bank balances X PRI ERITA R 23 87,871 143,686
Term deposits 7E Bi7F 5K 7,188 =
Cash and cash equivalents BehBeEE 24 362,695 129,366
1,519,751 1,539,590
Current liabilities REBAE
Trade payables B S EMNBRR 25 235,850 269,114
Accrual and other payables JEEtERARHMEMNKIE 26 486,152 557,524
Lease liabilities HEarE 27 292,355 379,035
Income tax payables FE RS = 14,065
Contract liabilities EXBEEAE 28 428,019 415,577
Deferred income IR FE WA 29 910 910
Bank borrowings 1T &K 30 380,406 248,580
1,823,692 1,884,805
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (303,941) (345,215)
Total assets less current liabilities B&EERREB AR 1,522,851 2,231,466
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
mE BRI R

As at 31 December 2024
RZZ-_mFE+=A=+—H

As at 31 December

Rt+=-—B=+—H
2024 2023
—F-mF ZT=F
Notes RMB’000 RMB'000
B 7 AR%T ARET T
Non-current liabilities kARBEE
Deferred income EIEW A 29 5,005 5,915
Lease liabilities MEAE 27 618,717 894,024
Provisions B iE 31 54,239 61,599
677,961 961,538
Net assets EEFE 844,890 1,269,928
Capital and reserves EXRKH#E
Share capital & A 32 176 176
Share premium and reserves A% 19 % (B I f% 15 773,911 1,201,153
Equity attributable to owners of the &R B A G
Company 774,087 1,201,329
Non-controlling interest FEFE RS RE S 70,803 68,599
Total equity ERAE 844,890 1,269,928

The consolidated financial statements on pages 90 to 204 were #H N FEI0E204E 7548 MG =& Hh
approved and authorised for issue by the board of Directors on 27 #ZEe@WR _E-_RAE=-A_-++H#E

March 2025 and are signed on its behalf by: REERM WA NIEERREE
Ho Kuang-Chi Hon Ping-Cho Terence
B BmE
DIRECTOR DIRECTOR
EFE EF
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

5 A 3L i
mEERBER
For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

Attributable to owners of the company

ARARAARGE
Equity-
settled
share-based ~ Statutory  Treasury Non-
Share Share  payments surplus share  Retained controlling
Capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest Total
HRE
BENRS
REBN R ER
kx  RHEE AREE BHEE  ROBE  REEW a FeRER &t
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AR¥TR ARBTR ARBTR ARETR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR AR¥Tn AR¥TR
(Note)
(&)
At 1 January 2023 R-F-=%-A-H 176 364,321 12,608 49480 (161,994) 1,193252 1,457,843 63,578 1,521,421
(Loss) profit for the year ER(EE)FIE = = = = - (199.466)  (199,466) 5021 (194,445)
Total comprehensive (expense) A 2E (A%
income for the year KAB% - - - - - (199466)  (199.466) 5021 (194,445)
Recognition of equity-settled RAREEEL KD
share-based payments BEBOAH = = 295 - - - 2952 = 2952
Exercise of RSU Scheme EIRANRH B = 3,566 (7,083) = 3517 = = = =
Payments of dividends (Note 15) JEFTAR & (Ft3k15) - (60,000 = = = - (60,000) - (60,000
Appropriation of statutory RIEERARE
surplus reserve - - - 12,194 - (12,194) - - -
At 31 December 2023 R-%-=%
+-A=t-H 176 307,887 8471 61674  (158477) 981592 1,201,329 68,599 1,269,928
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N O

Loty

—
For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE
Attributable to owners of the company
ARARAARGE
Equity-
settled
share-based ~ Statutory  Treasury Non-
Share Share  payments surplus share  Retained controlling
Capital ~ premium reserve reserve reserve  earnings Total interest Total
HRE
GENRR
BERN EE ER

Bx  R#EE GREE BEER
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

AE®TR AREBTR ARMTR ARMTR

Btk RERA it FeRRs i
RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000

ARBTR ARMTR ARMTR ARETR ARETR

(Note)
(i)
(Loss) profit for the year ER(BE)FIE - = = = - (400,681)  (400,681) 2,206 (398,477)
Total comprehensive (expense) A2 E (%)
income for the year LN - - - - - (400,681) (400,681) 2204  (398477)
Recognition of equity-settled RUREEEL KD
share-based payments RERNAR - - 3,806 - - - 3,806 - 3,806
Exercise of RSU Scheme ST DOETRE | - 2639 (5422 - 2783 - - - -
Payments of dividends (Note 15) JEFTAR & (Ft3k15) - (30,367) - - - - (30367) - (30367)
Appropriation of statutory RIEERARE
surplus reserve - - - 416 - (416) - - -
At 31 December 2024 it S 3
+ZA=1t-H 176 280,159 6,861 62,090  (155,694) 580,495 174,087 70,803 844,890
Note: Mzt -

According to the People’s Republic of China (“PRC"”) Company Law and the
Articles of Association of the PRC subsidiaries of the Group, these companies
are required to transfer 10% of their respective after-tax profits, calculated in
accordance with the relevant accounting principles and financial regulations
applicable to entities established in the PRC, to the statutory surplus reserve until
the reserve balance reaches 50% of the registered capital. The statutory surplus
reserve can be utilised, upon approval of the relevant authorities, to offset
accumulated losses or to increase registered capital of these companies, provided
that such fund is maintained at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital.

BIBREARLME ([HRE]) REERARE
ERBEMBEARMMAZEREME  ZE AT
BAHESARBERRP BN EENHERE
SHRARFBERAENTREFBEHNI0%
EALTEBRGEE BERELHEDTM
BEARE50% SRR BARL R - AT R
HEATAREHERTEEREMZERAN
HEMEAR  HZEECELEEREIME
ZR25% By K ZE o
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

= A = =
SMERERER
For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_T-_ME+-A=+—HItFE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—_A=+—HLEE

2024 2023
—EF —Eo=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET AREBTT
Operating activities R
Loss before tax A EE (389,136) (124,375)
Adjustments for: FHEE
Depreciation of property, ME BELRIEITE
plant and equipment 300,673 388,991
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FHREEENE 475,148 537,555
Amortisation of intangible assets B EE#HE 1,424 2,054
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HEME - BERRHEEHE -
equipment, net FER 4,383 2,349
Impairment loss, net of reversal WEERE  HRELD
— property, plant and equipment — W% BENEE 140,587 103,209
— right-of-use assets — AREE 64,009 46,876
— other receivables — H b e IR (1,775) (1,330)
— rental deposit —HeHe 29,975 12,736
Write-down of inventories GFEREEE = 44,555
Recognition of equity-settled share-based  #3R L/{Hx% EH AR D
payments 7%% 0k NEN 3,806 2,952
Interest income on bank deposit TERH B YA (7,104) (3,479)
Interest income on financial asset at ?Zﬂ%ﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ’ﬂﬁﬁﬂ
amortised cost LHREENTNEWA (4,042) (5,395)
Gain from changes in fair value of FRBEREATEAENEH
financial assets at FVTPL EEMNRAFEEHME R (27,312) (44,233)
Government grant released from deferred [ & % U A [0 &9 BT 46 B
income (910) (910)
Foreign exchange loss net X EE - F8 615 3,813
Finance costs B 75 X 7R 71,084 72,430
Gain on termination of lease wIFRE Y = (28,791) (13,403)
Gain on reassessment of lease liabilities BEAEEBEHRE (7,277) (20,879)
Loss on closure of restaurants AR EEEIE 27,463 1,520
Share of results of a joint venture BHEERRIZEE 103 (15)
Operating cash flows before movements in ZE & S EFHATMKLLIR©
working capital meE 652,923 1,005,021
Movements in working capital BELESERH
Decrease in inventories FERD 56,322 224,389
Decrease (increase) in trade receivables B 5 EWEE R A (3% h0) 40,592 (18,836)
Decrease (increase) in other receivables H b pE W Sk TE K% TR A 5k I8
and prepayments VTR (i‘j]l]) 41,131 (110,640)
(Decrease) increase in trade payables B EMER R )i*j]l] (33,264) 26,380
(Decrease)increase in accrual JEEJr%ﬁﬁ&ﬁ@JEH
and other payables CRL ) &N (33,072) 17,207
Increase in contract liabilities ABHEEEM 12,442 15,643
Cash generated from operations rEFFMERE 737,074 1,159,164
Income taxes paid ERAER (21,657) (24,328)
Net cash from operating activities RETHMBREER 715,417 1,134,836
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—_A=+—HLEE

2024 2023
—E_-_ME —_EF-=
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR% T AREBTT
Investing activities REED
Interests income received 2 A B A 7,104 3,479
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEAAEREATETEN
TREE (3,387,323) (2,204,656)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets H&FBIERIEAFEFED
at FVTPL SREEFMGNIA 3,481,669 1,985,098
Purchases of property, plant and BEME BERXE
equipment (237,802) (431,613)
Capital injection in a joint venture KWEREEDLENEE — (51,000)
Payments for right-of-use assets EAEEENK (3,542) (6,182)
Utilisation of provisions ) A (11,611) (8,448)
Withdrawal (Payments) for rental deposits & 14 R 2 (- 3%) 8,744 (23,328)
Proceeds from disposal of property, plant HEWE - BMENREFRS
and equipment FQE] 67,566 31,157
Purchases of intangible assets BERLEE (1,938) (6,646)
Withdrawal of restricted bank balances IRENE PR $I8R 1T 4 £ 159,051 58,150
Placement of restricted bank balances TAXRGIRTT 4 84 (103,236) (140,315)
Placement of term deposits with initial BFEAYA AR BB =18 A &
terms of over three months EHF S (7,188) =
Net cash used in investing activities RETEBFMARSFE (28,506) (794,304)
Financing activities RMEED
Dividend paid EfR’RE (29,779) (60,000)
Interest paid on bank borrowings EATIRITE KA E (9,571) (7,162)
Repayments of bank borrowings EERITHER (248,580) (58,678)
Repayments of leases liabilities HEBBEER (544,642) (632,292)
New bank borrowings raised MEERITER 380,406 248,580
Net cash used in financing activities MEZBHARSFE (452,166) (509,552)
Net increase(decrease) in cash and cash NEeRIRESZEEEMORD) F5E
equivalents 234,745 (169,020)
Cash and cash equivalents at FNHRERBEEE
the beginning of the year 129,366 300,706
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes MEREF 2 (1,416) (2,320)
Cash and cash equivalents at the end $RITEHRELDIEER
of the year represented by bank ReRBESEEY
balances and cash 362,695 129,366
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5

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e

Bt 355 R AR B

For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—

1.

“HE+ZA=t+—HILFE

GENERAL INFORMATION

Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (China) Holdings Co., Ltd.
(the “Company”) was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an
exempted company with limited liability under the Companies Law
of the Cayman Islands. Its shares have been listed on the main
board of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (“HKEX")
on 17 December 2014. The address of the registered office of
the Company is Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive P.O. Box 2681
Grand Cayman KY1-1111, Cayman Islands. The Company is an
investment holding company and the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as “the Group”) are principally engaged
in Chinese hotpot restaurant operations in the PRC.

The Company's immediate holding company is Ying Qi Investments
Limited (incorporated in the British Virgin Islands), and its ultimate
controlling party is Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi, who is also the Chairman
of the Company.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi
("RMB"), which is the same as the functional currency of the
Company.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs")

Amendments to IFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to IFRSs issued by the International Accounting
Standards Board (“IASB”) for the first time, which are mandatorily
effective for the annual periods beginning on or after 1 January
2024 for the preparation of the consolidated financial statements:

Amendments to IFRS 16 Lease Liability in a Sale and Leaseback

Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Noncurrent

Non-current Liabilities with Covenants

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 1

Amendments to IAS 7
and IFRS 7

Supplier Finance Arrangements

The application of the amendments to IFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial positions
and performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

—REH

ﬂﬁﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁﬁ”ﬁﬁzaaﬁ(q: Bl) =R AB

RNR(RAF]) RERSHS
Qﬁiﬁ&%ﬂ%ﬁi%%ﬁﬂ%)ﬁﬁ%%%@
EHERAA - KARAFHBRHBERZ
T-MFEF+_A+EtARBBEHSE
RGMBMBR AR ([HBRAT]) E#
RET o AAR M= E i A
Cricket Square, Hutchins Drive P.O.
Box 2681 Grand Cayman KY1-
1111, Cayman Islands ° &N A & &
?xﬁ%lﬂﬁ’AT [ VNGIDSE: Y =

RAE(AEIAEE]) TEETE
fERANRERES -

RARMEEER QR AYing Qi
Investments Limited (7 5 & iz % Bf
SEMy) REFKRERARE
HEESE  BEIRARRRIRESE -

REMBREAARE TARE])
25 ARBITRARRNINEER
?ﬁé} o

J‘5A$¢F AREBBEXRERTIMH
BERetEAZ8e (BIRE
BAZEE]) BHNBEKETER
FEABIIAN(R=_FT_MF—A
— Bk 2 R B B 92 Hl &
) AR BLR B S R ¢

BARMBREEN ESREAZTHE
F16% (BF1 &) ERE

BREsEAE 1% RYAENERD
CHEN, BEZNE
BEREstERE 1R MAOREFNE
(B3 K) REEE
BIRgERER HEARELRH

RERRBRE

EEYLACHES)

AN JE e A BIBR B 15 s 5 R RIE ET
AR RS EE A S B EHIRE A
FEIRR R RBR K, 3% 5 B4R
EMBHRRAENREEREKRE
KL

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z—[&EER 97/



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS 2. ERERYBERSER
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING ([ B B Bt 75 3 25 2 B ) 4
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (CONTINUED) HIE:NE )

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet EEMERRREN ZFHE
effective PR B 7 3R 5 2E B e HASET AR
The Group has not early applied the following new and AREFBTHEIEZFEA T EHE
amendments to IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet ﬁéﬁﬂii%{ﬁ’g%ﬁﬁ@%,ﬂ?fﬁ%#&%ﬁﬁlj
effective: T B B B 75 R 45 ZE BI S BT
Amendments to IFRS 9 Amendments to the Classification B2 B & 3R 45 B épﬂlﬂ Hits
and IFRS 7 and Measurement of Financial % K BB BT 2 &3
Instruments’ HEERFETHRE
(24
Amendments to IFRS 9 Contracts Referencing YRR BRE RBAREEHE N
and IFRS 7 Nature-dependent Electricity’ RN ERA LK
(BB B RS %
EIVEYE A=l H)
Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between BRI EREER REEHEHBENA
and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint F10RRBB e HAELRZAM
Venture' EHE28HMETT  BEHEXHE
Amendments to IFRS Annual Improvements to IFRS BB SR &R BRI KR ESL
Accounting Standards Accounting Standards — Volume 11° SHERNE] SHENNEER
& — FIr
Amendments to IAS 21 Lack of Exchangeability® Bl estE8|5E215 R ashm
#ER]
IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Bt £8|518% MERRMNITIE
Statements® wE
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be ! NEFETHEKZERIENEE
determined. BRI AE K o
? Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2025. 2 R-E-_RAF—A—Bsz&H

TREY R BB AR o

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2026. 3 RZEBE-_RF—A—Bx%z2&HA
IR S HAR AR -
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027. 4 R-E-_+tF—HF—HBsz2&H

TREY R HAR] AR o

Except for the new and amendments to IFRSs mentioned below, B%Tjﬁﬁ;_‘%ﬁiﬂ&@ﬂ%ﬂ(([ﬁf’%ﬂj
the directors of the Company anticipate that the application of all BWHMESERYIN RATRES
other new and amendments to IFRSs will have no material impact (TE&=|)JEHER A FHaT
on the consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future. BUBR B 75 3 & XE Bl Jp HAE 5T AN A |
RARRTEHGEMBRERELS

-2 -

98 MWHEHEREE (FE) ZRARAF XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.



For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

2.

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS
TO INTERNATIONAL FINANCIAL REPORTING
STANDARDS (“IFRSs") (CONTINUED)

New and amendments to IFRSs in issue but not yet
effective (continued)

IFRS 18 Presentation and Disclosure in Financial Statements, which
sets out requirements on presentation and disclosures in financial
statements, will replace IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements.
This new IFRS Accounting Standard, while carrying forward many
of the requirements in IAS 1, introduces new requirements to
present specified categories and defined subtotals in the statement
of profit or loss; provide disclosures on management-defined
performance measures in the notes to the financial statements
and improve aggregation and disaggregation of information
to be disclosed in the financial statements. In addition, some
IAS 1 paragraphs have been moved to IAS 8 and IFRS 7. Minor
amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows and IAS 33
Earnings per Share are also made.

IFRS 18, and amendments to other standards, will be effective for
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2027, with early
application permitted. The application of the new standard is
expected to affect the presentation of the statement of profit or
loss and disclosures in the future financial statements. The Group
is in the process of assessing the detailed impact of IFRS 18 on the
Group's consolidated financial statements.

2.
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T BERmRT 25 EH A
EER /NG R SRR T IR
HEWEIEERENEBIERNR
B ARBGEM B RER T REEM
MARRB AN DR - hh - BIFR At E
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RS2 R TRE B ARE T o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION

3.1 Basis of preparation of consolidated financial
statements

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with IFRSs issued by the IASB. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements,
information is considered material if such information
is reasonably expected to influence decisions made by
primary users. In addition, the consolidated financial
statements include applicable disclosures required by the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on HKEX (“Listing
Rules”) and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

As at 31 December 2024, the Group's current
liabilities exceeded its current assets by approximately
RMB303,941,000. The liquidity of the Group is primarily
dependent on its ability to maintain adequate cash inflows
from operations and sufficient financing to meet its financial
obligations as and when they fall due. The Directors have
a reasonable expectation that the Group has adequate
resources to continue in operational existence after taking
into account of the future 12 months cash flow forecast
and the unused banking facilities of the Group amounting
to RMB290 million to meet their financial obligations in the
foreseeable future. Thus they continue to adopt the going
concern basis of accounting in preparing the consolidated
financial statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

(i)  has power over the investee;

(i) is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

(iii) has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specially, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
controls until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_T-_ME+-A=+—HItFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. f%:z?.a?\ér BERz2EE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL BEESTHE#)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

32 EEERBEE)

102

(continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the
non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets, liabilities, equity, income, expenses and
cash flows relating to transactions between members of the
Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group's equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements using
the equity method of accounting. The financial statements
of joint ventures used for equity accounting purposes
are prepared using uniform accounting policies as those
of the Group for like transactions and events in similar
circumstances. Under the equity method, an investment
in a joint venture is initially recognised in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group's share of the profit or loss
and other comprehensive income of joint venture. When the
Group's share of losses of joint venture exceeds the Group's
interest in that joint venture (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group's net
investment in the joint venture), the Group discontinues
recognising its share of further losses. Additional losses are
recognised only to the extent that the Group has incurred
legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of the joint venture.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using the
equity method from the date on which the investee becomes
a joint venture. On acquisition of the investment in a joint
venture, any excess of the cost of the investment over the
Group's share of the net fair value of the identifiable assets
and liabilities of the investee is recognised as goodwill, which
is included within the carrying amount of the investment.
Any excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the
investment, after reassessment, is recognised immediately
in profit or loss in the period in which the investment is
acquired.

The Group assesses whether there is an objective evidence
that the interest in a joint venture may be impaired. When
any objective evidence exists, the entire carrying amount of
the investment (including goodwill) is tested for impairment
in accordance with IAS 36 as a single asset by comparing its
recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair value less
costs of disposal) with its carrying amount. Any impairment
loss recognised is not allocated to any asset, including
goodwill, that forms part of the carrying amount of the
investment. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
in accordance with IAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable
amount of the investment subsequently increases.

Information about the Group’s accounting policies relating to
contracts with customers is provided in Notes 5, 6 and 28.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

WMEGEUBHRR2EE
REESHEE#®

32 EEERBE(E)

(continued)

Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after the date
of initial application or arising from business combinations,
the Group assesses whether a contract is or contains a
lease based on the definition under IFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate.
Such contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or non-lease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price of
the non-lease components.

Non-lease components are separated from lease component
and are accounted for by applying other applicable
standards.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (conTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Short-term leases

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of restaurants, rented premises and
catering delivery robots that have a lease term of 12 months
or less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. Lease payments on short-term leases are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets

The cost of right-of-use assets includes:

° the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the commencement
date, less any lease incentives received,;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group
in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

H=E

3.

—ECNFt A=t —HIEFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term are depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under IFRS
9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional lease
payments and included in the cost of right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include fixed payments (including
in-substance fixed payments).

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rate are not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as expense in
the period in which the event or condition that triggers the
payment occurs.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. mELKS
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FEESTHEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EESHBER(E)

(continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued) KEFERZERHBEA (B

Lease liabilities (continued) HEEE (&)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted RABBHE HEaEH®

by interest accretion and lease payments. F 212 o0 & FR & A FRAE

o

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a MEBEELATBRL ANEHE

corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets) M EMEAE ARG
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

RAEGECHBRERCEE
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32 EEERBEE)

(continued)

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that
are held for use in the production or supply of goods or
services, or for administrative purposes (other than properties
under construction as described below). Property, plant and
equipment other than construction in progress as described
below are stated in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation
and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Construction in progress is carried at cost, less any
recognised impairment loss. Construction in progress is
classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant
and equipment when completed and ready for intended
use. Costs include any costs directly attributable to bringing
the asset to the location and condition necessary for it
to be capable of operating in the manner intended by
management, including costs of testing whether the related
assets is functioning properly. Depreciation of these assets,
on the same basis as other property, plant and equipment,
commences when the assets are ready for their intended use.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (conTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

When the Group makes payments for ownership interests of
properties which includes both leasehold land and building
elements, the entire consideration is allocated between the
leasehold land and the building elements in proportion to
the relative fair values at initial recognition. To the extent
the allocation of the relevant payments can be made reliably,
interest in leasehold land is presented as “right-of-use
assets” in the consolidated statement of financial position.
When the consideration cannot be allocated reliably between
non-lease building element and undivided interest in the
underlying leasehold land, the entire properties are classified
as property, plant and equipment.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets other than construction in progress less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line
method. The estimated useful lives, residual values and
depreciation method are reviewed at the end of each
reporting period, with the effect of any changes in estimate
accounted for on a prospective basis.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)
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At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets and intangible assets with finite useful
lives to determine whether there is any indication that
those assets have suffered an impairment loss. If any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant
asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impairment loss, if any.
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The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually, when it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the
asset belongs.
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In testing a cash-generating unit for impairment, corporate
assets are allocated to the relevant cash-generating unit
when a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, or otherwise they are allocated to the smallest
group of cash generating units for which a reasonable
and consistent allocation basis can be established. The
recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit or group of cash-generating units to which the
corporate asset belongs, and is compared with the carrying
amount of the relevant cash-generating unit or group of
cash-generating units.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
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(continued)

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated to
that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units. In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated to the
assets on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of cash-generating units.
The carrying amount of an asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable),
its value in use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated to
the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit
or the group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) is increased to the revised
estimate of its recoverable amount, but so that the increased
carrying amount does not exceed the carrying amount that
would have been determined had no impairment loss been
recognised for the asset (or a cash-generating unit or a
group of cash-generating units) in prior years. A reversal of
an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

Income tax expense represents the sum of current and
deferred income tax expense.
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The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/(loss) before tax
because of income or expense that are taxable or deductible
in other years and items that are never taxable or deductible.
The Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax
rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the

end of the reporting period.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
base used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for
all deductible temporary difference to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which
those deductible temporary differences can be utilised. Such
deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if the
temporary difference arises from the initial recognition (other
than in a business combination) of assets and liabilities in
a transaction that affects neither the taxable profit nor the
accounting profit and at the time of the transaction does
not give rise to equal taxable and deductible temporary
differences.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
joint venture, except where the Group is able to control the
reversal of the temporary difference and it is probable that
the temporary difference will not reverse in the foreseeable
future. Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will be
sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits
of the temporary differences and they are expected to
reverse in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EEETRE (&)

(continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which
the liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax
rate (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects
the tax consequences that would follow from the manner in
which the Group expects, at the end of the year, to recover
or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies IAS 12
requirements to the lease liabilities. The Group recognises
a deferred tax asset related to lease liabilities to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available
against which the deductible temporary difference can be
utilised and a deferred tax liability for all taxable temporary
differences.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (conTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation
authority.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

In assessing any uncertainty over income tax treatments,
the Group considers whether it is probable that the relevant
tax authority will accept the uncertain tax treatment used,
or proposed to be use by individual group entities in their
income tax filings. If it is probable, the current and deferred
taxes are determined consistently with the tax treatment in
the income tax filings. If it is not probable that the relevant
taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax treatment,
the effect of each uncertainty is reflected by using either the
most likely amount or the expected value.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

For the purposes of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of:

(@) cash, which comprises of cash on hand and demand
deposits, excluding bank balances that are subject to
regulatory restrictions that result in such balances no
longer meeting the definition of cash; and

(b) cash equivalents, which comprises of short-term
(generally with original maturity of three months
or less), highly liquid investments that are readily
convertible to a known amount of cash and which
are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in
value. Cash equivalents are held for the purpose of
meeting short-term cash commitments rather than for
investment or other purposes.

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realizable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method. Net realisable value represents the
estimated selling price for inventories less all estimated costs
of completion and costs necessary to make the sale. Costs
necessary to make the sale include incremental costs directly
attributable to the sale and non-incremental costs which the
Group must incur to make the sale.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. MERCUBHERERZEE
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL FEESTHEE)
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
3.2 Material accounting policy information 3.2 EEETRE (&)

(continued)

118

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

Restoration provisions

Provisions for the costs to restore leased assets to their
original condition, as required by the terms and conditions of
the lease, are recognised at the date of inception of the lease
at the directors' best estimate of the expenditure that would
be required to restore the assets. Estimates are regularly
reviewed and adjusted as appropriate for new circumstances.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of
financial assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within
the time frame established by regulation or convention in the
market place.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with IFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the
fair value of the financial assets or financial liabilities, as
appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial
liabilities at FVTPL are recognised immediately in profit or
loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating
the amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense over
the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate
that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
transaction costs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (conTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial assets

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI"):

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3.

BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

A financial asset is held for trading if:

it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as
a hedging instrument.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently
at amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of a financial asset, except for financial assets
that have subsequently become credit-impaired (see
below). For financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired, interest income is recognised
by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the credit-impaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no
longer credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by
applying the effective interest rate to the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset from the beginning of the
reporting period following the determination that the
asset is no longer credit-impaired.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3. BT
RE

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (conTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information 32 EESHBER(E)
(continued)
Financial assets (continued) T EE (&)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (continued)

(i) Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss includes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is included
in the “other gains and losses” line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss (“ECL") model on financial assets (including trade
receivables, other receivables, rental deposits, term deposits,
restricted bank balances and bank balances) which are
subject to impairment assessment under IFRS 9. The amount
of ECL is updated at each reporting date to reflect changes
in credit risk since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

(continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL")
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group's historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed individually
for debtors.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL
ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (conTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information

124

(continued)

Financial assets (continued)
Impairment of financial assets (continued)

The measurement of ECL is a function of the probability
of default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the
loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default. The
assessment of the probability of default and loss given
default is based on historical data and forward-looking
information. Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and
probability-weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all contractual
cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance with
the contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to
receive, discounted at the effective interest rate determined
at initial recognition.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit-impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit
or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting their
carrying amount, with the exception of trade receivables,
other receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

3. BASIS OF PREPARATION OF CONSOLIDATED 3.
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AND MATERIAL

ACCOUNTING POLICY INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

3.2 Material accounting policy information
(continued)

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a financial
liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of the entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity instruments.

Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including bank borrowings, trade payables
and other payables) are subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
have expired. The difference between the carrying amount of
the financial liability derecognised and the consideration paid
and payable is recognised in profit or loss.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, which
are described in Note 3, the Directors are required to make
judgements, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amount
of assets and liabilities that are not readily apparent from other
sources. The estimates and underlying assumptions are based on
historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in
the period in which the estimates is revised if the revision affects
only that period, or in the period of the revision and the future
periods if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those
involving estimations (see below), that the Directors have made in
the process of applying the Group's accounting policies and that
have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the
consolidated financial statements.

The Group applies judgement to determine the lease term for
lease contracts in which it is a lessee that include renewal option,
specifically, the leases relating to restaurants. The assessment
of whether the Group is reasonably certain to exercise renewal
options impacts the lease term, which significantly affects the
amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets recognised.
Re-assessment is performed upon the occurrence of either a
significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is
within the control of lessee and that affects the assessment.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

When assessing reasonable certainty, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances including economic incentives/
penalties for exercising or not exercising the options. Factors
considered include:

o contractual terms and conditions for the optional periods
compared with market rates (e.g. whether the amount of
payments in the optional periods is below the market rates);

o the extent of leasehold improvements undertaken by Group;

° costs relating to termination of the lease (e.g. relocation
costs, costs of identifying another underlying asset suitable
for the Group's needs);

During the year ended 31 December 2024, the exercise
of the renewal option resulted in an additional amount of
RMB105,238,000 (31 December 2023: RMB134,343,000) of
right-of-use assets and lease liabilities recognised.

The Group has termination options for leases of restaurants. These
are used to maximize operational flexibility in terms of managing
the assets used in the Group's operations. The majority of the
termination options held are only exercisable by the Group not by
the respective lessors.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Critical judgements in applying accounting
policies (continued)

The Group assessed at lease commencement date and concluded
it is reasonably certain not to exercise the termination options. In
addition, the Group reassesses whether it is reasonably certain not
to exercise a termination option, upon the occurrence of either a
significant event or a significant change in circumstances that is
within the control of the lessee.

As a result, the Group remeasure the lease liability to reflect
changes to the lease payments. The Group recognised the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to
the right-of-use assets. However, for the leases that the carrying
amount of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero and there is
a further reduction in the measurement of the lease liability, the
Group recognised the remaining amount of the remeasurement in
profit or loss amounted to RMB7,277,000 (2023: RMB20,879,000)
during the current year.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within
the next financial year.

Leasehold improvements and right-of-use assets are stated at
costs less accumulated depreciation and impairment, if any. The
Directors review their impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that their carrying amounts may not be
recoverable at the end of each reporting period. An impairment
loss is recognised for the amount by which the asset's carrying
amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount
is the higher of an asset's fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use.

EStHERMAEFTE
ERR 2

A& BN ERIG B HET I
RRARBWEETR(TEKIHES
o O - B B R AR I
B9 0 B A B ¢ 3 B K5OR8 B
% AEEEETIERTARRE
BTG (T4 EIR 1248 -

Al AEEEH=HEEEMN
REBAENZTNES - KEBGFE
R EHEEEN e ERRAREFE
RAEEEZHE - R HRER
BEERAEARZEZENEE A
HEBBHEFHE—LFAR &
SERAFERNIEZENERENT
ENHBTEEARYT?,277,0007T
—TE=- =% : AR¥20,879,000
JT) °

HEr T HRERZNEZRR

TXRABESHRRAULEHEER
BENREEAR T —EMREE
AELEARENBRRENER
SR MR T EEREMNEMER
R o

HEMERERERBEEELK
AR RFHTERRE (E) 251 -
REFEHR  EFHRBERNE
BRHEREEREERKREE B
SERMEBERBR - REBENLE
EREEBLEANKESENER
TR - IR EBAEENR
FERHERAREREE RN

TR RS IR (P AR B RAR] XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.




For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—

4,

ZoWE+=A=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

In determining whether an asset is impaired, the Group have to
exercise judgement and make estimation, particularly in assessing:
(1) whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset
can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of
value in use, the net present value of future cash flows which
are estimated based upon the continued use of the asset; and
(3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in estimating
the recoverable amounts including cash flow projections and
an appropriate pre-tax discount rate. When it is not possible to
estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset (including
right-of-use assets), the Group estimate the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the assets belongs, including
allocation of corporate assets when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be established, otherwise recoverable
amount is determined at the smallest group of cash generating
units, for which the relevant corporate assets have been allocated.
Changing the assumption and estimate, including the growth rate
of revenue and the discount rate assumptions in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the recoverable amounts.

As at 31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of leasehold
improvements and right-of-use assets subject to impairment
assessment were RMB211,792,000 and RMB329,700,000 (31
December 2023: RMB301,894,000 and RMB324,019,000)
respectively, after taking into account the impairment losses
of RMB124,527,000 and RMB64,009,000 recognised for the
year ended 31 December 2024 (2023: RMB86,897,000 and
RMB46,876,000). Details of the impairment of leasehold
improvements and right-of-use assets are disclosed in Notes 16
and 17 respectively.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(CONTINUED)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses
and deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable temporary difference and taxable profit
will be available. Significant management judgement is required
to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies. Where the
expectation is different from the original estimates, such difference
will impact the recognition of deferred tax assets and income
tax in the period in which such estimates are changed. As at 31
December 2024, deferred tax assets recognised are approximately
RMB201,966,000 (31 December 2023: RMB300,075,000). No
deferred tax asset has been recognised on the tax losses of
RMB1,001,578,000 and deductible temporary differences of
RMB670,166,000 (2023: RMB645,482,000 and RMB634,231,000)
respectively, due to the unpredictability of future profit streams in
respective subsidiaries. Further details are contained in Note 18.

The Group applies incremental borrowing rates as the discount
rates of lease liabilities, which require financing spread adjustments
and lease specific adjustments based on the relevant market rates.
The assessments of the adjustments in determining the discount
rates involved management's judgement, which may significantly
affect the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets. As at
31 December 2024, the carrying amounts of right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities are RMB879,313,000 and RMB911,072,000
(2023: RMB1,254,041,000 and RMB1,273,059,000) respectively.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

5. REVENUE

The Group generates revenues from restaurant operation and sales
of condiment products and other goods.

For restaurant operation, the control of services and food is
transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when the
related services have been rendered to customers.

The Group operates several kinds of customer loyalty program for
its restaurant operation, including:

Prepaid cards. Prepaid card is purchased by customers with
a discount to its face value, which can be utilised in the
future consumption in restaurants at customers' discretion.
The amount received from selling prepaid cards is recorded
in contract liabilities and deferred until they are redeemed by
customers when the Group fulfils its obligations to provide
services or goods or when they expire.

The customer loyalty points. Customers are granted with
loyalty points via consumption in restaurants, which entitle
them to future purchases and consumptions in restaurants by
offsetting the award credits. The loyalty point is treated as a
separate performance obligation and will be expired at the
end of the coming year. The Group allocates the transaction
price to each performance obligation on a relative standalone
selling price basis. The amount allocated to the loyalty
point is recorded in contract liabilities and deferred until
the loyalty points are redeemed when the Group fulfils its
obligations to provide services or goods or when the points
expire. In determining the relative standalone selling price
of the loyalty point, the Group considers likelihood of future
redemption based on historical redemption pattern and
reviews such estimates periodically based upon the latest
available information regarding redemption and expiration
patterns.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. WA )

132

The privilege membership program. Customers purchase
the privilege membership with consideration, which offer
customers with privilege members rights to multiple benefits
with a twelve months' valid period after the purchase.
Consideration received is recorded in contract liabilities
and deferred until it is redeemed by customers when the
Group fulfils its obligations to provide services or goods or
when it expires. The Group allocates consideration received
to benefits based on their relative standalone selling price.
In determining the relative standalone selling price of the
benefits, the Group considers likelihood of future redemption
based on historical redemption pattern and reviews such
estimates periodically based upon the latest available
information regarding redemption and expiration patterns.

Revenue from the sales of condiment products and other goods
for which the control of goods is transferred at a point in time,
is recognised when the goods are delivered and titles have been
passed.

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts
with customers

During the year, the Group's revenue which represents
the amount received and receivable from the restaurants
operation, sales of condiment products and other goods
and services, net of discount and sales related taxes, are as
follows:
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BE-E-_ME+-A=+-HLEE

Xiabuxiabu Coucou Others Total
M g NEF I BE Ht et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTRT AR®Tn AR%¥Tn AR%¥Tx
Type of goods or service & @ REE R
Restaurant operations BERER 2,627,069 1,948,225 - 4,575,294
Sales of condiment products  #4& FH£ & & - - 128,990 128,990
Sales of other goods and HEHME R RRS
services 2,152 29 48,378 50,559
Total @zt 2,629,221 1,948,254 177,368 4,754,843
Geographical markets i &%
Mainland China R B A 2,612,403 1,604,257 177,368 4,394,028
Other markets F B K BE LA S 16,818 343,997 - 360,815
Total BET 2,629,221 1,948,254 177,368 4,754,843
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

5. REVENUE (conTINUED)

(i)

Disaggregation of revenue from contracts

with customers (continued)

5. WA #®)
(i) BEEEHWADIF(E)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BE-_Z_=F+_A=1+—HLFE

Xiabuxiabu Coucou Others Total
NER g D g BE Hith BEr
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETIT ARETT ARBTT ARETR
Type of goods or service i i 2 AR % 38 Bl
Restaurant operations BEXEK 3,021,971 2,651,793 22,026 5,695,790
Sales of condiment products  $#H& K Em = = 122,004 122,004
Sales of other goods and & Hoth 78 o ] IR S
services 1,907 64 98,197 100,168
Total BE 3,023,878 2,651,857 242,227 5,917,962
Geographical markets 1t & %
Mainland China Ll 3,004,393 2,340,621 242,227 5,587,241
Other markets AR 3 K B A OB 19,485 311,236 = 330,721
Total BT 3,023,878 2,651,857 242,227 5,917,962

No revenue from individual external customer contributing

over 10% of total revenue of the Group.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

5. REVENUE (CONTINUED) 5. WA @)

(ii) Transaction price allocated to the remaining (i) ?7EEEZEFESAFGRE
performance obligation for contracts with HNEINRSZE
customers
The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance SREFRGBHOERETE KRBT
obligation (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) and the KESDRETT) I 5B N iE
expected timing of recognising revenue are as follows: R AR TERRREHY T
As at 31 December 2024 RZZEZMFE+=—HA=+—H

Privilege Customer Advance
membership loyalty Prepaid from
programs scheme cards customer
& BE
SEE SHEESTE B+ BEFEX

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TRE AR®BTRE AR®BTR AR®TR

Within one year —F A 126,114 27,432 270,285 4,188
Total S 126,114 27,432 270,285 4,188
As at 31 December 2023 RE-_=F+-_A=+—H
Privilege Customer Advance

membership loyalty Prepaid from

programs scheme cards customer

& B
858 AHEFE B BEFEB®

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTE ARBTIT AR®BTIT ARETRT

Within one year —F R 44,542 21,048 343,700 6,287

Total #E 44,542 21,048 343,700 6,287
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

6.

OPERATING SEGMENTS

Information reported to the executive directors of the Company,
being the chief operating decision maker (“CODM"), for the
purposes of resource allocation and assessment of segment
performance focuses on types of goods or services delivered or
provided.

Specifically, the Group's reportable segments under IFRS 8 are as
follows:

o Xiabuxiabu: restaurant operation and related service under
brand name of “Xiabuxiabu”.

o Coucou: restaurant operation and related service under
brand name of “Coucou”.

In addition to the above reportable segments, other operating
segments include operation of the condiment products and
other goods that were not sold out by Xiabuxiabu restaurants or
Coucou restaurants. None of these segments met the quantitative
thresholds for the reportable segments in both current and prior
year. Accordingly, these were grouped in “Others”. In addition,
included in “Others” is a procurement function which centrally
purchases raw materials and consumables and sells to Xiabuxiabu
and Coucou restaurants.
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CconTINUED) 6.

Segment revenues and results

3Pl )

DR AR A
AREEIZ A 2/ D A& D

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results
from continuing operations by reportable segments:

> 5 4 4T
BEBMAREESFOT :
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For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-Z-_WmNE+=-HA=+—HL
FE
Total Adjustments
reportable and
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others eliminations  Consolidated
RHHR BE T2RIDEE Ay BEREH G
RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AE®Tn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETz  ARETR  ARETR
SEGMENT REVENUE AHUA
External sales MNEEE 2,629,221 1,948,254 4,577,475 177,368 - 4,754,843
Inter-segment sales AEREE = = = 2673686  (2,673,646) =
2,629,221 1,948,254 4,577,475 2,851,014 (2,673,646) 4,754,843
Segment results (Note) PBEE (W) 90,053 (181,242) (91,189) 22,955 - (68,234)
Impairment losses on property, plant and % EERIEREEE
equipment (46,973) (93,614) (140,587) - - (140,587)
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets FRELEREEE (27,531) (36,472) (64,009) - - (64,009)
Reversal of impairment losses on other receivables 2 B Y3 EH EER - = = 1,775 = 1,175
Impairment loss on rental deposit BeAe AERE (117) (22,7%) (29,975) = = (29,975)
Loss on closure of restaurants BRAERE (8,541) (16,538) (25,079) (2,384) - (27.463)
Gain from changes in fair value of BARREATHEIBNEHAEN
financial assets at FVTPL RHEZBRERE 21,344 - 21,384 5,968 - 731
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BERABEASE
equipment, net (1,654) (148) (1,802) (2,581) - (4,383)
Interest on bank borrowings BTRRNE (1,226) (23m) (3.603) (5,968) = (9.571)
Seqment profit (oss) PEE (BB 18,289 (353,189) (334,900) 19,765 - (315,135)
Unallocated central administration costs AORS-EEHE (69,198)
Unallocated directors emoluments AOEEZHM (4,803)
Loss before tax HABE (389,136)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. R&EDI(#&)
Segment revenues and results (continued) DEBAREE (Z)
Other segment information H fth 5 30 & H
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: AN HEGETENSE
Total
reportable Unallocated
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others costs  Consolidated
RE R R UEEANEE iy XARAK &4

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB*000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000
ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARMTR

Depreciation and amrtisation EREH (431,444) (328,353) (759,797) (16,370) (1,078) (777,245)
Gain on termination of lease BHREHEE 14,916 13875 28,791 - - 28,791
(Gain on reassessment of lease liabilities Ly 2426 4,851 1201 - - 1211
Finance costs (excluding interest on bank HEHA(TRERNERHE)

borrowings) (43,526) (17,981) (61,513) - - (61,513)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

BE-E-—MFE+-A=+—AILFE
6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (conTINUED) 6. R&EDI(#&)
Segment revenues and results (continued) DEUMARELE (B)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BE-_ZE-_=f+=-H=+—HL
FE

The following is an analysis of the Group's revenue and results

AT RAGR B #5482 E X HURA

138

from continuing operations by reportable segments: REBERBEDHODNT
Total Adjustments
reportable and
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others eliminations  Consolidated
REER % T2RABEE By  BEREH 4
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
SEGMENT REVENUE AHUA
External sales MNEEE 3,023,878 2,651,857 5,675,735 242,221 - 5,917,962
Inter-segment sales AEREE - - - 437,466 (437 466) -
3,023,878 2,651,857 5,675,735 679,693 (437 466) 5,917,962
Seqment results (Note) AREE () 118441 2957) 115,484 (27,569) = 87,915
Impairment losses on property, plant and % EERIEREEE
equipment (17,518) (65,816) (83,334) (19,875) - (103,209)
Impairment losses on right-of-use assets FRELEREEE (23,541) (19.414) (42,955) (3,921) = (46,876)
Reversal of impairment losses on other receivables B YZIEH EER 1330 - 1,330 = = 1330
Impairment loss on rental deposit BeALZAERE (3,415) (6,692) (10,107 (2,629) = (12,736)
Loss on closure of restaurants BREEER (1,161) (359) (1,520) = = (1,520)
Gain from changes in fair value of BARREATHEIBNEHEAEN
financial assets at FVTPL ATERDH G R 42576 - 42,576 1,657 - 44233
Loss on disposal of property, plant and HENE BERABEATE
equipment, net (1,061) (449) (1510 (839) - (2,349
Interest on bank borrowings RTEHHE (1,291) (2,691) (3,982) (3,180) = (7,162)
Segment profit (loss) AHHE (BB 114,360 (98,378) 15,982 (56,356) - (40,374)
Unallocated central administration costs AORS-EEHE (77,889)
Unallocated directors " emoluments AOEEZHM (6,112)
Loss before tax ikl (124,375)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. K&EH B(%%")
Segment revenues and results (continued) o 2pUE A & (&)
For the year ended 31 December 2023 (continued) BE-—E-=%+=-H=+—HL
FE (&)
Other segment information HitoHER
Amounts included in the measure of segment results: AN HEGBENSE
Total
reportable Unallocated
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others costs Consolidated
RERE R W2RHPEE iy RARRA &

RVBOOD  RVBOOD  RVBO0D  RWBO00  RWB00  RWB'00
ARBTL  ARETR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  AREBTR

Depreciation and amrtisation HEREH (510,201) (395,993) (906,194) (21,38) (1,078) (928,600)
Gain on termination of lease BIEBENKE 13403 - 13,403 - - 13403
Gain on reassessment of lease liabilities Erpiyen 12,276 8,603 20,879 - - 20,879
Finance costs (excluding interest on bank SEHA(PRRERTERFE)
borrowings) (38,766) (25,893) (64,659) (609) - (65,268)
Impairment of write-down of inventories FERERR - - - (44,555) - (44,555)
Note: The measure used for reporting segment result is the adjusted Wat: MO BREEFMBET AR
segment profit (loss) before (i) Certain gain or loss from changes ME(ERBBH R D FEFE
in fair value of financial assets at FVTPL, (ii) Interest on bank MEMEEAFERPAEE
borrowings, (iii) Impairment loss and disposal loss on non-current ¥”& (&5 18) : (i8R 1T f& K FI
assets, (iv) Impairment loss on financial assets and (v) Loss on closure B (ii)3E R B & BERE B 1R &
of restaurants. HEBE (WeREERES

B RWERBEAMELNE
RATR TR D BB AE (B18R) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. RE&EDI &
Segment revenues and results (continued) DEBUW AR FELE (Z)
The accounting policies of the operating segments are the ZELE D B R F 5T B B 53
same as the Group's accounting policies described in Note 3. P AEEBSTBRER B9
Segment profit/(loss) represents the profit earned by profit/ BFRE (BB AES D BHRERL
loss from each segment without allocation of certain gain/(loss) B EEmEiE ghEsie
from changes in fair value of financial assets/liabilities at FVTPL, BREREATEITENEREE
central administration costs and directors' emoluments. This is SEBENAFESEEE TS
the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of resource (B8 S EBRARES
allocation and performance assessment. oo W B EIRD B R FRIB T
MEELERREBRENTETE -
Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates. DHEMBEERFITMEEEREE -
Segment assets and liabilities PHEERARE
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets and liabilities by NEBIZA2HRLEKEEDEEHHY
reportable and operating segments: BENBESTWT :
As at 31 December 2024
R-BZRETZA=1-8
Total
reportable Unallocated
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others assets  Consolidated
RE R BE UEEADAE it RAREE he

RMBO00  RMBO00  RMBOOO  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB'00
ARRTR  ARBTR  ARRTR  ARRIR  ARBTR  ARRTR

Segment assets IHEE 2,540,284 627,958 3,168,242 178,301 103,740 3,450,283
Other segment information A APEs

Amounts included in the measure of seqment ~ FFASFEEHENLE !

assefs:

Interest in a joint venture REELENER - - - 100,061 - 100,061
Additions to property, plant and equipment  FENE - BERZE 164,797 21,505 186,302 13,200 - 199,502
Additions to right-of-use assets REFEREE 207,922 43,218 251,140 796 - 251,936
Segment liabilities 5% 1,671,540 414,542 2,086,082 415,571 - 2,501,653
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

6. OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED) 6. K&EDI @)
Segment assets and liabilities (continued) THEENEGE(E)
As at 31 December 2023
REBZ=F+-A=1-H
Total
reportable Unallocated
Xiabuxiabu Coucou segments Others assets — Consolidated
RRER EE URENMEE iy  RAEEE 8
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR
Segment assets 2,855,417 986,348 3,841,765 211,025 63,481 416,271
Other segment information
Amounts included in the meastre of TADHEESENSE:
seqment assels
Interest in a joint venture - - - 100,164 - 100,164
Additions to property, plant and equipment RENE BEREE 364,834 7151 44,406 40,59 = 483,000
Additions to right-of-use assets 414,405 90,050 504,455 8,400 - 512,855
Segment liabilities 2,048453 591,169 2,639,622 206,721 - 2,846,343
For the purposes of monitoring segment performance and REESHRARRSH2EHER
allocating resources between segments: BIR
— all assets are allocated to operating segments based on — FMBEEERMBE@ELERED
the corresponding operating brands other than certain RELEE - E T XD
unallocated corporate property, plant and equipment and RAGIME BERZEIA
right-of-use assets; and MEREEERI : &
- all liabilities are allocated to operating segments based on — FEAGERABELZERES
the corresponding operating brands. PeELE D -
Revenue from major products and services, geographical FE2HW AR EZE S KR

information and information about major customers please refer

to Note 5.

The Group’s non-current assets (other than deferred tax assets
and financial assets), including property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, intangible assets and interest in a joint venture

are detailed below:

BEWA - AR R EBEFA
BH -

AEBERBDEE CELERBEEE
ReREERI) BREWME BE

R EREEE BIEEENR
BELERD  HFdwT :

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2024 2023

—ENEF —F-=
RMB’'000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT T
Mainland China A B A P 1,398,947 2,077,505
Other markets AR B A BE A AN 143,826 177,664
1,542,773 2,255,169
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

7. OTHER INCOME

7. Halg A

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2024 2023
—EoNE —T-=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREF T
Interest income on: B A -
— bank deposits — RITHERK 7,104 3,479
— other financial asset at — BEEKATENEM
amortised cost EREE 4,042 5,395
11,146 8,874
Government grants B8RS 78 B 16,414 910
Additional tax deduction (i) FLIE MNETFOBRG) - 97,636
16,414 98,546
Delivery income for takeout orders (i) 4N 5T & A 32 U A(ii) 1,281 8,704
Sale of consumables SHFE M U A 15,312 11,713
Others Hih 13,249 11,961
29,842 32,378
57,402 139,798
Notes: MoaE -

(i) The amounts represent the additional input value added tax
deduction, pursuant to the announcement of the Ministry of Finance,
the State Administration of Taxation and the General Administration
of Customs of the PRC, which became effective from April 1, 2019
onwards and expired on December 31,2023.

(i) For delivery service for takeout orders for which the control of
service is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised when
the related services have been rendered to customers.

(if)

RIBFFRAKE  BRRELH
FEBEREA T NAEMA—
AREBRTR=_ZTE=_=F+=A4
—+—BHIHNRE  ZRIEE
EER M ERIEE °

HRRGEDRERX —BHAES
MBI EXRBERY  WAER
BEERMHBERBEER -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

8. OTHER EXPENSES

8. H#pEx

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—B=+—HLEE

2024 2023

—ENE —T_=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T AR®TF T

Delivery service fee INE RIS B 65,129 72,032
Professional service fee BERBGE 34,990 52,758
Royalty expense HErEERE 52,150 45,107
Marketing expenses MG EHE 64,942 71,666
Logistics expenses ) 7 2 36,150 46,629
Travel and communication expenses  Z= ik & @ F X 26,909 35,732
Maintenance fees HER 17,326 36,108
Office and administrative expenses MARITHAX 35,085 38,875
Others Hth 36,063 32,713
368,744 431,620

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES

9. HiblimREHE

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2024 2023
—E-mOEF —E-=F
RMB’'000 RMB’'000
AR¥T T ARETT
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE  WEREE
plant and equipment, net BB F R (4,383) (2,349)
Gain on termination of lease (i) el =v &0 28,791 13,403
Gain on reassessment of EMHEE A E WG
lease liabilities (ii) 7,277 20,879
Foreign exchange loss net b 5 B85 58 (2,297) (3,813)
Reversal of impairment loss on H fth fE WFKORL B 1R K ¥ O]
other receivables 1,775 1,330
Impairment loss on rental deposit MelRe 2 REBR (29,975) (12,736)
Impairment loss recognised in respect FL¥1% - BE N & EER
of property, plant and equipment VEREY R ! (140,587) (103,209)
Impairment loss recognised in respect gt {2 FA #E & B FE 2R (E 5 18
of right-of-use assets (64,009) (46,876)
Write-down of inventories FEKELEH — (44,555)
Gain from changes in fair value of BREZEATEFENE R
financial assets at FVTPL BEENRATFEZEAERE 27,312 44,233
Loss on closure of restaurants BB 2 E1E (27,463) (1,520)
Others HAb (103) -
(203,662) (135,213)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

9. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES (conTiNUED)

Notes:

@)

(if)

According to the performance of the restaurants and the
business development plan, the Group closed down a number of
under-performing restaurants to reinitiate the business and maintain
the overall profitability level of the Group. The Group exercised the
early termination option to terminate the lease contracts before
the previously expected date. A net gain on termination of lease
amounting to RMB28,791,000 was recognised for the year ended 31
December 2024 (2023: RMB13,403,000).

For the restaurants that the Group plans to exercise the early
termination option, the Group remeasures the lease liability to
reflect changes to the lease payments and recognised the amount
of the remeasurement of the lease liability as an adjustment to the
right-of-use assets. However, for the leases that the carrying amount
of the right-of-use assets is reduced to zero, the Group recognised
the gain on remeasurement of lease liabilities in profit or loss
amounting to RMB7,277,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: RMB20,879,000).

10. FINANCE COSTS

144

Hiawz Rk EE @)
B 5

(@)

(if)

REEBRNXRANEBERR
2 AEEBETETEETE
WER EEEXKSH EME
i A 455 7S 5 [ 2K B8 2R K o K
SETETRAREERERE R
ERIEFG BEHARLEAEARH -
BE—Z-_ME+-_A=+—H
LFEE - AREBAEESFRS
AR #28,791,000c (Z T ==
F: AR ®13,403,0007T) B2 F
TR

RAEBEEITFERERILER
BHERE AEBEEHTEHE
BENRBMBENTES K
ENEHEEGENCBER
BEFERAREEZFAE - Am -
HREFERAREEREEEARSE
T AEBERAFEREBR AR
REFAENBRTEEARE
7,277,000 (ZE-=F: AR
#20,879,0007T) °

10. AR A

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1+—HLEE

2024 2023

—E-NF —ZEZ=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARET T AREF T

Interest on lease liabilities HEAGEMNE 59,209 62,748
Interest on bank borrowings IRITE T E 9,571 7,162
Unwinding of discounts of provisions — ##& %I &8 2,304 2,520
71,084 72,430
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

11. LOSS BEFORE TAX

The Group's loss for the year has been arrived at after charging

the following items:

1. BHATE#HE

AEENFREBERC NG TSR :

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HL&EE

2024 2023
—E_NFE —E =4
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBETF T
Depreciation of property, plant and ME - BMENMBEITE
equipment 300,673 388,991
Depreciation of right-of-use assets FREEENE 475,148 537,555
Amortisation of intangible assets A 1,424 2,054
Total depreciation and amortisation EMEEAE 777,245 928,600
Rentals in respect of restaurants lease BHEELEHRENZNHES
payments
— short-term lease (i) — FEEHEE>) 45,426 41,394
— variable lease payment (ii) — A B & R F30) 78,576 72,569
- other rental expenses (iii) — H b4 5 (i) 174,092 197,122
Total property rentals and related MERS REBEAST BT
expenses 298,094 311,085
Directors’ emoluments (Note 14) EEHH (FME14) 4,803 6,112
Other staff cost Hh8 TAA
Salaries and other allowance e K H A EBL 1,488,171 1,715,304
Equity-settled share-based payments  LARR#E 45 & LA IR 15 74
AR eI 2,723 334
Retirement benefit contribution RAIKE R A (I 5E36)
(Note 36) 116,872 141,142
Total staff costs BT AR 1,612,569 1,862,892
Auditor’s remuneration % 2 B B & 3,000 3,000

Notes:

(i) The short-term lease refer to leases of restaurants, catering delivery

robots and rented premises.

(i) The variable lease payment refers to the portion of property rentals
based on pre-determined percentages to revenue less minimum

rentals of the respective leases.

(iii)
paid to the landlord.

The other rental expenses refers to the property management fee

B 3

() EHHEEEEE XEBSIAR

HEMENHEE -

(i) FREEENRERERELREN
WABDLFAENMEESH D
WMERONRERS -

(iii)
XERE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FTBFHBEAX

For the year ended 31 December
BEt+t-A=t—HLEE

2024 2023
—E_ME —E-=%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETF T
Enterprise income tax (“EIT") TEMGH(IEMRER])
Current tax BV EA R I8 3,527 5,712
Deferred tax (Note 18) RAETIE (Mi3E18) 5,814 64,358
Total income tax recognised FHEERERNTSE R
in profit or loss 9,341 70,070
The Company is a tax exempted company incorporated in the RNATABRESHEEIMK I’
Cayman Islands. BB ANTL A A o
On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council passed RZE—NF=ZA=+—H &FHE
The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017 (the “Bill”) NAEAESBEBA T TR (ER])
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. The Bill (B7R)IENERE ([EPIEZR]) -
was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the HE|ARMBFERERSNE o 3Z &0
following day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime, the HEW_ZE—N\F=A=-1+N\B%
first HK$2 million of profits of the qualifying group entity will ZERAFEARIZATIEZER R
be taxed at 8.25%, and profits above HK$2 million will be taxed EMAEFNEHEREE  28KEH
at 16.5%. The profits of group entities not qualifying for the ERENE2ASS T EIEIZS.25%
two-tiered profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a HERHE  MiBiE2E &5 THE
flat rate of 16.5%. 15 1216.5% M EEM - NFFE MR

MEHREHENEEERNFE
HIBIR16.5%H) 5 — TR BH -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTINUED)

The Company's subsidiary, Coucou (HK) Catering Management
Co., Ltd., (“Coucou Hong Kong") incorporated in Hong Kong is
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime. Accordingly,
the Hong Kong profits tax of Xiabu Hong Kong is calculated at
8.25% on the first HK$2 million of the estimated assessable profits
and at 16.5% on the estimated assessable profits above HK$2
million.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate
of the PRC subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Under the EIT Law, withholding tax is imposed on dividends
declared and paid to non-PRC resident in respect of profits earned
by the PRC subsidiaries from 1 January 2008 onwards. Deferred
taxation has not been provided for in the consolidated financial
statements in respect of the temporary differences attributable
to the accumulated undistributed profits of the PRC subsidiaries
amounting to RMB1,235 million as at 31 December 2024 (2023:
RMB1,312 million), as the Group is able to control the timing
of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

12. FREHBEX (2

RABREB MR BB A R
EE(BR)EHEBARAR([E
EEB]D DABEREMBFEH
EHEHH - B - REB B
FERFHA BN E2E &8 T At
FERRFEF BB E2E &8 T o
2 RI3%8.25% N 16.5% 5+ H & 78 Fll
5% -

B ARB ¥RTS B R ([ AT
BERZED RCEMSREE K
N/ = O LS D= RNl R
FERNMES B25% °

BRECEMSHE BT N\F
— B — AR K E A T FTHEER
MFEREFREERAAE IR MRS
MR B TENT - RZTZWF
+=—A=1+—H BHREAEEEH
THIEREEENRARRAEZE
Rl ean B R R RE
B - W KRIELR A M HRE R LR
BB AR R RSEABEMHE
BE=EARKI 2388 L (=
—=F: AR¥1,312B87T) TR
EERIE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

H=E

12.

148

—ECNFt A=t —HIEFE

INCOME TAX EXPENSE (conTINUED)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss before
tax per the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income as follows:

12. FREBEX @)

FARBHAZEAGS RS

s RHEHME
ARARATBIEIBEERNT ¢

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—BA=+—HLEE

2024 2023
1 2 —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
ARET ARBTT
Loss before tax T Bl B tE (389,136) (124,375)
Tax calculated at applicable domestic 1% & I N §i R25% 51 H 1Y
tax rates at 25% 718 (97,284) (31,094)
Tax effect of different tax rate SERNARIBEHIENRNE
on intra-group interest income W B 5T B A HY
and royalty income subject to TRMENTBELE
withholding tax (560) (2,481)
Effect of different tax rates of RAITRMERZE
subsidiaries (3,585) (4,032)
Tax effect of income not taxable AR A RT3 2
for tax purpose (1,791) (1,524)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible AT I I X TR 75 2 &2
for tax purposes 7,144 10,670
Tax effect of tax losses and deductible #5255 75 &5 18 & 0] 18
temporary differences not TRMEEnNGETE
recognised 113,297 62,944
Utilisation of tax losses previously not &) F3 %t Bl K fEsR £ 75 5 18
recognised (3.413) (24,471)
Reversal of tax losses and deductible B ¢ #5 /&5 18 & 5& Al #E 2 &Y
temporary differences previously AR E R =5
recognised 2,137 65,408
Others EAh (6.604) (5,350)
Income tax expense Frefif < 9,341 70,070

TR RS IR (P AR B RAR] XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.



For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

13. LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share attributable
to the owners of the Company is based on the following data:

13. BRRE#BE

ARBEEARGERERARESR
BRIBBEIATBETE :

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—BA=+—HLEE

2024 2023
—TE-NE —E-=%
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®T T ARBTT
Loss figures are calculated as follows: E18 & &z E40 T -
Loss for the year attributable to KRABHEARBEER
owners of the Company BB (400,681) (199,466)

The weighted average number of ordinary shares for the purpose
of basic loss per share reconciles to the weighted average number
of ordinary shares used in the calculation of diluted loss per share
as follows:

AR ESREAREENEEBN
BIOEERNFESREEERE
B E B BUINE F A B BRI T

For the year ended 31 December

BZE+-—BA=+—BLtEE

2024 2023
—E-mEg —E-=F
‘000 ‘000
TR T Bx
Weighted average number of ordinary BN EFRERNEEL
shares for the purpose of basic loss T3 AR N S 15 5
per share 1,040,797 1,040,926
Effect of dilutive potential ordinary BE#EHEBRAOTZE
shares (Note) (P ) N/A N/A
Weighted average number of ordinary FAR & G E# S EIEH
shares for the purpose of diluted loss 3 38 i% HN#E F 19 &
per share 1,040,797 1,040,926

Note: The calculation of diluted loss per share for the year ended 31
December 2024 does not assume the exercise of the Company's
share options and restricted shares since their exercise would result
in a decrease in loss per share (2023: decrease in loss per share).

fist: tEBE=E_ZT_MWFE+=- A
=t+—BIEFESREEEIS
TR R AT AR 1 A R AR i
MR G  EEETEES
BEREBERD (ZTZ=F:
BREERD) -

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z =43 149



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_T-_ME+-A=+—HItFE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF 14. EERESITHRAEUR
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EEHMERSE T HM
EMPLOYEES
Directors' and chief executive's emoluments for the year, BIEEA ETHRARESRQRIGEH
disclosed pursuant to the applicable Listing Rules and Hong Kong BENEERERITRABRAKE
Companies Ordinance, is as follows: EREFMmT

For the year ended 31 December 2024
EE-R-REt-ASt-RLER

Retirement
Performance benefits  Equity-settled
Salaries and related scheme  share-based
Directors' fee  allowances bonuses  contribution payments Total
HRELE
BHRER HRHA
Esne  HemEy RBEA TEfR BRNAR it

RMB'000  RMBOO0  RMBOO0  RMB00D  RMBOO0  RMB000
ARBTR  ARMTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARBTR  ARETR

Evecutive director: Hngs:

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (B 1B % 5) Exiis 1,118 1,282 - - 1,083 3,483
Sub-total It 1118 1,282 - - 1,083 3,483
Non-executive directors; FifES:

Ms. Chen Su-Yin(REE % 1) REELL 330 - - - - 330

Ms. i Jie($2% 1) 3gnt - - - - - -
Sub-total It 30 - - - - 330
Independent non-executive directors: BUHHIES

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence (/4 56 ) EMELE 330 - - - - 330

Ms. Cheung Sze Man (8% £) Frant 30 - - - - 30

Mr. Kot Man Tat (B B4 ) EXELE 30 - - - - 30
Sub-total st 990 - - - - 990
Total &t 4,803
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_T-_ME+-A=+—HItFE

14. EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF 14. EERBESTHRAEUR
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID EE2FMESEITEHM =)
EMPLOYEES (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2023
BEC3-FTCA=T-ALER

Retirement
Performance benefits  Equity-settled
Salaries and related scheme  share-based
Directors' fee allowances bonuses  contribution payments Total

WREES

ErRE IEBA
ESHE  FeMRE  AAMEM RN EROOX it
RVBOOD  RVBOOD  RVBOOD  RWBO0D  RWB000  RWB'00
ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR  ARETR

Executive director; HEE:

Mr. Ho Kuang-Chi (B # B 7 ) BRELE 1,008 1,100 - - 2618 4816
Sub-total It 1,008 1,100 - - 2618 4816
Non-executive directors: FaEs:

Ms. Chen Su-Yin(REE % T) RzEgt 3 - - - = el

Ms. Li Jie (B2 % L) 3240t - - - - - -
Sub-total gt 3 = = = = 34
Independent non-executive directors: BukamEs:

Mr. Hon Ping Cho Terence (1R 72 ) EMELE 3 = = = = 34

Ms. Cheung Sze Man (8% £) FHERT 34 - - - - 3

Mr. Kot Man Tat (& X% £) BIERE 3 - - - - 3%
Sub-total Nt 9 - - - - m
Total b 6,112
The executive directors' emoluments shown above were for their FilsiITESOSEAHEFEESE
services in connection with the management of the affairs of the RNAREANEBEHEEHREY
Company and the Group. T 2% o
The non-executive directors' emoluments shown above were for LHERITEENTMAFESIEMS
their services as directors of the Company. NANTIEEZH A
The independent non-executive directors' emoluments shown B IERTTEEN TN ARS
above were for their services as directors of the Company. EERATESAENE -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

14.

152

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE AND FIVE HIGHEST PAID
EMPLOYEES (conTINUED)

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the year
included one director (2023: one director), details of whose
remuneration are set out above. Details of the remuneration for
the year of the remaining four (2023: four) highest paid employees
who are neither a director nor chief executive of the Company are
as follows:

14. EERRESTHRABUR
EEFMBESETHMN »)

FRAXAEEFMESNAERET
TERE-Z2ESF(ZF_=F: —
) EFMEHINLEX BT
ME(CTE_=F M%) FHFK
SET(AFEARAEETRHZST
BAB)FAMEFBOT :

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—-HLEE

2024 2023
—ENF =%
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Salaries and allowances & BE AL 5,746 7,210

Retirement benefits scheme RIREFIETE
contribution 66 32
5,812 7,242

The number of these highest paid employees whose remuneration
fell within the following band is as follows:

FHN TN BENFMESESR
BEMT :

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=+—HL&EE

2024 2023

—E-NE —E-—F

RMB’000 RMB'000

AREFT T AREF T

HKD1,000,001 to HKD 1,500,000 1,000,001% 7 £1,500,0007% 7T 3 3
HKD1,500,001 to HKD 2,000,000 1,500,001/ 7L £2,000,0007% 7T 1 -
HKD4,000,001 to HKD 4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £4,500,0007% 7T = 1
Total et 4 4

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, no Directors
waived or agreed to waive any emoluments, and no emoluments
were paid by the Group to the Directors or the five highest paid
employees as an inducement to join or upon joining the Group or
as compensation for loss of office.

BE T -_NFER-_ZT-_=ZF+=
BA=Z+—BHIEFE HEEENE
KEERET M KEBBE
MEBEEXAGFHESE TN E
RIFMIEAE A REB SR INA
7N £ (B B A HE ) Sk BB A B o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE—

15.

“HE+ZA=t+—HILFE

DIVIDENDS

15. B2

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=+—HLEE

2024 2023
—E-NEF —E_=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ET T ARETT

Dividends recognised as distributions & RIER A5 K B I B
during the year 30,367 60,000
On 28 March 2023, the Company declared a dividend of RZZBEZ=F=HA=Z+N\H KA

RMBO0.028 per share with total dividends of RMB30,000,000 to
the shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2022. The dividend was paid in June 2023.

On 27 August 2023, the Company declared a dividend of
RMBO0.028 per share with total dividends of RMB30,000,000 to the
shareholders of the Company for the period ended 30 June 2023.
The dividend was paid in October 2023.

On 27 March 2024, the Company declared a dividend of
RMBO0.028 per share with total dividends of RMB30,367,000 to
the shareholders of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2023. The dividend was paid in June 2024.

No dividend has been proposed to the shareholders of the
Company since the end of the reporting period.

RIEMARRREHE S - —
+ZA=+—HLFENRESR
AR®0028L WERBBEAEAR
30,000,000 - REBEER =2 ==
FRARS -

J\E":%ﬁzii)\ﬂ —++tH8 AR

EMEREREHE ST -_=F
/\)EJ_JFEJJ:/\“)E] A% B & A%
AR®E0028T WEBRBEAEAR
30,000,0007T - REBEER =2 ==
F+ AR -

RZEBE-_ME=A=-++H " &R
REMAREREHE_ST-_=F
+Z A=+ HLFENRESR
AR®E0028T WEBEBAEAR
30,367,000T ° WEER Z—_Z =Y
FRARS -

B3| S REEZZRMNERMBE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. 1% - BMERZE
Leasehold Motor Furniture  Construction

Buildings improvements  Machineries vehicles  and fixtures in progress Total

B RENEEE B8 hE GER#E kIR i

RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB000 RMB'000
ABRTL  ARRTn  ARRTn  ARBTR ARMTR ARBTR ARRIR

cosT B
At1 January 2023 N-F-=E-F-H 106,763 2,300,832 59,630 6,281 239,084 133,608 2,846,204
Additions HE - - 2520 3 50915 4942 483,000
Transfer e - 401,39 - - - (401,392) -
Disposals h& - (205422) (1.424) (313) (25,958) (55,324) (288,441)
At 31 December 2023 HNZEZ=F1ZR=1-H 106,763 2,496,802 60,732 6,291 264,041 106,134 3,040,763
Additions e = - 1338 658 26,574 170,932 199,502
Transfer g2 43871 212,045 - - - (255,922) -
Disposals & - (553,003) (22,263) (206) (46,840) - (622,312)
At 31 December 2024 RZB-RELZA=1-A 150,640 2,155,844 39,807 6,743 23,175 21,144 2,617,953
DEPRECIATION AND IMPARMENT FERAE
At 1 January 2023 N-F-ZE-F-H 42570 1,609,175 45,185 4734 183,305 - 1,884,969
Charge for the year Epng 789 339733 7869 595 32945 - 388991
Eiminated upon disposals of accumulated i E 2 5 B4

depreciation - (187.745) (1,090) ) 22374) - (211.830)
Eliminated upon disposals of accumulated € Z:TREABEREH

impairment oss - (17.767) - - (1571) - (19338)
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss #E &P B EERIE - 86,897 b - 16,066 - 103,209
At 31 December 2023 2 g o 50,419 1830293 52,210 5,108 208371 - 2,146,401
Charge for the year Engs 8,335 256,184 5,961 345 29,848 - 300,673
Eiminated upon disposals of accumulated i EZ 5t B

depreciation - (317,161) (20231) (193) (33341) - (370,926)
Eiminated upon disposals of accumulated  HiE ZitiEEEMKIEH

impaiment loss - (141,905) (88) - (13.0m) - (155,065)
Impairment loss recognised in profit or loss RE &R B EESE - 124527 I - 15,985 - 140,587
At 31 December 2024 RZB-ME+-A=1-A 58,754 1,751,938 3191 5,260 207,191 - 2,001,670
CARRYING AMOUNT Bl
At 31 December 2024 RZB-ME+ZA=1-A 91,886 403,906 1,880 1483 35,984 1,144 556,283
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+-A=1-H 56,344 666,509 852 1183 55,670 106,134 894,362
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The above items of property, plant and equipment other than
construction in progress are depreciated over their useful lives,
after taking into account the estimated residual value, on a
straight-line basis as follows:

Buildings
Leasehold improvements

20 years

Over the shorter of
the lease term

and estimated useful
lives up to 5 years

Machineries 3 - 10 years
Motor vehicles 4 years
Furniture and fixtures 3 - 5 years

Note:

As at 31 December 2024, in view of the unfavourable future
prospects of some restaurants, the management of the Group
concluded there was an impairment indicator for relevant
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, with
carrying amounts of RMB229,152,000 and RMB329,700,000
respectively (2023: RMB301,894,000 and RMB324,019,000), and
conducted impairment assessment on the recoverable amounts.
The Group estimates the recoverable amount of the restaurants to
which the leasehold improvement and right-of-use assets belong
as it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of the
assets individually, including allocation of corporate assets when
reasonable and consistent basis can be established.

16. ¥  BERR®E#®)

tamE - -BERXRHBERAE (B2
TREIN) &5t KA RSEER
B AORR N T Al 2 R B E T

&=

gF 204

HEWMHEEE RHABEER

ESF M EE

A A FH R A

LN SES

Hes 3E 104

TE 4%

REREE 3&E54F
B 7t

RZZFE_WMF+_A=+—8"
AEBEETEERAMBAEED
RERFRAEEESREDTR « F
HE D B & AR #229,152,0007T
T AR#329,700,000T (Z T ==
F: AR®301,894,000T X AR
#324,019,0007T) - I ¥ 7] U [0 &
FHETREN S c AREEEET
HEERTWRE &5 (BER A&
R BEEFHIEAREE) -
WASBEEHEMERERFERE
BEMBEEMAILE S EETH
EI
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

H=E

16.

156

—ECNFt A=t —HIEFE

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (CONTINUED)

The recoverable amount of each restaurant has been determined
based on a value in use calculation. That calculation uses cash
flow projections based on financial budgets approved by the
management of the Group covering the remaining lease term
with a pre-tax discount rate ranging from 11.99% to 14.09% as
at 31 December 2024 (2023: ranging from 13.46% to 14.25%)
reflecting the specific risks relating to the relevant restaurants
operated in different regions. The other key assumption for
the value in use calculation is revenue annual growth rate
which is determined based on historical performance and the
management’s expectations for the market development.

Based on the result of the assessment, the management of
the Group determined that the recoverable amount of certain
restaurants are lower than the carrying amount. The impairment
loss has been recognised and allocated to relevant property, plant
and equipment and right-of-use assets such that the carrying
amount of each category of asset is not reduced below the
highest of its fair value less cost of disposal, its value in use and
zero. Based on the value in use calculation and the allocation, an
impairment loss of RMB140,587,000 (2023: RMB113,715,000)
and RMB64,009,000 (2023: RMB51,451,000), before netting the
reversal of impairment loss of nil (2023: RMB10,506,000) and nil
(2023: RMB4,575,000), has been recognised against the carrying
amount of property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets,
respectively.

The impairment loss recognised for the above assets have been
included in profit or loss in the “other gains and losses” in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income.

Certain property, plant and equipment of the Group with the
carrying amount of RMB12,269,000 (2023: Nil) were pledged as
security for certain short-term borrowing (as disclosed in Note 30)
amounting to RMB49,997,000 (2023: Nil).

16. ¥  BERR®E#®)

EEBEJREOSEREFEAERE
TEEBTE - ZAEEAERAE
EEEEMMEMNEEENR S
IR MERBEER SRR
—E-_mFE+_A=+—HBNTF
11.99%%14.09% (=& = = £ :
N F13.46%E14.25% ) B T A B
WE - R TR H & 4 & 5 48 B8
AﬁMEE & o T EFERAEEBD
M%%E“HWAEﬁET
ﬁﬁﬁ#&%%ﬁ&%ﬁgﬁm%
BENTEEMET -

ERNFHEER AEEEEEETE
AETERENA KBS EERRKE

B CRERREREIY D EEAE
ME BERRKEARERESR

E NmSEEAENEEETER
LEERREAFEREERAN &
FRERZEZHHEEE  REME
BEEFE ERVE - BEAK
HEhERAEEERBED BIBRLE
?Dﬁff\mﬁ&ﬂ%%é@/\&%fn(_
T _— =% : AR#¥10,506,0007T)
MARBZETL(ZE_=F: AR
#4,575,00070) AIAREBEEAR
#140,587,000c (Z & = = F :
AR #113,715,00070) & A R #&
64,009,000c (ZE=—=F : AR
#51,451,00070) ©

s b B EMERREBREE A
FeBERMEMEERARANE
bW ss M BB |y B et o

HIE—Z-_WF+=—_A=+—8
AEENVE BEMNXRBEAR
B 012,269,000 (Z T =— =4 :
EIEARBERNERARE
49,997,000C (ZF =4 : &) o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 17. FAREE
Leasehold Leased
lands  properties Total
et HEWE et
RMB’'000 RMB’'000 RMB’'000

ARBTIE ARETT ARBTRT

As at 31 December 2024 R-E-_mE
+=—B=+-—H
Carrying amount REE 53,748 825,565 879,313
As at 31 December 2023 R-—ZE—-=
+=ZHA=+-—8H
Carrying amount REE 55,136 1,198,905 1,254,041
For the year ended BE-ZE-_MmFE
31 December 2024 +TZA=t+—RBLEE
Depreciation charge =% 9= 1,388 473,760 475,148
Impairment recognised in profit P48 25 SRR MEL() - 64,009 64,009
or loss (i)
1,388 537,769 539,157
For the year ended 31 BE-Z_-=
December 2023 +ZA=+—HLEE
Depreciation charge WweEsA 1,903 535,652 537,555
Impairment recognised in profit R I8 2= FER R E() = 46,876 46,876
or loss (i)
1,903 582,528 584,431
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

158

17. FREEE &)

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-—A=+—HLEE

2024 2023

—E-ME =4

RMB'000 RMB'000

ARET T AREF T

Expense relating to short-term leases  E2%5 HAFTH E /AR HY B 2 45,426 41,394
Variable lease payments not included Wi A E G EH 28

in the measurement of lease A E RN

liabilities 78,576 72,569

Total cash outflow for leases (ii) THE AR S T () 672,186 752,437

Additions to right-of-use assets (iii) 5 FA#EE E RN ) 251,936 512,855

Notes:

(i)

(if)

(iii)

After the assessment, the recoverable amount of the right-of-use
assets was RMB879,313,000 (2023: RMB1,254,041,000) and
an impairment of RMB64,009,000 (2023: RMB46,876,000) was
recognised during the current year. Further details are set out in
Note 16.

Amount includes payments of principal and interest portion of lease
liabilities, variable lease payments, short-term leases and payments
of lease payments on or before lease commencement date. These
amounts have been presented in operating, investing or financing
cash flows accordingly.

Amount includes right-of-use assets resulting from new leases
entered and adjustments to fair value of rental deposits at initial
recognition, lease modification, reassessment/exercise of extension
options and payments for leasehold land.

The Group leases restaurants land and rented premises for its
operations. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed terms of
1 month to 20 years, but may have extension and termination
options as described below. Lease terms are negotiated on an
individual basis and contain a wide range of different terms and
conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the length
of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies the definition
of a contract and determines the period for which the contract is
enforceable.

B 2E

(i)  REFEE - FRAEEENAKE
% % A R #879,313,0007T (=&
—=%: AR¥1,254,041,0007T)
YR E A R #64,009,000T (=
=% : AR¥46,876,0007T)
ERAFHER E—FSHBHR
fEE16 ©

(i) HESBEEFEXEEFNKABMK
ZHMNEEREAS RAEHD
MH - TEEENAREREE
FE - UREENRRE - ZF
RACREZ REYIBERS

ME—HET -

(i) MEEASEREBETZHELH XD
RERAKHEREAFEIE
MEBR B TEERAER
HE TN RMELENEREE
B o

AEBAKERERHRAEEI R
HEWE -BEASHNIZETFH
ME B Z20% 5] EARTEAB T X
Firall 2 JE BRI 4% | E R 12 4 - FHHR IR
EREEFEL B EEZ R TR
R R AGME - REEEEB K-
AREFRRER  AEEEAS
B TEZ NETE S XT38 6 BT
FH o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_T-_ME+-A=+—HItFE

17. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

The Group regularly entered into short-term leases mainly for

17. FREEE®)

a

¥ RS

rented premises and catering delivery robots. As at 31 December AT VEHEE - W Z_Z =Y
2024, the portfolio of short-term leases is similar to the portfolio E+-A=+—H SHAEA4
of short-term leases to which the short-term lease expense BUREXFIFES SR
disclosed above (2023: similar). BMEHEEAA (CE—=%: [
£)-
Leases of restaurants are either with only fixed lease payments ZEAAASENEBR TR E N
or contain variable lease payment that are based on 1% to 15% BEERHEHEBRI%E15% (:/T
(2023: 1% to 15%) of sales and minimum annual lease payment T=F 1% E15%) N FHAEER
that are fixed over the lease term. Some variable payment terms RN ANE T REFREN
include cap clauses. The payment terms are common in restaurants e BT AN TIERBIE LRIE
in Mainland China, Hong Kong and Singapore where the Group Ko BN TIERANAERKE AT
operates. iR B B R I A&
BEHATRALRE °
The amount of fixed and variable lease payments paid to relevant Y FHEBEHEANETE R EHE
lessors are as follows: ENRHESEAT
For the year ended 31 December 2024 BE-—S-—_mE+=—gA=+—8H1
FE
Number of Fixed Variable
restaurants payments payments Total
BEYHE & 7E 11 & G- et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR AR®BTR AR¥TR
Restaurants without variable 4% ] & 8 & {5 2k 1) £ B2
lease payments 272 147,324 - 147,324
Restaurants with variable
lease payments 685 315,599 78,576 394,175
957 462,923 78,576 541,499
For the year ended 31 December 2023 BHE T =#F+-_A=+—HIt
FE
Number of Fixed Variable
restaurants payments payments Total
EBREE & 5E 7 3K A& 3R #Et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARBTT AR®ETT
Restaurants without variable 4 7] % 1 & i 2t 8 & B2
lease payments 348 164,907 - 164,907
Restaurants with variable BHENZINEE
lease payments 768 385,505 72,569 458,074
1,116 550,412 72,569 622,981
The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms is that KA ENRIERNEE B E
higher rental costs are incurred by restaurants with higher sales. RFEEARSERELARSEEK
Variable rent expenses are expected to continue to represent a N o JEANEBHEESH IR ERREE
similar proportion of restaurant sales in future years. BN EEEEEMAMUL -
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e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

17.

160

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (CONTINUED)

Restrictions or covenants on leases

Lease liabilities of RMB911,072,000 are recognised with related
right-of-use assets of RMB879,313,000 as at 31 December
2024 (2023: lease liabilities of RMB1,273,059,000 and related
right-of-use assets of RMB1,254,041,000). The lease agreements
do not impose any covenants other than the security interests in
the leased assets that are held by the lessor. Leased assets may
not be used as security for borrowing purposes.

Leases committed

As at 31 December 2024, the Group entered into new leases for
several restaurants that have not yet commenced, with average
non-cancellable period ranging from 2 to 5 years (2023: 4 to
6 years), excluding period under extension options. The total
future undiscounted cash flows over the non-cancellable period
amounted to RMB9,706,000 (2023: RMB62,353,000).

17. FREEE &)

HERSI R

RZZFE-_mMFE+=_A=+—8"
HEBEFEAR®I11,072,000
TERBHEFEFRAEEE AR
879,313,000/t (ZE =% : &
B & AR #1,273,059,0007T & #8
RafE A& E AR 1,254,041,000
To) —OHERR - T E ek I & M 0
ERR#E  HEERAAMFHEEE
BREZRIN - HEEETAAE
BEMNERY -

EAEESE

R-ZEBE-_ME+-_A=+—H &
SRR ZMERE M W ARBA
AE  FHRABEEN 2255
(ZE-=F : 456%F)  TRIEE
HAI I RETA T 2R o ) e B R
MARKBRBESHREAQEAEAR
#9,706,000 (ZZE - =4F : AR
#62,353,0007T) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated statement of
financial position, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities have
been offset. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax
balances for financial reporting purposes:

18. EXEBHEE AfF

BREAMBRARKRE®R  ETE
EHRBEEENABBCDFERE - LB
BERB W ZEEHRBLHKZ O
T

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—8

2024 2023

b —F-=
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T ARBEF T
Deferred tax assets RIEMSREE 201,966 300,075
Deferred tax liabilities RIEMSHRAE (198,916) (291,211)
3,050 8,864

The movements in the deferred tax assets/(liabilities) during the
year, without taking into consideration the offsetting of balances
within the same tax jurisdiction, are as follows:

FRNETEHBEEE (BHE)E
(e MR ER RIS ER NS
#g)mT

Accrued
royalty Impairment of ~Impairment of

Tax Deferred Lease  Right-of-use expense property plant  right-of-use
losses income liabilities assets not paid and equipment assets Others Total

AiE 0% BR fERE
HEEE  EEMA  BRRE  BREEE  GEEER RBRERE  4ENE i it
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETn  ARETn  ARETR  ARETR  ARETm  ARETm  ARETRm  ARETR
At 1 January 2023 R-E-=%-5-A 3813 434 338776 (319,368) 313 3876 2983 9425 B0
(Charged) Credit to profit or loss R (k) B&3TA (30,736) (4324) (46,730) 8157 19 (3,876) (298) (3929) (64,358)
At 31 December 203 RZBZ=§+ZR=1-H 213 292,046 (291,211) 39 - 5500 8,864
{Charged) Creditto profit o loss Rk B&zA (2,137) (93,130) 9,295 m - 319 (5,814)
At 31 December 2024 R-E-REL-A=t-8 = 198916 (198,916) 669 - 2381 3,050
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

18. DEFERRED TAX ASSETS/LIABILITIES (CONTINUED) 18. EEFHIBEE &%)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group has NIFEEAR  KEB A 0] {5 E
deductible temporary differences of RMB670,166,000 (2023: 4= A R#670,166,0007T (=&
RMB634,231,000) with no deferred tax asset recognised as it is — =% : AR#¥634,231,0007T) °
not probable that taxable profit will be available against which the AR TNAKR[ e EA IR SR EE
deductible temporary differences can be utilised. o] AERIIMERFRER - B

The unrecognised tax losses will be expired as follows: RERTRIBE BB AT EREE R

As at 31 December

R+t=-—HA=+—H
2024 2023
—ENF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

2024 —ENEF - 59,487
2026 —ERF 158,415 159,067
2027 ZEZEF 191,455 191,455
2028 ZEIN\F 203,767 204,786
2029 ZEZNF 395,907 -
Indefinite 2[R HA 52,034 30,687
1,001,578 645,482
At the end of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax REEH R NEB KA KB
losses of RMB1,001,578,000 (2023: RMB645,482,000) available E B AR %1,001,578,0007T (=&
for offset against future profits. No deferred tax asset has been — =% : A\R#645,482,0007T) A]
recognised in relation to such unused tax losses due to the MK SRR FE - R REETE AR
unpredictability of future profit streams in respective subsidiaries. NG Sl b S 3
BRABBRIEABIBERRTEHIE
BE o
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e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

19. RENTAL DEPOSITS

19.

HeHdE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+-—8
2024 2023
—E_NFE T =%
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T AREF T
Rental deposits Heme 190,698 211,987
Less: allowance for credit losses o EEEEEE (42,495) (26,592)
Net of rental deposits HeHeFE 148,203 185,395

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of rental deposits

are as follows:

MEREHRERBBRREZZNT

2024 2023

—E_NE T =4

RMB’000 RMB'000

AR®ET ARBEF T

At 1 January n—H—AH 26,592 15,135
Impairment losses recognised 2 REZ I EEE 31,087 13,896
Impairment losses reversed B R EEE (1,112) (1,160)
Write-offs % 5N (14,072) (1,279)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—8H 42,495 26,592
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e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

20. INVENTORIES 20. &
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—8
2024 2023
S —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000

ARBT T ARBTT

Food and beverage R & #E 264,348 309,916
Other materials H b Ykt 17,509 25,638
Consumables FEM 7.363 9,988
289,220 345,542
21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND 21. ESEWRERR HMEW
PREPAYMENTS LR FEFIE
As at 31 December
R+=-—B=+—H
2024 2023
—ENF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR®ET ARET T
Trade receivables H 5 MR X 29,250 69,842
Prepaid operating expenses AR & & A 29,324 28,831
Prepayments to suppliers TE A e R FR IR 1,297 302
Amounts prepaid to the RSU trustee &t B & 3@ A% [7) 2R HI B {0 BE iz

for purchase of ordinary shares XA 25 (FTFE33)

(Note 33) 756 756
Input value-added tax recoverable A] Uk [B] 3% (5 Fi i TR 237,021 274,524
Other receivables o {th jE W 3R IB 47,238 52,143

344,886 426,398

Less: Allowance for credit losses B EEEERE (30,368) (32,143)
Total trade and other receivables B 5 e W BR 3k K H A fE

and prepayments We SR IE DA R FB A+ SR IB 42 58 314,518 394,255
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e R R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BHE-Z-_WF+-_A=1t—HILFE

21. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES AND
PREPAYMENTS (CONTINUED)

Movements in the loss allowance for impairment of other
receivables are as follows:

21. ESBRWIRR K H A B
MEUR BN FIE &)

& it 8 g 20T LB RS B R B 2 B
mF :

2024 2023

gy 11 2 —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBT T ARBTT

At 1 January n—H—H 32,143 33,957
Impairment losses reversed B O EE 18 (1,775) (1,330)
Write-offs % 88 = (484)
At 31 December R+—_A=+—8H 30,368 32,143
The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables (net of UTABEBERZAH2INESE

allowance for doubtful debts) presented based on the invoice
date:

WBRSK CHIBR RER B H) WERIK D

w7

As at 31 December

R+t=A=+—H
2024 2023
—E_NEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBTT
Within 30 days =+tHBA 22,943 58,644
31 to 90 days 31%290H 5,784 9,141
91 to 180 days 912 180H 523 2,057
29,250 69,842

At the end of the reporting period, there is no trade receivable
that has past due but not impaired.

RBEHR - YECBHERRE

W E 5 MR -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

22. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 22. EBEXRAFHEIED

PROFIT OR LOSS THEE
Financial asset mandatorily measured at FVTPL: mEEEEREATEAENSH
BEE
As at 31 December
R+=BA=+—H
2024 2023
—EB-NF —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Financial products (Note) Bt E (B EE) 586,960 653,994

586,960 653,994

Analysed for reporting purpose as: HERMEMNDITA :

Current assets mEEE 454,194 526,741
Non-current asset (Note) SEMENE ZE (M5E) 132,766 127,253
586,960 653,994
Note: ME -
As at 31 December 2024, the Group's financial assets at FVTPL are RZE-_MNE+=-_A=+—H &%
the financial products issued by banks and investment fund companies EEBEEEATEFENSREE
which have no predetermined or guaranteed return and are not principal RBRTERREESAAZETHNERE
protected. These financial assets are with expected rates of return, M AETERSREER L TMRA o 3%
depending on the market price of underlying financial instruments, SoMEEREABYDHRE AR T
including government bonds, central bank bills, trust and other financial HESRIE (BREBMAES  R1TE
assets. B ErhkAEMemEE) WTHER -
The maturity date of the financial products classified as non-current asset PERIETBDEENSHE DO H
are 13 July 2028 and 12 September 2028 (2023: 13 July 2028 and 12 AAE-_ZT-_NFLtA+=AR=F
September 2028). “NFAA+-BH(ZE-_=F: -2
ZNFEAT=BE=ZFE=-NFENA
+=A) -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

23. RESTRICTED BANK BALANCES 23. SIRHEIRITEER
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2024 2023
—E-MF ZE=F
RMB'000 RMB'000
ARET T AREF T
Bank balances restricted for: REIELA T AEMIRITA R

Prepaid cards B+ 61,821 76,176
Purchasing financial products EEEYE®R - 50,000
Bills and bank loans EZERIRITER 26,050 17,510
87,871 143,686

The restricted bank balances carried interest at prevailing market
rates which range from 0.10% to 1.75% per annum as at 31
December 2024(2023:1.55% to 1.90%).

RZF-_WE+=—_A=+—H0 %
PRl SRIT A SRR IR T IS R =N F
HFF0.10%E1.75% (— - =4
1.55%%1.90%) 5T & °

24. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 24. HENBEESZEEY
As at 31 December
R+=HA=+-—H
2024 2023
—E_NE —E =4
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AREBTT
Cash and bank balances ARSI E G ENRE &
denominated in: IRITH B
- RMB — AR 227,983 106,109
- UsD — 3T 67,454 857
- HKD — BT 52,677 15,317
- SGD — Nt 6,293 5,163
- TWD — B 8,288 1,920
362,695 129,366

Cash and cash equivalents carried interest at prevailing market
rates which range from 0.01% to 4.41% (2023: 0.01% to 4.68%)
per annum as at 31 December 2024.

The bank balances denominated in RMB were deposited with
banks in the PRC and the conversion of such balances into foreign
currencies is subject to the rules and regulations of foreign
exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

RZEBE-_WMF+_A=+—H " #&
NF0.01%E4.41% (Z T =4
0.01%=4.68% ) B I8 17 % F
KRB o

AAREFHEMNRITERBTFRR
REIMIRITER  BRFEHRIL
BAINEAETHEBRARMNE
FAINEE BIR R B R AR PI -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

25. TRADE PAYABLES 25. ESENERR

BHRNERRTANE  B—&
RTEORMEEDR NEFER &
REWMZEWEPNAEREE 5 R
BRAWREDTET ¢

Trade payables are non-interest bearing and are normally granted
on 60-days credit term. An aged analysis of the Group’s trade
payables, as at the end of each year, based on the goods received
date, is as follows:

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2024 2023

—E-NE —F-=
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT T AREF T
Within 60 days 60H A 227,575 260,926
61 to 180 days 612180H 2,992 3,675
181 days to 1 year 181BE14F 5,283 4,513
235,850 269,114

26. ACCRUAL AND OTHER PAYABLES 26. Bt ERA N EMENSFIE

As at 31 December

168

R+=—A=+—H

2024 2023

—E_F —E-=F

RMB’'000 RMB’'000

AR¥ET T AREFT

Renovation fee payables EREERE 138,461 176,761

Staff cost payable FEfHB T A 131,515 153,918

Deposits from suppliers HEFHS 54,965 60,403
Accrued variable and short-term rental FEsHZE R EHHES

and property fee PEIEL - 52,502 38,069

Accrued operating expenses JEET & 83,922 113,045

Other PRC tax payables o FE AT A BB IR 8,051 3,811

Others Hib 16,736 11,517

486,152 557,524
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

27. LEASE LIABILITIES

27. HE&AE

As at 31 December

R+=—A=+—H
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR T ARBTT
Lease liabilities payable: ENHEEEE
Within one year —FR 292,355 379,035
Within a period of more than one BB —FENBBRE
year but not exceeding two years 2 B A 293,476 377,488
Within a period of more than two 78 38 R AF B N EB 3R h A
year but not exceeding five years Z BRI 312,759 483,313
Within a period of more than five HR R R F 2 HIE R
years 12,482 33,223
911,072 1,273,059
Less: Amount due for settlement B OmEBNBEE T AR
with 12 months shown RMERANELEHN SRR
under current liabilities (292,355) (379,035)
Amount due for settlement after ERBEBRETAT
12 months shown under 1218 A& BB SR8
non-current liabilities 618,717 894,024

The weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied to
lease liabilities range from 3.60% to 6.16% (2023: 3.60% to

5.88%)

HEABEREBAOMEFLHRER
K ENF360%E6.16% (ZF
=% : N F3.60%%5.88%) °

Lease obligations that are denominated in currencies other than
the functional currencies of the relevant group entities are set out

NS EERY

EEERUINEE

SHEMHEERERADT :

below:
SGD HKD usD
03K T BT Ex
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T AREFTT ARETF T
As at 31 December 2024 R-ZBE_ME+-A=+—8H 2,893 94,683 -
As at 31 December 2023 RZBE-_=F+-A=+—H 5,057 94,142 911
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

H=E

—ECNFt A=t —HIEFE

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES

170

28. EHEE

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2024 2023
—E-_mEF —EF-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBTTT
Customer loyalty programme (Note i) % & 3= 5t 21 (Fff #%i) 27,432 21,048
Prepaid cards and advance from B R R %P B (HEEi)
customers (Note ii) 274,473 349,987
Privilege membership programs &g 85t (L)
(Note iii) 126,114 44,542
428,019 415,577
Notes: Mz -
(i) Customer loyalty programme 0) BEXR L ERE
The contract liability of customer loyalty programme was recognised BEELEAHESENESENE G
along with the restaurant services provided during each reporting ThEHEE2HEHBERIEHNOE
period. As at 31 December 2024, the balance of RMB27,432,000 ERE —RER R_ZET_0
(2023: RMB21,048,000) represents the unredeemed performance AR

(if)

(iii)

obligation relating to the customer loyalty programme.

Prepaid cards and advance from customers

The prepaid cards and advance from customers of the Group are
refundable. However, no material refund was raised historically and
the management of the Group expects the amounts to be refunded
in the future reporting periods is insignificant.

Privilege membership programs

The privilege membership programs offer privilege members rights
to multiple benefits, such as discounts on certain products and
assorted discount coupons with pre-defined quantities, consideration
collected is allocated to the benefits provided based on their
relative standalone selling price and revenue is recognised when
food or services are delivered or the benefits expire. In determining
the relative standalone selling price of the benefits, the Company
considers likelihood of future redemption based on historical
redemption pattern and reviews such estimates periodically based
upon the latest available information regarding redemption and
expiration patterns.

(i)

(iii)

E+_A=+—H #&
#27,432,000C (R - =&
F+_A=Z=+—H: AR%
21,048,00070) fE EAEE & R €
AEEERBITRANEME -

BN RREP 2R

AEENENREREPBRIA
LL% A BEREEREXN
Ry BAEEEEEBRHER

FERREHRRENSREY IS
* o
NEEETE

NEeRFISNESERHAS
REE MR LEMNITNME
REEBNEBANE KBS
EREESNHEBLEEET
D TERMERBE XA HAE
BEHHEERRA - EEEES
MEHBYEER  RAERE
JEE S 54 AR 30 E B R SR L MR A]
Bl WARERA I ANBHIE
ANEHF A AERERESUE
flit e
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

28. CONTRACT LIABILITIES (conTINUED)

No revenue recognised in year 2024 are related to performance
obligations that were satisfied in a prior year (2023: Nil).

The following table shows how much of the revenue recognised in
the current year relates to carried-forward contract liabilities.

28.

EHEBE#®E)

R NFREREREATE E—F
ERBTHEHNETEBHNKA (=
T=FE|E) o

TRETRAFERERBOBALLS
BAMABNEREE -

Prepaid

Customer cards and
loyalty advance from
programmes customers
BE ANFR
BHEE EFB
RMB'000 RMB’000

ARETT ARBTT

For the year ended BE-_Z_-_IF
31 December 2024 +-A=+—HLEE
Revenue recognised that was included T AF¥E 4B ELE &
in the contract liability balance BRI A
at the beginning of the year 21,048 349,987
For the year ended BEEz-—T=-=
31 December 2023 +ZB=1+—HLFE
Revenue recognised that was included FF AF &L B ELES
in the contract liability balance KB RER U A
at the beginning of the year 19,140 380,794
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

29. DEFERRED INCOME

29. IR A

As at 31 December

R+=-—BA=+—H
2024 2023
—ENF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTR ARBTT

Government grant (Note) RS 7 BY (BT &%) 5,915 6,825
Current E 910 910
Non-current FETREN 5,005 5,915

5,915 6,825
Note: Wi

Deferred income represents subsidies granted by the government in
relation to acquisition or construction of non-current assets, which is
released over the useful lives of the relevant assets. During the year ended
31 December 2024, RMB910,000 was released to other income (2023:
RMB910,000).

FELEWMABBRFRTHEBKRBRE
BRIERBEERN ML o T WA R AE
BEENARERAER HE=-Z
—WME+_A=1+—ALFEEED
IEFEW A A R #910,0007T (ZE ==
£ AR¥910,0007T) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

30. BANK BORROWINGS

30. RITERK

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2024 2023

—E-mEF —T=F

RMB’000 RMB'000

ARMT T ARBTT

Unsecured Ea 175,144 248,580
Secured (Note) B () 205,262 =
380,406 248,580

Notes: ¥t

() During the current period, the Group discounted inter-group iy  RAHRE - ZISEIF??ETTHSIEE
bills receivables with recourse in an aggregate amount of & ] EL%*&E@f”&/\%ﬁm >
RMB157,500,000 (2023: Nil) to banks for short-term financing. As /\%@”57 500,0007C (R =&

at 31 December 2024, the associated borrowings are amounting to —EF-E)ERERECA -
RMB112,500,000 (As at 31 December 2023: Nil), which are secured Eé‘:%:[l]$+4ﬁ =+t—B8"
by bank deposits of the Group amounting to RMB17,500,000 as at 18 7 16 3K ﬁAﬁEMHZ,SO0,000
31 December 2024. T(RZTEZ=F+=-A=+—

H: &) UAEER-_T /N

FH+-_A=+—RABEARE

17,500,0007T YR TFF SRAEE 1 o

(i) As at 31 December 2024, the bank borrowings amounting to (i) R-F-_mFE+-—A=+—H"

(iii)

RMB49,997,000(As at 31 December 2023: Nil) are guaranteed by the
Group and secured by certain property, plant and equipment with
the carrying amount of RMB12,269,000.

As at 31 December 2024, certain of the Group’s short-term bank
borrowings amounting to RMB42,765,000 are by the pledge of the
Group's bank deposits of RMB 8,550,000.

The carrying amounts of the above bank borrowing are repayable:

RITIEE AR #49,997,0007T (B
—E-=ZF+-A=1+—8: &)
MAEEER YHEMEAA
R #12,269,000CH & T % -

B MR AR o

(i) M-ZZTE-_WE+_-_A=+—
AEBEEH
42,765,0007C A R £ B R 1
AR #8,550,0007T £ & 1

H

DR HRITIERARE

TER

o

FASRITERNEREERAR A TS

REE :

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H

2024 2023

11 2 —E-=F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T R AR T T

Within one year —FR 380,406 248,580
As at 31 December 2024, the bank borrowings carry fixed interest RZEBE_ME+-_A=+—8H"
rate from 0.46% to 3.65% (2023: 1.70% to 4.50%) per annum. RATE A E T FFENF0.46%
i36meh_;:;_¢-170%§

4.500/0) °©
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

31. PROVISIONS 31. #1E
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—8

2024 2023
—E-NE T =%
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR T AREEF T
Non-current liabilities ERBEE 54,239 61,599

The balance represents provisions for an estimate of costs to be
incurred by the Group in dismantling and removing the underlying
assets, restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease. The provisions are measured at the present
value of the expenditures expected to be required to settle the

BREASERKEBRABE
= - B 1R E E P75 k5 AR
MEEREZHEE GR R PTR
TE IR RE R T BE A BT A AN 0 B
e REREREEBBAKRATRY
PR MR HRETE -

cost.

The movement of the provisions for the year ended 31 December
2024 and 2023 is as follows:

BE T NFER T _=F+_
A=+—HLLFERENEEHHT

R
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+-—H

2024 2023
—E-NEF —ZEZ=F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AREFT T AREF T
At 1 January nN—HA—H 61,599 56,422
Recognition during the year FARR 2,863 11,479
Unwinding of discounts A5 I8 (B # [0 2,304 2,520
Utilisation &) (11,611) (8,448)
Derecognition R (916) (374)
54,239 61,599
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

32. SHARE CAPITAL 32. BA&
Issued and fully paid-up: ERTERERE
As at 31 December
BR+=—A=+-—H
2024 2023
—ENE —EF-=
uUsD’000 usD’'000
FEx FET
Share capital of US$0.000025 each H M E0.000025% JT A JE A 27 27
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR®ET ARBET T
Presented as: 15
Ordinary shares LB 176 176
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+-—H
2024 2023
—E_-_ME —E-=
‘000 ‘000
TR T
Number of shares: &g -
Fully paid ordinary shares EHEEBER 1,086,174 1,086,174
Ordinary shares X 38 AR
Authorised shares Issued capital
EERK BRITRE
Number Number
of shares Amount of shares Amount
BBEE &8 BB EE kx|
‘000 RMB'000 ‘000 RMB'000
T ARET T TR ARET T
Balance at 31 December 2022, —ZE-—& . —ZE-=&p
2023 and 2024 —E_ME+-A=+-H
®e 2,000,000 336 1,086,174 176
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_T-_ME+-A=+—HItFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

(1) SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company adopted a share option scheme for the grant
of options to eligible participants on 28 August 2009 (the
“Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan”). In accordance with
the terms of the scheme, executives and senior employees
may be granted options to purchase ordinary shares of the
Company when there is a qualified IPO. The share options
granted under the Pre-IPO Share Incentive Plan were granted
in four different tranches on 31 August 2009, 17 May 2011,
24 December 2012 and 21 March 2014, respectively.

33. UBREEFUROD B ER

SELES
m)%%%ﬂ%
ZANUN —EZAFENA

Fair

_+AEWﬁA§h,A%
P B PG M R AN — TE B IR
AEERLAERETRND
REEE]) - BB ZAEE
FoTBRABREREERE
TAERBRAREER
EERBRENBEAQARY
B - BEEH X ARAEENRK
MRS ELNERES
AR—_ZEZTNENA=Z+—
B -—Z——FAA+tH "
—E—C-H+-A=-+WMA
F—FE—NFEF=Z/A=-+—H
2 ETR R LR H o

value at

grant date Vesting period

RiAM

WAYE BEHE

Share Number of Grant Expiry

option tranche options granted date date
g

BRERK BREHR RLEH  ERER

Share option tranche D

BRESDS

Schedule | 3,207,461 21/032014  21/03/2024

el

Schedule Il 5,717,140 21/032014  21/03/2024

ital

Schedule Il 6,064,542 21/032014  21/03/2024

ita

1.19 25% for each of 4 years after 24 months
from the date of qualified PO
AERERAREEEARAUER L
AFFE%

1.2 25% for each of 4 years after 36 months
from the date of qualified PO
AERBERAREEERER0EAK
4EFE%

1,24 25% for each of 4 years after 48 months
from the date of qualified IPO
AERERAREEEARAMER R
HEGFL%
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(1) SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Each share option can subscribe for one ordinary share
of the Company when exercise. No amounts are paid
or payable upon the acceptance of the option. The
options carry neither rights to dividends nor voting
rights. Options may be exercised at any time from the
vesting date to the expiry date as mentioned above.

The exercise price of the share option is the agreed
price at the date of the grant. The expiry date is no
more than ten years from the date of the grant and
the options would be forfeited when the staff resigned

before the vesting day.

33. UIRELELURNDAER
FTREORSZ @)

(1) BRESE @)

BHBRBEITER A
RBARA —BEAE
B o B3R R R B
BA XN E R SRR K E
AEMRRIEA - ZEBR
REBE TP 5 A B i 1
MamkEE - ZEBKR
BAREFEBEEHEE &
SRt & Jem B HA
BERFTTIE

BhRETEEARLA
HI ) 1% € B A% - fE R A
Hig & A R T
B+F MEINMESR
BREAEE %R
o B BECHE -

As at 31 December

R+=A=+—H
2024 2023
—E-gFE —E-=F
Share option tranches Tranche D Tranche D
BBRREHL R Ermt Rk
Share options granted to BTUATASHBERE
Staffs who are not directors or  JEEEHEHEHMWEEZEIE
key management personnel ABREMES = 438,998
Outstanding as at the end of FREAITE
the year - 438,998
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 3B. LU ELEE LU AER
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) SENNEE R D)
(1) SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) (1) BRESE @)
(iii) The movement of share options (iii) HE /% 15

The year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—-HLEE

2024 2023
—E-ME —E-=F
Weighted Weighted
average average
Number exercise Number exercise
of options price of options price
Share options BB AR hnREFH B INHE 19
R B THEE # B TEE
RMB RMB
AR¥T ARETT
Balance at beginning of ~ F 4 &k
the year 438,998 2.70 438,998 2.70
Expired during the year ~ F R 2/ Hf (438,998) - - -
Balance at end of the year K464 - 2.70 438,998 2.70
Exercisable at end of the FERAJ{T{F
year - 438,998
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(2)

RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME

On 28 November 2014, a RSU Scheme of the Company was
approved and adopted by the shareholders of the Company.
The RSU Scheme will be valid and effective for a period of
ten years, commencing from the date, on which the shares
of the Company are first listed on the main board of HKEX
("Listing Date"”), being 17 December 2014 (unless it is
terminated earlier in accordance with its terms) (the “RSU
Scheme Period”).

The maximum number of RSUs that may be granted under
the RSU Scheme in aggregate (excluding RSUs that have
lapsed or been cancelled in accordance with the rules of the
RSU Scheme) must not exceed 42,174,566 shares, being 4%
of the total number of shares in issue as at the Listing Date
(the "RSU Scheme Limit”). The RSU Scheme Limit may be
refreshed from time to time subject to prior approval from
the shareholders in general meeting, provided that the total
number of shares underlying the RSUs granted following the
date of approval of the refreshed limit (the “New Approval
Date”) under the limit as refreshed from time to time must
not exceed 4% of the number of shares in issue as of the
relevant New Approval Date. The purpose of the RSU Scheme
is to incentivize directors, senior management and employees
for their contribution to the Group and to attract and retain
suitable personnel to enhance the development of the
Group.

The Company has appointed Computershare Hong Kong
Trustees Limited as the RSU Trustee for the administration of
the RSU Scheme pursuant to the rules of the RSU Scheme.

33. UIRELELURNDAER
FTREORES &)

(2)

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z = UFF R

3 PR &I IR {0 EE fu 5t &

RZZE—mF+—A=Z+N
= NN ) = s - S 2
A a2 PRI BALETE o
BRIEMRIE AR B R IR AT AL UL -
& A2 PR 6l B% (0 B AL AT 8l
BARRBRGD ERRE B
REHE#R FTmEHB(TESR
BED (B =ZF—m&F+= A
+ER) B+ EHBEAEM
([ZREKRMDEMTEEX
) -

R 1% = BR # A% D B8 iz 51 8 7]
B E R 6 R (5 8048 2
(T BIERE R &% (B AL
FFERBIE KRR FHEAZ
REIRMDER) ERTEEB
42,174,5668% & 5 (B = B
HEBITRMBEMN4I% ([Z
PREIBMEBENMTEIRE] -
SR HIRMDEMNTEIREEA
EREEBREAG EHhH
ERTRFE - MIEE S
REAH(EHAERL])
BIBBETHEENNRER
Y PR IR 10 BB BT S AR
BB ESBaEEETL
EBHEBRERITRHEE
B14% o PR $I IR 19 BE AL 5 2l
ETRBESE SREREE
FEERASEEL TR -
WS REBEE B ABMN
REAEENERE -

ARFEEREETRBTRES
ERERAB /IR M
BUXFEA REXZRHK
MEBEMAFEZREEREXR
il B An BAL A -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 3B.UREEZEURGAER
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED) N EERE))
(2) RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME (continued) (2) ZREIRMENTE (£&)
(i) Purchase of treasury share under the RSU (i) MRIEZRHKGENL
Scheme 2R EFIRG
During the year ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, MBEE_ST-_NFR_
the Company did not acquire its existing shares from T _=Ft+-_A=+—
the market. The shares were held on trust for the BIEFE  RBARHK™D
benefit of the RSU participants pursuant to the RSU S EWBEEIRERD -
Scheme and the trust deed. The shares so purchased BREFREBERD S B
were used as awards for relevant participants in the Ve T IR %I f% 19 B iz 5
RSU Scheme. SRR 2 HE R 4EE) -
As at 31 December 2024, amounts about RMB756,000 R—ZZE-_WE+=A
(2023: RMB756,000) were held by the RSU Trustee =+t—H' ' ZRHK
to purchase ordinary shares from the market in the mBENTTEAETES
forthcoming period according to the instruction of the A4 ANR¥T756,0007T
Company. ZEZ=F:AR%

756,0007T) @ AR I A
RN AR R R EA R %
MZEE L@ -
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HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT

TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(2) RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME (continued)

33. UIRELELURNDAER
FTREORSZ @)

(2) ZRHIBRMDELETS (&)

Number
of awarded Grant Expiry Fair value
RSUs tranche shares date date at grant date Vesting period
ZRH KRG %R R A
Bu#R RO#E RLBH &% A 5 NATE REER
RSUs tranche A 2,910,920 17/11/2016  17/11/2026 HKD4.837# 25% for each of 4 years after
FRER RN Ef 01/04/2018
—T-\FHA-BR4F
FE25%
RSUs tranche B 3,993,190 08/05/2017  08/05/2027 HKD6.9978 ¥  25% for each of 4 years after
F R RA AR B 01/04/2019
“Z-NFENA-HR%AE
FE25%
RSUs tranche D 33,378 31/01/2018  31/01/2028  HKD14.98%# 25% for each of 4 years after
SRR R Bl 01/04/2019
“Z-NFEWA-BRAE
FE25%
RSUs tranche E 1,000,981 14/12/2018  14/12/2028  HKD11.20/8% 25% for each of 4 years after
FRRZR RN B 01/04/2020
—Z_THMA-RR4F
FE25%
RSUs tranche F 44,326 22/01/2019  22/01/2029  HKD11.287# 25% for each of 4 years after
FARER R B 01/04/2019
“E-NFWA-BRIE
FE25%
RSUs tranche G 1,346,707 30/09/2020  30/09/2030 HKD9.4978 ¥  25% for each of 4 years after
FEHZ R B 01/04/2021
“E--FWA-BR4F
FE25%
RSUs tranche H 4,407,078 30/09/2020  30/09/2030 HKD9.49/&® 25% for each of 4 years after
B\ E B RO B 01/04/2022
“T_ WA RR4F
FE25%
RSUs tranche J 199,000 01/04/2023  01/04/2023 HKD6.27/& % 33.3% for each of 3 years after
FENRZR RN Ef 01/04/2024
“ToMENA-R%3F
H%4333%
RSUs tranche K 732,331 01/04/2024  01/04/2034 HKD1.60/% % 33.3% for each of 3 years after
FTHERH RN EM 01/04/2025
T RFENA-BE3F
HE333%
RSUs tranche L 2,255,577 01/04/2024  01/04/2034 HKD1.60/& % 33.3% for each of 3 years after

BT —HXRHIRND L

01/04/2025
“E-HFMA—BRE3IE
FE33.3%
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BHE_T-_ME+-A=+—HItFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(2) RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME (continued)

33. UIRELELURNDAER
FTREORSZ @)

(2) ZRHIBRMDELETS (&)

The grantees of the RSUs are not required to pay for
the grant of any RSUs under the RSU Scheme or for
the exercise of the RSUs. The expiry date is no more
than ten years from the date of the grant and the RSU
would be forfeited when the staff resigned before the
vesting day.

P
(‘?El}

5 PR Il A {0 BB A B A IR
AR AR 1B X R I AR
0 B B ERAEM X
PRl BX 0 B fL 3 34 17
ﬁxﬁﬁi i B 0 B Az S

@M AHIERH A

EH@E%T\E?@—I—i - R
BT E A M A E
£ S B0R WX R HI X
B -

The following table discloses the movement of the
Company’s RSU granted to the selected participants for
the year ended 31 December 2024:

TREBAATHES
Y
HIEFEREE S R
i

M EE)E)
Number of Awarded Shares
KBRHYA
Outstanding Outstanding
at Granted Exercised Forfeited at
at 1 January during during the during the 31 December
2024 the year year year 2024
R=2==%
R=B==#% t=h
-A-H =t+-H
M AT ERRM BAfE Rk WA &
RSU tranches ERHROEMLH K
RSUs granted to BTUTATHZRS
Rip &l
Directors =2 962,351 = (559,676) = 402,675
Employees EE 317,814 2,987,908 (90,479) (174,692) 3,040,551
Total &5t 1,280,165 2,987,908 (650,155) (174,692) 3,443,226
At the end of each year, the Group revises its estimates NEER  NEFEET
of the number of RSUs that are expected to vest HiEst 2 2RI MHE
ultimately. The impact of the revision of the estimate, if LB BNTEE &K

any, is recognised in profit or loss, with a corresponding
adjustment to the equity-settled share-based payments
reserve.

%%Zxﬁﬁﬂﬂxfﬂ“
br @ /uﬂfﬂqu T8 (|
ﬁ)E/\\TE\ AER I
RUABRE A B AR &
e BT ED
HERREE -

_\
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

33. EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)
(2) RESTRICTED SHARE UNIT SCHEME (continued)

The Group recognised the total expense of
RMB3,806,000 for the year ended 31 December 2024
(2023: RMB2,952,000) in relation to RSUs granted by
the Company this year.

34. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE

Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as follows:

3. URBELEELURGOGAER
FTREORSZ @)

(2) ZRFIRMDEETE (47)

=1
(%)

HE_T-_WF+=A
=+—BLEFE &&
B AR R RZF TR
SRR B A% 10 BALHER A
X AR #3,806,0007T
ZEZ=F:ARK
2,952,0007T) ©

3. REERRNESR
AEERAEOENREFENT -

As at 31 December

R+t=-—BA=+—H
2024 2023
—ENF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

ARET T ARBTT

Cost of interest in a joint venture RELTENER 100,000 100,000

Share of post-acquisition profits and W& FE M E 4R & WA
other comprehensive income k] 61 164
100,061 100,164
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

34. INTEREST IN A JOINT VENTURE (CONTINUED)

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the reporting
period are as follow: ZZDT :

Proportion of
voting rights
held by the Group

Country of
incorporation
registration

Proportion of
ownership interest
held by the Group

Name of entity Principal activity

ERER MR/ ELER AEEFSREERELA FEERSREELH TEEK
2024 2023 2024 2023
“E-NFE —To-fF ZBINE —T-o=F
Tianjin Richen Food Tianjin, China 50% 50% 50% 50%  Food production and Sales
Co., Ltd. RERE RmEENHE
("Tianjin Richen”)
X2ARRBRGH
BRAR(TXRARI])
Pursuant to the joint venture shareholders’ agreement (the “JV BIEHHA-ZE-_—FHANEH
Shareholders’ Agreement”) on 8 May 2021, Xiabuxiabu (China) A8 CERERZE (68 DER

Food Co., Ltd (“Food China”) and Qingdao Richen Food Co., Ltd. HipE]) BEmEE (FE) BB

184

(5EHRAERKHD AR AT)("Qingdao Richen”) each would
hold 50% of the equity interest of Tianjin Richen. The decisions
about the relevant activities of Tianjin Richen require unanimous
consent of Food China and Qingdao Richen pursuant to the JV
Shareholders’ Agreement. In the opinion of the Directors, Food
China can exercise joint control over Tianjin Richen and the Group
accounts the investment in Tianjin Richen as interest in a joint
venture. During the year ended 31 December 2024, Tianjin Richen
was still under construction.

ER2R(IBRmPTE]) BESEA
ReakhBERAR(TEEAR]
DRI A RZRRS0%MRHE < 1R

BRECERRGH  KEARMA
ﬁé@%&“& Em¢lﬁ 5

AR—BRAEZE -EERE R
B A K2 H R AT HT il & -
WS EFRKZE E&m&ﬁﬂﬁﬁ
BREANEEREREZ - BIEZ
—WE+=ZA=+—8" ﬁbiﬁ&
MEREF -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

HE=

35.

36.

ToNFEF_A=+—BIEFE

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS 35. EAEIE
As at 31 December
R+=—A=+—H
2024 2023
—E-ME —E=F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR¥ T ARBTT
Capital expenditure contracted for but BLUEEM ¥ - BiE K&
not provided in the consolidated FBEETRER
financial statements in respect of RiFE P BEHRENR
acquisition of property, plant and BENERNAEZ
equipment 9,090 25,291
RETIREMENT BENEFIT SCHEME CONTRIBUTIONS 36. EIRE R EIHFx

The Group operates a Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the
“MPF Scheme"”) established under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance in Hong Kong for all qualifying
employees of its Hong Kong incorporated subsidiaries. Under
the scheme, the employer and its employees are each required
to make contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant income of
HK$30,000. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held separately
from those of the Group in funds under the control of trustees.
The Group contributed 5% of the relevant payroll costs to the MPF
Scheme which contribution is matched by employees.

The PRC employees of the Group are members of a state-managed
retirement benefit plan operated by the government of the PRC.
The PRC subsidiaries of the Company are required to contribute
a specified percentage of payroll costs to the retirement benefit
plan to fund the employee benefits. The only obligation of the
Group with respect to the retirement benefit plan is to make the
specified contributions. The retirement benefit cost charged to
profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2024 amounted to
RMB116,872,000 (2023: RMB141,142,000).

During the years ended 31 December 2024 and 2023, the Group
had no forfeited contributions under those schemes which may be
used by the Group to reduce the existing level of contributions.
There were also no forfeited contributions available at 31
December 2024 under the schemes which may be used by the
Group to reduce the contribution payable in future years (2023:
none).

REE[EN BT B MR K B
NEANEBAEREERARES
858 Bl 1E AR B A EIGRHIRR AV 58
HEREEE ([BREEE]) -
REZTE  BEXNEEASBR
BEBBARKS% A ZEI R
ABBAR® LR A30,0008
TCe REEAENEEENKEEN
BESMRIE  YHXFEAMZES
HeRHE - AKEHRBESFEIE
HER BB EFEKAES5%
B B SRR T AL -

REEFTHEEY AT BRBUTE IR
MEXRERRKBHEEIKE - &
RRIM P EKNEB AR EZRETENE
BTEB D RZENRENEEH
o AN EERATERIKIE -
AEEHRKEMNFTENE—F
FRNABELHRENHER BEZZT
“HE+-A=+—BIEE " B
EaRTHERRENKEAAEAR
#116,872,000L (ZE =4 : A
R #141,142,0007T) °

REBEEZZT_MFER=_FT_=%F
+ZA=+—HIEFE AEER
ZEFT S TN B S WA BT R
SERERIVERHEIUKE - R
T-ME+-_A=+—H RN&ZH
FFEI T ED RN R AT AR E
BIERDRREFREMNER(ZE
—=FE) o
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 37. BERF RS
(a) Related party transactions (a) BERRZ
Other than as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated BRRZEGEEBEHRERANE
financial statements, the Group has following transactions ft, 2B 5 ﬁ%}}ig@,%?l\ N EE
and balances with related parties: BEEST RS RERDT

For the year ended 31 December

BE+-A=1t—-HLEE

Relationship Nature of transactions 2024 2023
& XEMHE —EBopmE —Z_=F
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR® T ARBETT

Related companies controlled by  Royalty expense 52,150 45,107
the Controlling Shareholder FraT R
R AR R AT IE S B E A A Short-term lease expense 1,200 1,200
RHEERE
Joint venture Sale of property, plant and equipment - 86,388
REME HEME BB k&R

For the year ended 31 December

BE+t-RA=+-RHLEE

Relationship Nature of balances 2024 2023
B % Y “TBEoNEF —E-=F
RMB’000 RMB'000

ARBTR ARBTT

Related companies controlled by  Accrual and other payables 6,076 2,153
the Controlling Shareholder et & R I H fth B < R IR
122 R AR BR P 422 I S R )

Note: The balance balances are unsecured, interest-free and ek AHEER . RERIRE
repayable on demand. k& -
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e IR R MR

For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

37. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (CONTINUED)

(b) Emoluments of key management personnel of

37.

BELTRS &)
(b) AEBTEEBEAEN

the Group #r A
As at 31 December
R+=—HA=+-—H

2024 2023
—EB-NEF T =F
RMB’000 RMB’'000
AREBT ARBTT
Short-term employee benefits EHEERF 1,332 1,302
1,332 1,302

No Director’s emoluments are included above, further details
of the Directors’ emoluments are included in Note 14.

EXYEBFEZFMH A
MEFEHFMAE—FTFRBH
RHIFE14 -
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o)

B RS R AR M AL

For the year ended 31 December 2024

BEZ

“HE+ZA=t+—HILFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

188

THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2023, the Company has
interests in the following subsidiaries:

Place of
Incorporation registration

Issued and paid
ordinary share

38.

RARFTEMBLAFE

HE—_Z_-_=F+-A=+—H1t

FE-

db)
DII.'

Proportion ownership
Interest/voting power
attributable to the Company
EATRUT BHER
fERRR/ REELH

31 December 31 December

ARRTGEE NI E R

and business capital/registered capital 2024 2023
Name of subsidiaries ERRIAR BRARAR ZE-ME ZZZZF Principal activities
HEATEH ERREEHY FEER/BRRE fSRSER RSP D RS
0° 00
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (HK) Holdings Co., Ltd. ~ Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment holding
("Xiabu Hong Kong") (Note i) Y HKS 1 REHK
(BREEEHEE (BF) ERARAA) ERRA
RRARESER (F8) BRERAD () 1%
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(BREREAEEERA)(" Xiabu Beijing’) (Note ) #E RMBS55,000,000 medE
REREERERARAD (M) HMER
ABRH#55,000,0007
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd.* ~ The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(REREEHREE (LR) ARAA) HE US$1,000,000 HEEE
("Xiabu Shanghai”) (Note i ER
RERREHEE (L8 ARAR (M) 1,000,000% 7
Coucou (China) Holdings Co., Ltd. British Virgin Islands Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment holding
(%% (&) 2EARLA)(" Coucou (China)") (Note ) KERRES Us$1 REBR
EE(RE) ERERAF (W) EERA
1%
Coucou (HK) Holdings Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Investment holding
(8% (5% )fﬂxﬁﬁ ) 5 HKS1 RELR
BE(BR)ARERAT il
17
Coucou Catering Management Co., Ltd. * The PRC Paid Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(BEEHEEEBAT) Note ) hE RMB51,919,000 BE4E
EEENERARAD (K BARMER
ARH51,919,0007
XiabuXiabu (Shanghai) Industrial Co., Ltd.* The PRC Paid registered capital 100 100 Investment holding
(R IR (15) EEERAT) Note ) e RMB100,000 REzk
RIERE (18) ERARAA (M) E4RMER
AR 100,007
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Holdings Co., Ltd. Cayman Islands Ordinary share capital 60 60 Investment holding
("Xiabu (China) Food “) (Note iv) HeHE US$1,000,000 RERK
(Mgl %(M)auu}“ﬁxﬁﬁ ) ERBRA
RERE (ME) AntRERA 1,000,000% 70
([ () & ) (i 3Ew)
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_T-_ME+-A=+—HItFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 38. X AR T EMB A AIFE
THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (#)

Proportion ownership
Interest/voting power
attributable to the Company

EATRUT BHER
Place of Issued and paid FeEEESR/ REELA
Incorporation registration ordinary share 31 December 31 December
and business capital/registered capital 2024 2023
Name of subsidiaries ERRIAR BRARAR 13 ZZZZF Principal activities
WEAREH EfREEBE EERK/HRES +ZHE+—E TZA=+-A FE£EK
% %
Xiabuxiabu (HK) Food Holdings Co., Ltd Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 60 60 Investment holding
(BEmE (F3) RaERERAR) 3 HK$100 REBR
RERE (F2) AntRERA EERA
100572
Xiabuxiabu (China) Food Co., Ltd* (“Food China") The PRC Registered capital 60 60 Food Sales
(BB () ARARAT) Note ) E US$10,000,000 Am#HE
RERE (ME) AaBRAF (ERR]) (K iMER
10,000,000%
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Tianjin) Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(R %Waﬁ(j‘:é)ﬁﬁ’&u)wotel) e USD20,000,000 g
RERBENER (R2)FRAD (M) EMEAR
20,000,000%7
Coucou (Tianjin) Catering Management Co., Ltd. * The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(B%(X2) RRERARA) Note ) T USD30,000,000 HEEE
EE (R ERERBRAT (M) EMER
30,000,000%7
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management(Shenzhen) o, Ltd*  ThePRC Registered capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(WEEBEAEE (7)) ERAR) Note ) e USD1,000,000 2EE
RERBRHEE (RA) BRAF () AMER
1,000,000%
Coucou (HK) Catering Management Co., Ltd. Hong Kong Ordinary share capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
(B%(BE)EHERARATA) Bt HKS 1 L
EE(FR)ENERRRAA ERRA
%7
Xilin Gol League Yishun halal meat Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Slaughtering, processing,
(AHDSRFIEFEREEREEAR) Note i) hE RMB190,000,000 cold storage and sales of
BB RESANEARELAR (M) ifax raw material
AE%190,000,0007 NI AEREERK
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HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

8. ARFAETEMBRARAFE

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Place of

Issued and paid

()

Proportion ownership
Interest/voting power

attributable to the Company

ARRRAT BAEL

faRER/ RERLH

Incorporation registration ordinary share 31 December 31 December
and business capital/registered capital 2024 2023
Name of subsidiaries ERRIAR ERARAR 13 ZZZZF Principal activities
WEARAR EfREEBE LERE/2RER +ZEE+—E TZAz+-A FE£E
% %
Xiabuxiabu Catering Management (Singapore) Pte. Ltd. Singapore Ordinary share capital 95 95 Operating restaurant
(MR Mﬁaﬁ(mﬂﬁ)ﬁ E’A 7) I SGD1,000,000 BagE
R 2R ER (R) BRA ZERE
1,000,000%7 1% 7T
Xiabu (Shanghai) Design Engineering Co., Ltd The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Construction
(MR (L8) Rt TRBRAR) (Note ) i RMB10,000,000 g4
W (L8) et TRAR A (W) HMER
AR 10,000,000
Hong Kong Xiabuxiabu Catering Management Taiwan, Chma Ordinary share capital 100 100 Operating restaurant
HK Holdings Co. Ltd mEgE TWD50,000,000 REZE
(BABRERRENERERARARAR) £BR750,000,00037 5%
BREMEREEREREAERARAA
Xiabuxiabu Investment Group Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Investment holding
(SRREREEBERAT) Note) hE USD141,800,000 BEBR
W A £ EARA (M) AMER
Z70141,800,0007
Xiabuxiabu (Shanghai) Food Trading Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered capital 60 60 Food Sales
(MRS (L8) RmE 2ERA) (Note i) hE RMIBS,000,000 AnE
W () RmB S AR (M) AMER
AR5,000,0007C
X\abumabu (Shanghai) Food Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered capital 60 60 Food Sales
BEEE (L8 RA ‘ﬁﬂE ) Note T RMB5,000,000 ARE
Wﬁ WE(H8) ReERAR (W) AMER
AR5,000,0007
Shaohot Catering Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered capital 100 100 Operatmg restaurant
(RESERE (L /i)ﬁﬂﬁ ) (Note ) hE RMB10,000,000 megE
PEERER(D8)ERAR (W) AMER
AR%10,000,00070
Xiabu Xiabu Catering Management Malaysia Registered capital - 95 Operating restaurant
(Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. SRBT MYR1,000
(FRRRESAER (SREE)ERART) Notev) AMER Be2E
REREERER (FRAD) ERAR (M) 1005 RBTHES
Xiabuxiabu (Beijing) Food Co Ltd. The PRC Registered capital 60 - Food Sales
(it,? R M50 R0 8 R 2 21 (Note ii(Note vi) HE RMB10,000,000 RmiEE
REE IR R A R (i) (B 2hi) AMER
AR%10,000,00070
* The English name is for identification only. The official names of the * HYZBEHE2E - ATHIER
companies are in Chinese. 2B AP
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
BHE_T-_ME+-A=+—HItFE

38. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 38. A ARIFEN B A A5

THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (4#)

Notes: BEE

(i)  The entities are wholly-owned foreign enterprises. (i) ZEERAIEBELH-

(i) These subsidiaries established in the PRC are wholly domestic owned (i) ZERF IEXiE‘]BﬁE V=1

(iii)

companies.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debts securities at the end
of the year.

Except for Xiabu Hong Kong, Coucou (China) and Xiabu (China)

Food, which are directly held by the Company, other subsidiaries are
indirectly held by the Company.

Xiabu Xiabu Catering Management (Malaysia) Sdn. Bhd. was

(iii)

(iv)

NBER

REE - BENRBQRBTEM
EBE S o

BRI EE =% (PE) KT R
(FE) RMBARAEERE
R A e NI = NN S
KA -

MR I E R (FRER) A

deregistered on 9 December 2024. BARR-_ZE-_NMFE+=-ANAH

g o
(vi)

The entity was newly established during the year. (Vi) ZEEBENRFARIKIL -

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 30. e TEAERESRERER
RISK MANAGEMENT
Categories of the financial instruments ERITAER
As at 31 December
R+=-—A=+-—H
2024 2023
—E-NE T =%
RMB'000 RMB'000
AR® TR ARET T
Financial assets: TREE
Financial assets at amortised cost BEEKATENESREE 652,077 548,290
Financial assets at FVTPL FHRBEREATETEDN
TREE 586,960 653,994
Financial liabilities: SREE:
Amortised cost B 58 Rk AN 910,340 766,375
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

39.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade and other
receivables, rental deposits, restricted bank balances, term
deposits, cash and cash equivalents, financial assets at FVTPL, bank
borrowings, trade payables and other payables. Details of these
financial instruments are disclosed in respective notes. The risks
associated with these financial instruments include market risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies on how to mitigate these
risks are set out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are implemented
on a timely and effective manner.

The Group’s activities expose it primarily to the foreign currency
risk and interest rate risk, which details are described as follows:

Foreign currency risk management

The Group undertakes certain financing and operating transactions
in foreign currencies, which expose the Group to foreign currency
risk. The Group does not use any derivative contracts to hedge
against its exposure to currency risk. The management manages its
currency risk by closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rates and considering hedging significant foreign currency
exposure should such need arise.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s foreign currency
denominated monetary assets and monetary liabilities at the end
of the year are as follows:

30. eMTITEREREAKRERE

(%)
TREREERZERBE

AEENTEERIABRES
JE U BR 3R I L At R MR IR - T 1
T XRBIBITZRBRITAEER
EMER REMREFEY B
BEDSEAFEFEZEREE
RITER BZEMNEALEME
NHRE - ZETMTAFEBERIEMH
MIEPRE  RZESR T AR
MEREeETSER  EERRK
RBEE AR - AR Z F AR
MBREN T -EEEREEE
MEEZERAR - ARREER N
HBREUE B SR o

ARBENEDEEHTHAREE
RIS RFEER - B HHE
WamT

SR R B
REBUIIEETETRERESE
RS WAEEHEBEINERR - &
SEYEEREFITESOE P E
PrE R E R RER - B2 ERBEK
BERINEEXNBHAEELE
KRR YRR OERERYTE
RN R o

REE  AEBAIINEHENEE
BENMEEAER@ENT :

Assets Liabilities
As at 31 December As at 31 December
BE =R
R+=—A=+—H R+=-—A=+—8H

2024 2023 2024 2023
—E-_NE —E =4 —E_mE —E =4
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’'000
AR TR AR¥T T AR T ARBTT
usD ETT 68,166 857 1,070 2,311
HKD BT 54,203 16,509 100,442 99,363
SGD Frhnig ot 6,810 5,753 6,141 8,201
TWD e 8,342 2,736 4,273 749

192 MEEEHEREE (FE) #ZAR AT XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.



For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 30. eMIEREREKRERE

RISK MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

Foreign currency risk management (continued)
Sensitivity analysis

No sensitivity analysis on foreign currency risk is presented as
management consider the sensitivity on foreign currency risk is
insignificant.

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in relation to
term deposits, restricted bank balances (Note 23), fixed-rate bank
borrowing (Note 30), lease liabilities (Note 27) and rental deposits
(Note 19). The Group is also exposed to cash flow interest risk
in relation to variable-rate bank balances (Note 24), which carry
prevailing market interest. The Group manages its interest rate
exposures by assessing the potential impact arising from any
interest rate movements based on interest rate level and outlook.

Total interest income from financial assets that are measured at
amortised cost is as follows:

(%)

SREREIEEENRBER (&)

SEE R EE (F

FRRE DT

BB E NS R ETT R DT
R E T B 58 E NS [ i ) B %
I TREKX -

T 7 B

NEBEGEHFER - ZRHART
ek (aE23) ~ E BRITE I (M
F£30) - HMEAGE (M:F27) kS
& (MsE19) HE A FEMNER
% o N[BT E IR EE BERITE &
(Mf#¥24) ZERBRBETMH
FEFEEENESREN B R
B o AN B3 1B AR I F oK 2E I Al
S TR RS TELBESY
HEBHFKER

RRERAH B SBEENA S
WA BRI T

For the year ended 31 December
BZ+-A=1+—HLEE

2024 2023
—E-NE —E-—F
RMB’000 RMB'000
AR¥ET T ARET T
Other income H i A
Financial assets at amortised cost REHEKN AT EZEREE 11,146 8,874

No sensitivity analysis on interest rate risk is presented as
management consider the sensitivity on interest rate risk is
insignificant.

HREEERRMERRERGREN
FER/ - FUb W E 2 5@ A X
RS EN DN -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

39.

194

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

The Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk which will cause a
financial loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an obligation
by the counterparties is arising from the carrying amount of the
respective recognised financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statements of financial position (including trade receivables, other
receivables, rental deposits, term deposits, restricted bank balances
and bank balances.

The management of the Group considers bank balances, term
deposits and restricted bank balances that are deposited with
state-owned banks or financial institutions with high credit rating
to be low credit risk financial assets. In addition, trade receivables
in connection with bills settled through payment platforms such
as Unionpay, Alipay or WeChat Pay are also with high credit
rating and no past due history. The management of the Group
considers these assets are short-term in nature and the probability
of default is negligible on the basis of high-credit-rating issuers
as at 31 December 2024, and accordingly, no loss allowance was
recognised as at 31 December 2024 (2023: Nil).

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables
and the ECL on these assets are individually assessed. The
estimated loss rates are estimated on historical observed default
rates over the expected life of the debtors and are adjusted for
forward-looking information that is available without undue cost
or effort. The management concluded that the ECL for trade
receivables are insignificant for the year end 31 December 2024
(2023: insignificant).

39.

TRMIARSRERERE
(#)

tRERESEBERBER (&)

AEERAZXZHEFHARERITEE
MeAEERIMBERNRSE
B RRIRB &S P EIRRR A%
HERRTMEENKREE (217
B RWERR - EtEERE M
EHE  EMEX  ZRHIRTE
PRIARIRTTRERR) ©

AEEEEERATENRSER
FANBEAERITH S BMKENR
THER, THFERLZREIRITE
BARKEERBRSHMEE - I
BFERIRY AN EIMEIMNE
SNFEHEENEEEHNE S
EWERS AREETA - BXE
BEREE c AEBEEEERAZS
EEAGHED  BRREE-Z
—ME+—A=+—HBITAEAE
BeEETE  MELOMAREER
PEAE At EN T HF
+Z A=+ —A®mRABEEEE (=
T4 ) o

NEEBRKREREBKEROEET
BHETEEERABA  TRAHEEE
EMBHERERETEBTGE -
B BRRERBEEEAERS
MAESERIINNBHRETH
e WREBEESMNETEKAK
ZARAESHATEEERET
AR -THENEHRZE B#E_ZT
“ME+-_A=+—BILEE " JE
WEERNBHERBRRTFTEKN (=
ET=F:FEK) °
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

BHE-Z-_WF+-_A=1t—HILFE

39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies

(continued)

In determining the ECL for rental deposits and other receivables,
the management of the Group has taken into account the
historical default experience and forward-looking information, as
appropriate. Except for the rental deposits and other receivable
that were identified as credit-impaired, the management believes
that there has been no significant increase in credit risk of the rest
of rental deposits and other receivables since initial recognition
and the credit impairment was assessed based on 12m ECL. The
management concluded that the ECL for those receivables and
deposits are insignificant for the year end 31 December 2024

(2023: insignificant).

There has been no change in the estimation techniques or
significant assumptions made throughout the year ended 31

December 2024.

30. eMITERERERERE

()

TRIEREEERERBER (&)

REEHES RS K E Mt EKRFKIEN
EHEEEERK  AEEETERED
EZERBEENKHMAIEEER (10
HA) - BREFMNAEERENHES
He REAmBERKIBIN  EBEER
RBVRRERUARB THESRE R
o 4th JE W RIB (5 B R fx 37 48 R 1T
e mEERETEMN2EA B
EEEEFH BEERT %5
EUWRERHSNEHREEEER
HE_Z_WNF+-_A=+—H1t
FEATAER(ZEZ=F:F
BAR) e

REBEE-_ET-_NF+-_A=+—H

HEEFE  HESIEZREARRK
WEHIREH -

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z &£ 195
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39.

196

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL
RISK MANAGEMENT (conTINUED)

Financial risk management objectives and policies
(continued)

In the management of the liquidity risk, the management of the
Group monitors and maintains a reasonable level of cash and
cash equivalents which is deemed adequate by the management
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of
fluctuations in cash flows. The Group relies on the cash generated
from operating activities as the main source of liquidity. For
the year ended December 31, 2024, the Group had net cash
generated from operating activities of RMB715,417,000 (2023:
RMB1,134,836,000). As at the time of approving the consolidated
financial statements, the Group also had unused banking facilities
of RMB290 million to meet their financial obligations in the
foreseeable future.

The following table details the Group’s remaining contractual
maturity for its non-derivative financial liabilities and lease
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the undiscounted
cash flows of financial liabilities and lease liabilities based on the
earliest date on which the Group can be required to pay.

39.

TRMIARSRERERE
(#)

tRERESEBERBER (&)

HRRBECRRER  AESEE
BEEERMEEREERAEAN
HEe MRS EEAEKE  AKE
EmEERNES  RBIERESRE
BHNFE - EEBRBELTETE
EENREERARHESHNEEXR
ReBE-_ZT-_NF+_-_A=+—
HIEFE ASELEEIHELER
FIRE A ARET15,417,0007T (=
T - =% : AR¥1,134,836,000
To) c RELER A M RERE - K
L@ B ARE20ETHNAS B
RITEREUERREMRKETH
MR -

TRALASENFITESRAE
EAERENRTAORHER -
ZRDBEAEEATINHKT
PHemAaBrEEABHREE
HenEme -

Over 1 Over

Weighted  On demand months 3 months Total
average  orwithin  but within  but within Undiscounted ~ Carrying
interestrate ~~ Tmonth 3 months Tyear  1-5years  >Syears cash flows amount

As at 31 December 2024 mE  RERY HEB-EF RE=fER AEBRS
W-BZmE+ZA=1-8 TERE  -@ERR BORZER EIR-F -ZE§  BEEE  RESE REE
RMB'O00  RMB000  RMB'000  RMB'O00  RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB'000
AEETR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARET: ARMTR ARETz
Trade payables BARMER 219,264 9,083 158 - - 35850 235850
Other payables EfERFE 158,079 15876 120,129 - - 294084 294,084
Bank borrowings RITEY 2.65% - - 399m - - 389977 380,406
Lease liabilities BEAR 5.39% 18,632 0365 29116 743,716 17679 1,069,508 911,072
Total a3 395,975 85,284 6765 743,716 17679 1,989,419 1,821,412
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39. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND FINANCIAL 9. eI TARESREAKRER
RISK MANAGEMENT (CONTINUED) (48)
Financial risk management objectives and policies SREAMRETEEERKE &)
(continued)
Qver 1 Qver
Weighted ~ On demand months 3 months Total
average  orwithin - butwithin -~ but within Undiscounted Carrying
interest rate Tmonth 3 months Tyear — 1-5years S5years  cash flows amount
As at 31 December 2023 ngE  EER% BE-HA BEZEA YRR
R-BZZf+ZA=1-8 ToNE  -fAR BSRZEA EOR-F  -E1fF  BARFE  RESR KA

RVBO0D  RMB000  RMBOOD  RMB'OO0  RMBOOO  RMBOOD  RMBYO0O
ARBTTE ARETR ARETR ARETR ARBTR ARMTR ARETR

Trade payables BARMEH 251,008 11,738 6,278 - -804 269,174
Other payables EfER3E 126,818 15,221 106,642 - - 8681 248,681
Bank borrowings SEH 3.68% = - 254,794 - = 254794 248,580
Lease liabiities REaE 5.49% U7 10276 44448 1018157 48158 1642596 1273059
Total a3 399673 13735 811962 1,018,157 18,158 2415185 2,039434

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 40. e TEAFEGFE

INSTRUMENTS

Some of the Group’s financial asset are measured at fair value AEENETEREENSHEH

at the end of each reporting period. The following table gives RIEAFEFE - TREFY BB

information about how the fair values of these financial assets and MEBTZEZsEERBRENAE

liabilities are determined (in particular, the valuation technique(s) B(ERERAEBSGHERE G

and inputs used), as well as the level of the fair value hierarchy AZE)  UEBEAFEESZS

into which the fair value measurements are categorised (levels 1 A;&}J‘EZT&R%&&F%HQ’“?@?

to 3) based on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value ESHEIFBAFLEER (5

measurements is observable. I%:’*&) KB K} o

e Level 1 fair value measurements are based on quoted prices s EB—RAFEFENEMEEA
(unadjusted) in active market for identical assets or liabilities; §;‘Z FEERERERMEBESD A

WERECRAR)GL

. Level 2 fair value measurements are those derived from o FE_RMAFEFT=E BRI A
inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that E—HLHHREIN BEEH
are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as BEAEEZE (BER) L ME
prices) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices); and (BN B EBRITA) B =i A

BEE: &

o Level 3 fair value measurements are those derived from . F=MAFEESE I AR A
valuation techniques that include inputs for the asset or WIREAEBRTIS SRS
liability that are not based on observable market data THAEDNE &g ASE (&
(unobservable inputs). EER g ABR) M ESE

13
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40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL 40. ER I EA A FETE (2
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2024 R-ZBE-MNFE+=—A=+—
HH A FEZER

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

F—R EZR E=ZR st

RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB'000  RMB’000
ARBTR ARBTRT AR®MTRT AR®TR

Financial assets at FVTPL FEBREAFETEZ

SREE - - 586,960 586,960
Fair value hierarchy as at 31 December 2023 R-B-_=F+-A=+-—
HNAFEZR
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E— B B B

RMB'000  RMB'000  RMB’000  RMB’'000
ARBTT ARBTIT ARBTIT ARETRT

Financial assets at FVTPL FEEBREAFETEZ

TRMEE - - 653,994 653,994
Relationship of
Significant unobservable
Fair value Valuation technique(s) unobservable inputs to fair
Financial assets Fair value as at (RMB'000) hierarchy and key input(s) input(s) value
EXTUHE FUBEBAEE
SREE RUATREMATE(ARET ) ATEESE HEFIRIZGAYE aARE BAYEZBE
31 December 31 December
2024 2023
5ol —Bo=f
t=AZt-A +-A=1-7
Financial assets 586,960 653,994 Level 3 Discounted cash flow. Future cash flows are Discount rate; The higher the
at FVTPL estimated based on estimated return. (Note) ~ Estimated return ~ Discount rate,

the lower the fair
value, vice versa;
The higher the
estimated return,
the higher the fair
value, vice versa
BABREATHE E=8 BRAERE AXBERERBRHEH Bt ER nREER A
SEMEREE AT () TEHE R
WA RIEER
we ATES
B R2HH
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For the year ended 31 December 2024

=

E-F-MET-A=t-ALER

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL

INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Note:

A slight increase in the discount rate used in isolation would result in a
decrease in the fair value. A 1% increase in the discount rate, holding
all other variables constant, would decrease the carrying amount of the
financial assets at FVTPL by RMB2,405,000 as at 31 December 2024. A
1% decrease in the discount rate, holding all other variables constant,
would increase the carrying amount of the financial assets at FVTPL by
RMB2,334,000 as at 31 December 2024.

A slight increase in the expected rate of return used in isolation would
result in a increase in the fair value. A 1% increase in the expected rates
of return, holding all other variables constant, would increase the carrying
amount of the financial assets at FVTPL by RMB3,034,000 as at 31
December 2024. A 1% decrease in the expected rates of return, holding
all other variables constant, would decrease the carrying amount of the
financial assets at FVTPL by RMB3,164,000 as at 31 December 2024.

There were no transfers between Level 1 and 2 during the year.

40.

2024 ANNUAL REPORT —Z = UFF R

ERMIENTFEE®)

GEE

ERFEAMAEE R AR NG E
éﬁz'&‘*fﬂﬁﬂ% fE FT A H 2
""""" BOBERT E’\f'?fmi‘f'_
H_Jr B BEELEHFA1% &
MEEMNEAEEZSRI AR
2,405,000C c A - — U F + =
A=+—8" Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂm%ﬂ“
FEBERT BRI ETRI% BB
BREAFETENSREERT
E{E 1% hn A R %2,334,0007T °

BYEFE A A TEH Uk s R EE A 1N
BERAARBEEM EHEE
HEHTENBERT  BEHKIS
REFAN% RZE-_WF+ = A
=+ B eRMEENKRAEAES
i A R #3,034,0007T © FEFT A
HEMEFHTENERT - IR

ETRE1% R_ZT_MFE+_H
=+—R EBBIBAVEFE

MEREERDEESRDARE
3,164,0007T ©

RERA -
E’ETH@%%& 0

— R NE R A
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE_Z-_WFE+-_A=1t—RHILFE

40. FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Reconciliation of Level 3 fair value measurement
of financial assets

The following table represents the reconciliation of Level 3
measurements of the financial assets at FVTPL, which are
short-term investment in financial products without ending
balance for the period:

40. TR T A A FEFE (&)

TREEF=RLFETE
HY ¥ B
BRBERAFEFENGREE
(ERYEMRERON S BE M
MERKRE) BE=RATEFEDN
HERMT

RMB’000
AREF T
At 1 January 2023 R-ZBE-_=%—H—H 390,203
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEABRBREATENENCSREE 2,204,656
Redemption of financial assets at FVTPL BEoABRBREATENENCREE (1,985,098)
Net gains from changes in fair value of FRBEREATEFAENEHEERSFRE
financial assets at FVTPL 44,233
At 31 December 2023 RZEZ=F+=ZHA=+—H 653,994
Purchase of financial assets at FVTPL BEARBREATENENSREE 3,387,323
Redemption of financial assets at FVTPL BB BEREATEITENEREE (3,481,669)
Net gains from changes in fair value of HREBEREATEENERNEERSFHE
financial assets at FVTPL 27,312
At 31 December 2024 R-ZB-WmE+=A=+—H 586,960
Fair value of the financial assets and liabilities W I AT M E N
that are not measured at fair value on a recurring FTENEREEREBEND

basis

The Directors consider that the carrying amounts of financial
assets and financial liabilities recorded at amortised cost in the
consolidated financial statements approximate their fair values.

F {8

EEZRB HAMBHMRAREH
REABHNEREERERBEN
FREEEEQAFEMES -
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

41. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details major changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and non-cash
changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities are those for
which cash flows were, or future cash flows will be, classified in
the Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows as cash flows

from financing activities.

41. %ﬁiﬁiﬂﬁﬁ%iﬁﬁt%

TRALASERETHAELR
BENETERES EERASLIRE
2E o mELPMELABINER
RenbKARRRERERAE
BraRenE8RADBRBER
BELRERNAE -

Non-cash changes

E3k 1)

At Lease Lease At

1 January Financing Interest liabilities liabilities 31 December

2024 cash flows accruals — recognised  derecognised 2024

R-Z2-RE me BRR  CRLRIR R-B-@E

-B-H RenE ERpil) HEAE HEER t=A=t+-A

RMB'000 RMB000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000

ARBTRT  ARBTR  ARETR  ARETR  AREBTR  ARETR

Bank borrowings (Note 30) RITER (WE30) 248,580 122,255 9,571 - - 380,406
Lease liabilities (Note 27) HES & (Wi27) 1,273,059 (544,642) 59,209 243,333 (119,887) 911,072
1,521,639 (422,387) 68,780 243,333 (119,887) 1,291,478

Non-cash changes
1948

At Lease Lease At
1 January Financing Interest liabilities liabilities 31 December
2023 cash flows accruals recognised  derecognised 2023
RZZ-=F BE BRR  BRIER R-T_Z=F

-A-H HeheE ZHMNE HEAR HEAR TZA=1-A
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETL  ARETRL ARETR ARETRT ARETR  ARETR

Bank borrowings (Note 30) RiTER (WFE30) 58,678 182,740 7,162 - = 248,580
Lease liabilities (Note 27) BEE(WHF27) 1,427,220 (632,292) 62,748 488,523 (73,140) 1,273,059
1,485,898 (449,552) 69,910 488,523 (73,140) 1,521,639
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CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group
will be able to continue as a going concern, while to maximise
the return to the owners of the Company through optimisation
of debt and equity balances. The Group’s overall strategy remains
unchanged from prior year.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, which
includes the bank borrowings and lease liabilities disclosed in Note
30 and Note 27 respectively, net of cash and cash equivalents and
equity attributable to owners of the Company, comprising issued
share capital, retained earnings and other reserves.

The management reviews the capital structure on a quarterly basis.
As part of this review, the management considers the cost of
capital and the risks associated with each class of capital. Based on
the recommendation of the management, the Group will balance
its overall capital structure through payment of dividends, new
share issues and share buy-backs as well as the issue of new debt
of redemption of existing debt.

42. EXEBER

AEENHEAEREERRAEE
MTERBESECE A58
B EBRIEAM T - AR
AEAAFREEEE - AEE
BRI R T -

AEENEANGEBREREFAGE(E
5 M TE30 K M 5227 Il 2 BR A9 8R
TEALEERRE)  MBRES K
ReFEARARAHRR AEIGE
# (BREHTERA REAEMKR
H M)

BEHEERFERMEARE R
ETZENE BEEEEEREAN
AR EZRESHBNERR - 1R
BREEEMERZ  AREKEBX
R B~ 37T 3T AR R A ) [ BB DA %
REEBREEFRETHES  F
MEBREANRE -
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HE-ZT-_WNF+-_A=+—BILFE

43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 43, KRR BERR KRR REE
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

As at 31 December

R+=—HA=+-—H
2024 2023
—EF ZEZ=F
RMB’000 RMB"000
ARET T AREF T
Non-current assets IRBEE
Investment in subsidiaries REBARIRKRE 171,702 171,702
Amounts due from subsidiaries R NETE ] 196,022 165,805
367,724 337,507
Current assets REBEE
Other receivable E 4th pE W 5008 4,323 2,746
Amounts prepaid to the RSU Trustee  #t8# B 38 A% [7) BB # B {0
for purchase of ordinary shares BAXFEABNNSE
(Note 33) (Fft5E33) 756 756
Bank balances and cash HeMIBEEEY 57,767 38
62,846 3,540
Current liabilities REBaE
Amounts due to subsidiaries FES BT B A B FRIE 425,172 311,551
Other payables H b &N FE 761 2,229
425,933 313,780
Net current liabilities REBAEFHE (363,087) (310,240)
Total assets less current liabilities #AEERAHAR 4,637 27,267
Net assets EEZE 4,637 27,267
Capital and reserves EXR#E
Share capital fig A 176 176
Reserves 1 4,461 27,091
Total equity A 4,637 27,267
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For the year ended 31 December 2024
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43. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND

204

43. ZRAHBRRKREK B

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED) (&)
Movement in the Company’s reserves NN BFEEE
Attribute to owners of the Company
KARREAER
Equity-settled
share-based Treasury
Share payments share  Accumulated
premium reserve reserve losses Total
NRELEE
IR AER ERR G
B aE RN 1 e ZHER @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETT ARETT AREFT
Balance at 1 January 2023 RZEZ=%-f—-H
ik 364,321 12,608 (161,994) (135,737) 79,198
Total comprehensive income for the year A2 AN EE - - - 4,941 4,941
Exercise of issued RSU Scheme EERENTRIRNENGE 3,566 (7,083) 3,517 - -
Recognition of equity-settled BAAREEZ RS BERD
share-based payments kS = 2,952 = = 2,952
Payment of dividends RS (60,000) - - = (60,000)
Balance at 31 December 2023 RZE-=F+-f=1-H
MEH 307,887 8,477 (158,477) (130,79) 27,091
Total comprehensive income for the year £R2E N A% - - - 3,931 3,931
Exercise of issued RSU Scheme TREETRBHIRG Bl 2l 2,639 (5,422) 2783 - -
Recognition of equity-settled BANRELEIARSD AER
share-based payments IR = 3,806 - = 3,806
Payment of dividends AR 8 (30,367) = - = (30,367)
Balance at 31 December 2024 R-Z-m&E+-A=t+-AH
Haes 280,159 6,861 (155,694) (126,865) 4,461

TR RS IR (P AR B RAR] XIABUXIABU CATERING MANAGEMENT (CHINA) HOLDINGS CO., LTD.
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